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The technological developments within the TKH group are increasingly making TKH a prominent 

player in the niche markets in which we operate. We are prepared to be ‘disruptive’ and to 

replace existing technologies or processes with completely new ways of thinking about how a 

problem can be solved. This gives TKH a distinctive character and makes us an interesting 

partner to collaborate with. The attractiveness of the returns on the systems offered by TKH, 

in combination with the unique solutions and added value that are provided, lead to many new 

market opportunities. Global growth of market share can thus be achieved in many domains. 

This offers exceptional prospects with regard to the opportunities for our solutions and the value 

creation that TKH pursues as a company.

New balance  
by disruption
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Foreword
2012 was a year characterised by more difficult 

market conditions in the building and construc-

tion sector and by some reservation to invest in 

the industrial sector. 

Nonetheless, the fourth quarter ROS of 9.7% proved that 
TKH’s strong strategy can produce a good profit even in  
more difficult economic circumstances. TKH significantly 
strengthened its technology base in 2012 and, encouraged  
by the return this produces, will continue to do so in the 
years ahead. 

Our ability to set ourselves apart by deploying distinctive 
technology gives us an excellent basis for achieving growth. 
It is of the utmost importance to link technology to interesting 
market segments where high growth can be achieved,  
for example because the new technologies result in more  
efficient procedures, a safer environment, better care, lower 
costs or more comfort. It is also of great importance to  
capitalise on interesting trends and developments, and by 
extension to select core markets that display a high propen-
sity to invest. Pioneering solutions, concepts and technolo-
gies make it possible to achieve growth in many cases 
through the increase of market share. This creates an extra 
dimension to growth, which gives TKH an excellent basis  
for value creation. 

The additional appendix to this annual report explains a 
number of trail-blazing technologies and concepts within  
the TKH group. TKH will emphatically position itself as a  
technology partner for its customers. The strength emanating 
from TKH’s core technologies and positioning in vertical 
markets, where the core technologies can be bundled, is  
what makes TKH special and will give us ample opportunities 
in the years ahead to grow further. 

The people in our organisation still are making the difference 
to our value creation, due to their talent, motivation and  
especially the entrepreneurship that is central to our business. 

We are very grateful to our employees, customers, business 
partners, the Supervisory Board and the shareholders for the 
confidence they have shown in us and the support they have 
given to our efforts to enable TKH to grow and achieve our 
ambitions.

On behalf of the Executive Board 

Alexander van der Lof, chairman 
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2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

 
Operations 
Turnover 1 1,102 1,061 894 726 997 
EBITA 2 86 90 73 41 76 
Net result  31 54 41 3 50
Net result before amortisation and one-off income and expenses 2 50 59 44 18 47
Cash flow from operating activities  75 47 55 152 53
Net-investments 3 25 22 21 11 32
Depreciation on tangible non-current assets 4 17 15 14 16 17
       
Balance sheet     
Shareholders’ equity 5 428 358 319 282 293
Liabilities 612 428 358 360 428
Non-current assets  568 398 344 329 343 
Current assets  464 380 326 305 375
     
Ratios     
Shareholders’ equity/total assets %  41.1 45.6 47.1 43.9 40.7
Shareholders’ equity/non-current assets  0.8 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9
   
EBITA/total turnover % (ROS) 2 7.8 8.5 8.2 5.6 7.6
EBITA/average capital invested % (ROCE)  16.0 21.5 20.0 9.8 16.5
   
Net result before amortisation and one-off income and expenses /
total turnover % 2 4.5 5.6 5.0 2.5 5.0
Net result/shareholders’ equity % 5 11.7 16.5 13.9 6.4 16.3
 
Employees
Number at year-end  4,736 4,062 3,706 3,564 3,882

in euros 

per ordinary share of € 0.25 6  
Shareholders’ equity  11.35 9.60 8.65 7.77 8.32
Net result  0.77 1.44 1.10 0.07 1.43
Net result before amortisation and one-off income and expenses  1.28 1.63 1.21 0.49 1.34
Cash flow from operating activities 2.00 1.27 1.50 4.20 1,51
Dividend 0.65 0.75 0.61 0.50 0.66 
Highest share price  20.86 23.80 19.61 13.95 17.41
Lowest share price  15.41 13.24 12.52 6.35 7.04
Share price at year-end  19.50 16.95 19.61 13.95 8.00

Ordinary shares outstanding at year-end (x 1,000) 6 37,658 37,284 36,885 36,293 35,290
    

Highlights
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1 Turnover including change to inventory finished products, work in progress and other operating 
income.

2 Before one-off income and expenses. In 2012 this relates to restructuring and acquisition costs 
 of € 12.2 million, impairments of € 3.3 million, release of the provisions for earn-out and putoptions of 

€ 3.0 million as well as tax credit on the same of € 2.8 million. In 2011 the acquisition costs were 
 € 2.0 million. In 2009 this relates to an impairment of 3.7 million before taxes and restructuring costs 

of 12.2 million. In 2008, this concerns the partial release of the impairment of € 3.6 million (before 
taxes) and the exceptional tax gain of € 2.5 million.

3 Investments in tangible non-current assets.
4 Excluding the release of the impairment of € 4.0 million in 2008.
5 Including minority interests.
6 Calculations are based upon the number of shares held by third parties.
        

    

in millions of euros (unless stated otherwise)



Highlights 2012
Vision & security 

Successful expansion 
vision & security segment 
via acquisition of Aasset 
Security and Augusta 
Technologie.

Dividend 

Dividend proposal € 0.65 
per (depository receipt for 
an) ordinary share.

1,102 mln €

Turnover

Turnover slightly up at  
€ 1.1 billion, organic  
decline of 5.0%.

Highlights Q4

86.2mln €

Net profit

Net profit before amorti-
sation and one-off income 
and expenses in line with 
expectations.

EBITA 

Drop EBITA before one-off 
expenses of 6.4% to  
€ 86.2 million. 

Turnover

Turnover up 16.5% to  
€ 300.1 million, organic 
growth 2.0%.

Industrial sector 

Improvement in market 
conditions in industrial 
sector.

Building Solutions 

Challenging market condi-
tions in Building Solutions.

One-off charge

One-off charge of € 11.3 
million for efficiency  
programme Building 
Solutions.

EBITA 

EBITA before one-off  
expenses rises 25.8% to  
€ 29 million, largely due to 
strong increase in underlying 
result at Building Solutions.

0.65 €

300mln €
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29.0mln €



Mission Statement
TKH’s intends is to be an innovative and leading technology niche player by 

providing Telecom, Building and Industrial Solutions based on technologically 

advanced system concepts, products and related services, focusing on ICT, 

electrical engineering and mechatronics. TKH endeavours to continually 

exceed the customer’s expectations by offering ‘best-in-class’ solutions. 

Indoor telecom systems

Fibre network systems

Copper network systems

 

Building technologies

Vision & security systems

Connectivity systems
 

Connectivity systems 

Manufacturing systems
 

Industrial Solutions

Building Solutions

Telecom Solutions
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Vision
The pace of technological development is rapid. These take care for a  

sustainable and safe environment and also for reliable products and  

efficient processes with a high degree of flexibility. 

TKH intends to be a major player in niche markets in which its technological solutions meet a real 

need. The customer’s wishes play a central role in this. We focus on a number of important vertical 

growth markets in which our specialist knowledge and expertise are able to make a real difference. 

When combined with our great capacity for innovation this really maximises our distinctive capability. 

Due to our organisational structure, under which many activities are decentralised and delegated 

to levels deep within the organisation and entrepreneurship is accorded a central role, we have a 

close relationship with our customers and know their concerns and their wishes. By using our 

technological solutions to capitalise on this, we can together be successful in the market. Our staff 

are of decisive importance in this connection and are our most valuable asset. We wish to offer 

them a safe working environment with every opportunity to develop their talents.
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Technology company TKH Group NV (TKH) is an 

internationally operating group of companies 

specialised in creating and supplying innovative 

Telecom, Building and Industrial Solutions.

At TKH it is the technological solutions that play the central 
role, not the kind of activity. In the Telecom Solutions, 
Building Solutions and Industrial Solutions business segments, 
basic technologies in the area of ICT, electrical engineering 
and mechatronics are merged into total solutions in four 
core areas of technology. Besides entering into partnerships 
we focus on developing our own advanced technologies. We 
have a thorough knowledge of processes and techniques and 
of the markets in which our customers operate. This enables 
us to apply our technologies in a targeted manner, which 
creates clear added value for our customers and contributes 
to a safer environment, sustainable care or, as the case may 
be, efficient and reliable production processes. We have 
identified four core technology areas: connectivity, vision  
& security, communication and production systems. 

Our specialists in the field of marketing, process develop-
ment, design, engineering and logistics add advice and 
project implementation to offer a tailor-made solution. 
These locally developed concepts are subsequently offered 
internationally, in order to optimally capitalize on the 
expertise and knowledge within TKH.

Telecom Solutions develops, produces and supplies systems 
ranging from outdoor infrastructure for telecom and CATV 
networks through to indoor home networking applications. 
The focus in this business is to provide customers with 
systems that are totally care-free due to the accompanying 
system guarantees we provide. Around 40% of the portfolio 
consists of optical fibre and copper cable for node-to-node 
connections. The remaining 60%, consisting of components 
and systems in the field of connectivity and peripheral 
equipment, is used mainly in the network’s nodes. 

Building Solutions develops, produces and supplies solutions 
in the field of efficient electrical engineering ranging from 
applications within buildings through to technical systems 
that – combined with software – provide efficiency solutions 
for the care, parking and security sectors. TKH’s know-how 
focuses on vision & security as well as connectivity and 
building technology systems. Vision technology is being 
used not only for security but also, to an increasing extent, 
for production automation. 

Industrial Solutions develops, produces and supplies solutions 
ranging from specialty cable, “plug and play” cable systems 
through to integrated systems for the production of car and 
truck tyres. The know-how in the field of automation of  
production processes and improving the reliability of  
production systems gives TKH a distinctive ability to respond 
to the need of a number of specialist industrial sectors, such 
as tyre manufacturing, robot, medical and machine manufac-
turing industries, to increasingly outsource the construction 
of production systems or modules. 

TKH aims to carve out strong market positions based mainly 
on its own advanced technologies and services and on its 
strong regional and international positioning. 

The companies in the TKH Group are active all over the 
world. The group’s growth is concentrated in Northwest, 
Central and Eastern Europe and in Asia. In 2012 TKH had 
4,736 employees; its turnover was € 1.1 billion.

Profile
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TKH’s objective is to achieve an above-average 

annual increase in earnings per share. We 

achieve this through growth of turnover and by 

striving to establish a strong position in the high-

potential market segments of Telecom Solutions, 

Building Solutions and Industrial Solutions. 

We regard the increasing need for communication, security, 
care and efficiency as a major growth trend within these 
segments. 

Providing solutions is at the heart of TKH’s strategy. In  
addition we strive for a high return on investment for our 
customers. We are to a significant degree driven by the  
efficient way in which solutions are achieved within the 
group, but above all in cooperation with third parties. The 
basic technologies and know-how within the TKH Group play 
an important role in this. TKH focuses on securing a leading 
position in niche markets. 

Innovative strength is one of the cornerstones for further 
growth at TKH. Our aim is for innovations that were intro-
duced during the two preceding years to account for at least 
15% of turnover. A constant effort to innovate leads to a 
range of products and services that guarantees technologi-
cally advanced solutions. Besides cooperating with third 
parties, TKH is increasingly concentrating on investing in the 
development of its own technologies, based on connectivity, 
vision & security, communication and production systems, 
thereby maximising its distinctive capability.

Turnover growth is achieved both organically and by means 
of acquisitions. Expanding successful TKH activities to new 
geographic markets and transferring knowledge from compe-
tence centres increase the prospect of additional growth. In 
geographic terms, the focus for growth lies on Northwest, 
Central and Eastern Europe and Asia.

Objectives 
and Strategy

As a result of acquisitions and successful organic growth in 
Europe the share of the activities outside the Netherlands is 
steadily increasing. The emphasis with acquisitions lies on 
structurally healthy companies with a strong position in 
segments that are important for TKH. To an increasing extent 
TKH is looking for acquisition candidates whose related tech-
nologies in the core markets would provide an interesting 
supplement to its existing portfolio, thereby reinforcing its 
position in the solution segments. TKH’s aim is to make an 
average of between one and three acquisitions a year, each 
representing turnover of between € 10 million and  
€ 50 million.

Within the TKH strategy, we effectively exploit opportunities 
for growth and limit the (financial) risks. Healthy balance 
sheet ratios and a strong operational cash flow are high  
on the list of priorities for the company’s development.  
TKH strives for a solvency ratio of at least 35% and a Net  
Debt/EBITDA ratio of not more than 2. 

The shift to activities with greater added value and therefore 
potentially higher margins, together with the growing share 
of activities showing above-average performance, gives TKH 
the confidence to set its long-term target for ROS to a band-
width of 9% to 10%. The company’s long-term goal for the 
ROCE lies within a bandwidth of 18% to 20%. 

TKH is aware of its responsibilities and obligations towards 
all stakeholders in the company in achieving its objectives 
and implementing its strategy. We have named Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) as one of our strategic priorities 
for the coming years and have taken the position that busi-
ness can be conducted in a sustainable manner only if an 
integrated approach to CSR policy is adopted in day-to-day 
operations.



TKH devotes continuous attention to innovation, 

with the result that its products and services 

guarantees technologically advanced solutions. 

Besides entering into partnerships we concentrate on  
developing our own advanced technologies. We have a  
thorough knowledge of processes and technologies and a  
good awareness of the markets in which our customers  
operate. This enables us to apply our technologies in such a 
way as to generate a clear added value for our customers and 
at the same time contribute to a safer environment, sustainable 
care and efficient and reliable production processes.

We have developed four core technologies areas:

• connectivity;

• vision & security;

• communication;

• production systems

Connectivity
Our connectivity technology enables us to focus on the 
complete range of cable systems for energy distribution and 
electrical and electronic applications in the construction 
and infrastructure sector, as well as fibre optics systems for 
data and communication networks. In addition, we use our 
connectivity technology to develop customised specialty 
cables, connectors and connectivity systems for the most 
varied applications in high-tech environments such as the 
manufacturing, marine & offshore and medical sectors.

Vision & security
Vision technology consists of camera technology combined 
with the digital processing of visual information to create 
usable images or information for interpretation by human 
and / or machines. Vision technology plays an important 
role at TKH, for example as part of medical solutions, indus-
trial automation (tyre building, automotive, robotics and 
logistics) as well as in security solutions.  

Our security technology makes it possible to control and 
monitor the built environment for the purposes of security, 
comfort, communication and efficiency. The technology 
consists of alarm systems, mission-critical communication 
systems, access and registration systems and evacuation 
systems.

Communication
For building applications we are the ideal technology part-
ner for safe and secure built environments as well as for 
car parks, tunnels and infrastructure and for vessels and 
offshore platforms. Our technologies focus on communica-
tion technology for image transmission, speech and listen-
ing, guiding and lighting systems, security and control. 
For building security we primarily make use of the group’s 
vision and security technology building blocks. Through our 
technologies we promote, for example, efficiency, safety and 
security in tunnels, car parks, domiciliary and residential 
care, airports, football stadiums, schools and financial insti-
tutions. And we meet the strictest standards of the European 
safety directive.

Production systems
Our know-how in production process automation and  
improving the reliability and flexibility of production 
systems gives TKH the distinctive capability to use its  
technologies to meet the wishes of a number of specialised 
industrial sectors such as the tyre building industry, robotics, 
the medical sector and the machine building industry. TKH 
uses its technologies to control and monitor industrial 
processes, setting up complete production systems for  
the production of car and truck tyres, the can processing 
industry and the care industry. Engineering and assembly  
of systems, control software and analysis software as well  
as connectivity and vision technology are the basic building 
blocks for the distinctive production systems which  
TKH supplies. 

TKH’s 
technologies 

 10



TKH GROUP AnnUAl REPORT 2012

 11

the worldwide IP backbone and fast wireless networks can 
only increase. 

Vision technology will grow strongly owing to the ease and 
speed with which data are available and can be linked to  
operating systems. Thanks to the availability of ultra-high 
bandwidth and the combination of worldwide IP networks 
with wireless 4G LTE networks, vision technology will grow  
to be the favoured medium of corporate communication, 
providing a safer environment and more efficient production. 
The human ‘eye’ will increasingly be replaced by vision 
systems, thereby making analyses more reliable and efficient 
and enabling production systems to deliver better products 
faster. 

Trends in the labour market
The shortage of well-trained technical personnel continues 
unabated. The age structure and composition of the labour 
force are changing. As the population ages, companies are 
seeing important know-how seep away and are unable to find 
sufficient replacements. The state of the economy means  
that companies must organise themselves more efficiently. 
Innovation from the shop floor should be encouraged and 
would strengthen the knowledge and skills of employees.  
This produces greater customer satisfaction as well as cost 
savings. Work and private life are being integrated into new 
lifestyles. New-style employment is very much in the spotlight 
and companies need to reconsider their approach. In addition, 
the social media have become an integral part of recruitment 
strategy. 

By identifying relevant trends TKH can effectively 

determine its strategic direction and its related 

goals. In its SWOT analysis these trends form the 

basis for the external analysis of opportunities 

and threats.

Trends in the market
The focus is shifting increasingly from core competences  
to customer solutions and service. Companies have to excel in 
their knowledge of specific customer wishes and distinguish 
themselves through innovative product designs and services. 
Effective communication to customers is of crucial impor-
tance here. Whereas companies previously concentrated on 
product development, sales and production, their main focus 
is now on innovation in the supply chain. The importance of 
being able to offer integrated total solutions and short lead 
times is growing, and companies that achieve this have a 
competitive advantage. Greater efficiency can be generated by 
digitally linking the processes leading from the supplier 
through to the customer.

Trends in technology
The new generation of consumers are fully conversant with 
online and multimedia services. This requires a different and, 
above all, more complex technological environment and more 
information and knowledge management. More and more 
companies are deciding to invest in the development of next-
generation customer management platforms for multichannel, 
multimedia and multiplatform services suitable for social 
media. In general, this involves the fast and consistent provi-
sion of personalised information. The internet has become the 
focal point of an entire environment consisting of cameras, 
sensors, microphones, image recognition, intercom etc. 
Technologies are used to tackle social problems. Examples are 
the use of ICT for costs saving within the healthcare system 
and making up for shortages of personnel as well as solutions 
for smart energy management. The demand for carefully 
designed and effectively managed network connections within 

Trends
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This SWOT analysis implies the following 
In terms of specific challenges. 

Strengths that can be used to seize opportunities are: 
• The company’s financial strength can be used for further 

investments in technology developments to generate  
organic growth in the promising market segments in which 
TKH operates

•	TKH’s	European	positioning,	scale	and	innovations	can	be	
used to profit optimally from the possibilities to increase 
market share on the basis of its distinctive capabilities

Strengths that can be used to stave off threats are:
•	By using the company’s healthy financial position to develop  

innovations in an effort to maintain a constant lead with  
our own technologies and distinctive capabilities it will  
be possible fend off the competition

•	Spreading	activities	over	different	product/market	combi-
nations and geographic markets will make TKH less  
vulnerable to an economic slowdown

•	Our	good	reputation	as	an	attractive	employer	can	be	 
used to recruit talented employees

TKH can transform the following weaknesses into 
strengths: 
•	Global	position	-	increasing	presence	in	several	international	

markets on the basis of the defined vertical markets.
•	Limit	dependence	on	public-sector	investments	by	focusing	

on defined vertical markets that are driven by investments 
with high returns and thus attractiveness

•	Build	brand	awareness	by	increasing	reference	projects	in	
markets where brand awareness is limited and aim for an 
intensive market positioning, and develop and implement  
a strategic social media policy

Based on both external and internal developments the following SWOT analysis applies to TKH. 

Weaknesses

•	Limited global position in several key markets 
•	Dependence on government measures in several markets, 

including building and infrastructure
•	Brand awareness in some geographical markets

Strengths

•	Providing total solutions in the form of complete systems, 
including engineering, service and maintenance

•	Strong positions in defined vertical markets 
•	Distinguished innovations with its own technologies, and 

increasingly its own brands
•	A good reputation and financial strength 
•	Benefits of scale through spread of technologies over different 

product/market combinations and geographic markets
•	A highly flexible niche player, which enables it to offer specific 

solutions for customers efficiently
•	Production capacity is highly flexible, because more than 

70% of the capital-intensive production is outsourced
•	Partnerships with suppliers of specific technology products 

or solutions
•	Successful acquisition policy and effective integration of 

acquired companies in the organisation
•	An organisational model that gives priority to local entre- 

preneurship and innovative strength
•	Internal cooperation consolidates strengths and yields  

economies of scale
•	the quality and commitment of our staff

Opportunities

•	Sustained increase in demand for high-quality technological 
solutions

•	Trend among customers towards outsourcing technology
•	Market acceptance for digitisation and ICT solutions
•	Growth of market share in defined vertical markets
•	Geographic expansion outside existing core markets
•	Expansion of portfolio with existing customers due to  

increasing demand for total solutions
•	A large proportion of solutions are still in the early stage of 

their life cycle
•	The growing share of software in solutions and service  

component
•	Attractiveness as an employer due to focus on entrepreneur-

ship and development opportunities
•	Emergence of social media
•	Attention for Corporate Social Responsibility

Threats 

•	Speed of technology developments
•	possible new technologies from competitors with more  

prospects than TKH’s technologies
•	harmonisation of niche specifications into standard commodity 

solutions
•	scarcity of highly qualified, technical specialists 
•	shortage of raw materials and fluctuating raw material prices 

and currency rates
•	strong economic slowdown 
•	Increasing bankruptcy risk of suppliers and customers

SWOT analysis TKH



TKH worldwide TKH has worldwide 4,736 employees and is  

active in 24 countries. The head quarter of  

TKH Group NV is in Haaksbergen (the Netherlands). 

Active in 24 countries

• Australia
• Austria
• Belgium
• Brazil
• Canada
• China
• Denmark
• Finland
• France
• Germany
• Italy
• Japan

• Malaysia
• Morocco
• Netherlands
• New Zealand
• Poland
• Singapore
• Spain
• Sweden
• Taiwan
• Turkey
• UK
• USA
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Listing
TKH shares are listed on the NYSE Euronext Amsterdam. The 
TKH share is included in the Mid Cap index (AMX). In addi-
tion, the TKH share is part of the Next 150 index which has 
been established by Euronext. 

At the end of 2012 there were 38,302,014 paid-up ordinary 
shares with nominal value of € 0.25, of which the company 
held 644,092, and 4,000 priority shares with a nominal 
value of € 1.00.

TKH’s equity structure 
The ordinary shares in the company, except the register 
shares, have been transferred to the Stichting Administratie-
kantoor TKH Group (Foundation Administration Office for 
TKH Shares) by means of a notarised deed. Stichting 
Administratiekantoor TKH Group has provided depositary 
receipts in exchange for these shares. Additional informa-
tion about these depositary receipts for shares is provided 
on pages 51 and 124.

Our priority shares are managed by Stichting Prioriteit 
(Foundation Priority Shares), which is made up of the 
company’s directors. This foundation is not entitled to  
alienate, pledge or otherwise encumber these shares. No 
special rights have been assigned to these priority shares. As 
stated on page 124 Stichting Continuïteit TKH (Foundation 
Continuity TKH) has been granted an option to acquire 
protective preference shares, which would, if the option is 
exercised, allow the foundation to acquire a maximum of 
50% of the total issued capital. 

Disclosure of major shareholdings in listed companies
Within the framework of the disclosures of major share-
holdings in listed companies, the Financial Markets 
Authority (AFM) published the following list of major  
shareholdings in TKH.

Issue of shares
Shares are issued pursuant to a resolution of the Executive 
Board. The resolution is subject to the approval of the 
Supervisory Board. The extent of the Executive Board’s 
power in this respect is established by resolution of the 
General Meeting of Shareholders and extends to not more 
than all shares in the current or future authorised capital 

that have not yet been issued. At the General Meeting of 
Shareholders on 15 May 2012 this authorisation was 
extended until 15 November 2013, with the understanding 
that the authorisation relates to the issue of shares, regard-
less of the type or series, including granting of rights to 
subscribe for shares, subject to the following. This authori-
sation is granted for all shares, with the exception of the 
cumulative protective preference shares, up to ten percent of 
the total nominal value of the issued ordinary shares at the 
moment of issue, plus ten percent of the total nominal value 
of the issued ordinary shares at the moment of issue if they 
are issued as part of a merger or acquisition. For the cumu-
lative protective preference shares, the authorisation is 
granted to extending to not more than all shares in the 
current or future authorised capital. The company promised 
that, if cumulative preference shares have been issued for 
the protection of the company pursuant to a resolution of 
the Executive Board, it will call a General Meeting of 
Shareholders within 18 months rather than the period of  
24 months referred to in the articles of association, to vote 
on a resolution to either purchase or cancel these shares. 
The restriction or exclusion of the pre-emption right to the 
ordinary shares and cumulative financing preference shares.

Purchase by the company of its own shares 
The company may acquire (depositary receipts of) ordinary 
shares in the company for consideration, pursuant to a  
resolution of the Executive Board and subject to the conditions 
prescribed in the articles of association, for a price for 
(depositary receipts of) ordinary shares lying between the 
sum equal to the nominal value that they represent and the 
sum equal to one hundred and ten percent of the market 
price. The resolution is subject to the approval of the 
Supervisory Board. During the General Meeting of Share-
holders on 15 May 2012 the Executive Board was granted 
authorisation to acquire the company’s own shares for a 
period of 18 months from that date.

 
   Date of
Person obliged to notify  Holding disclosure

ASR Nederland NV  5.11% 06-10-2008
Breedinvest BV  5.20% 01-11-2006
Darlin NV  5.29% 01-11-2006
Delta Lloyd Deelnemingen Fonds NV 10.09% 07-08-2007
Delta Lloyd NV  5.46% 06-05-2011
Fidelity Investments  9.34% 01-11-2006
Kempen Oranje Participaties NV 3.77% 04-04-2011
Navitas BV  5.75% 01-11-2006

The TKH share

The share

Number of paid-up ordinary shares  38,302,014 37,935,257
Number of ordinary shares out- 
standing with third parties 37,657,922 37,284,327
Annual turnover in shares  8,713,455 13,729,528
Highest share price  € 20.77 € 23.80
Lowest share price  € 15.60 € 13.24
Share price at year end € 19.50 €16.95
Net earnings per share € 0.77 € 1.44
Dividend € 0.65 € 0.75
P/E ratio (at year end) 25.32  11.77
Dividend yield on closing price 3.33% 4.42%
Market capitalization at year end  
(x € million) € 734.4  € 643.0

2012 2011
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Dividend policy
TKH aims to generate an attractive return for its shareholders, 
which is also reflected in an appropriate dividend policy. 
Healthy balance sheet ratios are very important for the 
continuity of the company. In determining the dividend to 
be paid TKH takes into account the amount of profit the 
company needs to retain to realise its medium to long term 
plans on the basis of a solvency of at least 35%. Based on the 
growth targets for the coming years, TKH’s aim is for a pay-
out of between 40% and 70%.

Staff options and share scheme
Staff option rights to (depositary receipts of) ordinary shares 
in TKH are awarded to the management of TKH and the 
management of its group companies. Further information 
on this subject will be given on page 125 of this annual 
report. There is a share scheme in place for the Executive 
Board (see page 114).

Preventing insider trading
In view of its listing on the NYSE Euronext Amsterdam, TKH 
is obliged to have a regulation to prevent the use of inside 
knowledge by its managers and employees, as well as other 
‘insiders’. The statutory provisions in force in the 
Netherlands concerning inside knowledge and market 
manipulation are laid down in the Financial Supervision 
Act. TKH has adapted its existing insider dealing regulation 
to this legislation in accordance with the model of the 
Association of Securities Issuing Organisations (VEUO). The 
group of persons to whom this regulation applies in connec-
tion with the information available to them has agreed in 
writing to observe the regulation. Mrs R. Dieperink, the 
company secretary, serves as the company’s compliance 
officer and ensures that the legislation relating to inside 
knowledge and other compliance risks are observed.

Investor Relations policy
The TKH Investor Relations Policy aims to maintain contacts 
with (potential) shareholders of TKH, institutional investors, 
analysts and financial journalists. The aim is provide these 
group relevant financial and other information in time and 

to the best of our ability, to give them a broader insight into 
the company and its sector. To this end, having regard to the 
relevant limitations, it is observed that relevant information 
is provided equally and simultaneously to all interested 
parties and that it is accessible to them. Besides the annual 
report, the interim report and financial reports, TKH main-
tains such contacts through meetings, roadshows and 
company visits. 

The Dutch Association of Investor Relations (NEVIR) awards 
annual prizes for the Best Companies in the field of Investor 
Relations in which companies are judged for the accessibility 
of the IR department and the management, the pro-active 
communication to the investment community, added value 
and knowledge of the IR professional / department, trans-
parency and continuity. Over 2012 TKH was nominated  
Best IR-company in the category AScX/Other.

Investor Relations
J.M.A. van der Lof MBA,  
chairman of the Executive Board and CEO

More information about TKH and its group companies  
is also available on the company’s website at  
www.tkhgroup.com or from the company secretary,  
Mrs R. Dieperink MBA.

Key dates  

6 May 2013   Trading update Q1 2013 
7 May 2013   General Meeting of Shareholders
9 May 2013   Listing ex-dividend
13 May 2013  Record date
14 May up to and including  
27 May 2013  Option period
27 May 2013  Announcement of exchange ratio   
 for stock dividend (after closing   
 stock exchange)
30 May 2013  Dividend payable
21 August 2013  Q2 and half-year results 2013 
6 November 2013  Trading update Q3 2013
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Supervisory Board P.P.F.C. (Philip) Houben (09-06-1950)

Dutch nationality
•	2009 first appointment
•	2013 term limit
 
Main position 
•	former chairman of the Executive Board Wavin NV
 
Current position
•	chairman of Nederlandse Vereniging Participatiemaatschappijen 
•	chairman of Supervisory Board Unit4 NV
•	member of Supervisory Board Stork Technical Services

R.L. (Rokus) van Iperen (19-09-1953)

Dutch nationality
•	2011 first appointment
•	2016 term limit
 
Main position 
•	president & CEO of Canon Europe Ltd.
•	former Chairman of the Executive Board OCE NV
 
Current position
•	chairman of Supervisory Board Academic Hospital of Maastricht 

Netherlands
•	member of the Board of Directors RTI International Metals, Inc. 

Pittsburgh; 

P. (Patrick) Morley MSc. (13-07-1956)

Irish nationality
•	2002 first appointment
•	2014 term limit
 
Main position
•	former COO and member Executive Board TMG NV
•	former CEO Wolter Kluwer NL
•	former COO Telfort 
•	former CTO and member Executive Board Royal KPN NV
 
Current positions
•	chairman and Non Executive Director Artilium Plc
•	member of Supervisory Board, Trans Link Systems BV
•	member of the Advisory Council for Science and Technology

H.J. (Herman) Hazewinkel (26-07-1949), chairman

Dutch nationality
•	2005 first appointment
•	2013 term limit
 
Main position
•	former chairman of the Executive Board VolkerWessels
 
Current position
•	member of Supervisory Board Heisterkamp Beheer BV
•	vice-chairman of Supervisory Board Royal Boskalis Westminster NV
•	member of Supervisory Board Schiphol Group NV
•	chairman of Supervisory Board Soweco NV 
•	member of Executive Committee, Stichting ING Aandelen
•	member of Executive Committee, Stichting Administratiekantoor 

“Slagheek”
•	member of Supervisory Board, Dutch Symphony Orchestra
•	non executive partner Base Strategy & Finance BV 

M.E. (Marike) van Lier Lels (19-10-1959), vice-chairman

Dutch nationality
•	2006 first appointment
•	2014 term limit
 
Main position
•	professional supervisor / independent director
•	former COO, Schiphol Group
 
Current positions 
•	member of Supervisory Board, Royal KPN NV
•	member of Supervisory Board, USG People NV
•	member of Supervisory Board, Reed Elsevier NV
•	member Council for the Environment and Infrastructure
•	member of Committee, Netherlands Bureau for Economic Policy 

Analysis
•	chairwoman Supervisory Board, Foundation Nature and Environment
•	member Foundation Aegon

1 H.J. (Herman) Hazewinkel
2 M.E. (Marike) van Lier Lels 
3 P.P.F.C. (Philip) Houben 
4 R.L. (Rokus) van Iperen
5 P. (Patrick) Morley MSc.

1

4

3

2

5
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The Supervisory Board presents the shareholders 

with the annual financial statements for the 

2012 financial year drawn up by the Executive 

Board. 

The annual financial statements were submitted to Deloitte 
Accountants for auditing. The unqualified auditor’s report 
can be found on page 129 of the annual report. The Super-
visory Board recommends that the General Meeting of 
Shareholders approves these financial statements and agrees 
to the appropriation of profit, which can be found on page 
128 of the annual report. The Supervisory Board has 
discussed the financial statements with the Executive Board 
in the presence of the external auditor. The Supervisory 
Board is of the opinion that the financial statements consti-
tute a sound basis for the account that the Executive Board 
must give of its management and the Supervisory Board 
must give of its supervision of the management.

Role and powers of the Supervisory Board
The role of the Supervisory Board is to supervise the policies 
of the Executive Board and the general affairs of the 
company and its affiliated enterprises. The Supervisory 
Board assists the Executive Board and, in performing its 
duties, is guided by the interests of the company and its 
affiliated businesses and takes into account the relevant 
interests of the company’s stakeholders. The Supervisory 
Board is composed in such a way as to ensure that the 
knowledge, experience and understanding of the markets in 
which TKH operates and the activities in which it is engaged 
are well represented. The Supervisory Board has a set of  
bye-laws recording, among other things, its duties, powers 
and decision-making procedures. 

Meetings during the year under review
In the year under review the Supervisory Board had five 
regular meetings with the Executive Board. Following the 
decision to make a public offer for all outstanding shares of 
Augusta Technologie AG (‘Augusta’), the Supervisory Board 
also held three extra meetings with the Executive Board to 
discuss the offer. The chairman of the Supervisory Board 
was also authorised by the other members of the Super-
visory Board to represent them in the eventuality that the 
Executive Board wished to discuss the progress of the bid 
with the Supervisory Board. A member of the Supervisory 
Board was unable to attend one regular meeting and 
another member to attend one extra meeting. Both these 
members submitted their input in writing beforehand and 
authorised the other members of the Supervisory Board to 
represent them. 

At the regular meetings attention was devoted to the finan-
cial reports, investor relations, investments and technologi-
cal developments as well as the market conditions in the 
different business segments and developments in the organi-
sation. The efficiency improvements in the organisation, 
which have been introduced since the second quarter of 
2012, were discussed in depth, as well as the related cost 
savings. The Supervisory Board had the opportunity to  
monitor progress and advise on the extent to which the 
measures were implemented. 

During the year under review the Supervisory Board devoted 
particular attention to the acquisition of Augusta. Intensive 
consultations were held with the Executive Board by both 
the full Supervisory Board and by its Audit Committee. 
During these consultations the Supervisory Board had the 
opportunity, among other things, to assess and advise on 
the conditions for making a public offer. The Supervisory 
Board gave its approval for the making of a public offer for 

all the issued shares of Augusta in accordance with the bid 
letter, thereby endorsing the Executive Board’s view that by 
acquiring Augusta TKH is creating one of the leading plat-
forms in the rapidly expanding vision technology market. 
The combined activities provide sufficient scale to enable 
TKH to become global market leader in this segment, in 
keeping with its growth strategy. 

In the year under review extra attention was paid by the 
Supervisory Board to the increased focus within TKH on the 
in-house development of core technologies. This included 
discussion of both a market-oriented and a technology-
oriented approach and control. In the meeting at which 
TKH’s strategic positioning was discussed, the subject of 
technology development also received extra attention. At  
the same time the positioning of TKH in vertical markets 
was discussed, with particular reference to the fact that the 
technologies form the basis for a successful approach to 
these markets. 

One of the principles of TKH’s strategy is to achieve growth 
both organically and through acquisitions. Besides consider-
ing acquisitions, including those of Aasset Security, Augusta 
and Parking + Protection, the Supervisory Board also discussed 
the scope for further organic growth. It examined the geo-
graphic rollout of the portfolio and ways of  strengthening 
TKH in the defined vertical markets. In order to be able to 
monitor strategy on a continuing basis, the Supervisory 
Board arranges for the Executive Board to give an explana-
tion of the strategic scorecard at every meeting, including 
the high scores in each solution area and any other matters 
requiring attention. 

In March the Supervisory Board discussed the 2011 financial 
statements – as part of the TKH annual report – and the 
external auditor reported on his findings during the audit 

Report of the Supervisory Board 
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InDUSTRIAl SOlUTIOnS of the annual accounts. In addition, the Supervisory Board 
discussed the dividend proposal and agreed to present this 
proposal to the General Meeting of Shareholders. The acqui-
sition of Augusta was also discussed at this meeting. 

Topics discussed during the meeting in May included results 
in the first quarter and the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

In August, the Supervisory Board discussed the half-year 
result and the Audit Committee reported on its discussion 
with the external auditors about the interim audit. At this 
meeting the external auditors explained their findings 
during the audit of the first half of the year. Special atten-
tion was paid in this meeting to the security roadmap, 
which centres around technology development and the 
organisational control of the security companies.

In October, attention was devoted to the developments in 
the HR field, especially the management development 
programme and the employee satisfaction programme. 

The budget and investment plan for 2012 was discussed in the 
December meeting. The progress made on implementing the 
policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) was then also 
discussed. The Board arranged to be informed about the initia-
tives taken and the progress of CSR projects. It also discussed 
the further development of the CSR reporting structure on 
the basis of the GRI directives. The Supervisory Board has noted 
that TKH’s sustainability strategy is increasingly becoming part 
of its overall corporate strategy. To evaluate the effectiveness 
of the TKH strategy the Supervisory Board devoted special 
attention, as part of the strategy presentation, to lessons 
learned in past years and to the special dilemmas which the 
Executive Board faces in continuing the rollout of this  
strategy. It was decided to examine specific themes during 
the forthcoming financial year. 

In its December meeting the Supervisory Board also discussed 
the TKH two-tier board structure in the light of the current 
ratio of employees in the Netherlands to employees abroad. 
In view of TKH’s growth in recent years the size of the work-

force abroad has risen faster in relative terms than in the 
Netherlands and the number of employees abroad has now 
exceeded 55% of the total workforce for two successive years. 
As discussed in the 2009 General Meeting, TKH’s two-tier 
board structure should be reviewed again in this light in the 
General Meeting. After various possibilities had been 
discussed at the meeting of the Supervisory Board, it was 
decided to propose adoption of the limited two-tier board 
structure under which the members of the Executive Board 
would no longer be appointed and dismissed by the 
Supervisory Board, but would instead be appointed by the 
General Meeting of Shareholders, at a binding nomination 
of the Supervisory Board. 

Each year the Supervisory Board visits a TKH subsidiary to 
acquaint itself with what is going on within the business 
concerned. As part of this programme the Supervisory Board 
visited Isolectra BV in Capelle a/d IJssel. Among the matters 
explained were the organisational changes within the company 
and the transformation within its business, resulting in 
access to the new market areas, for its infrastructure and 
tunnel technology. It was emphasised that close cooperation 
with other TKH subsidiaries had enabled Isolectra to pene-
trate these market segments and win contracts. 

A consultative meeting of the Central Works Council was 
attended by a delegation from the Supervisory Board. Here 
an explanation of the strategy was given and the general 
course of events in the group was discussed. Through  
these consultations the Supervisory Board is able, among 
other things, to learn directly what matters are of concern 
to the employees. The Supervisory Board regards the  
consultations with Central Works Council as constructive 
and valuable.

Functioning and composition 
In an extraordinary meeting the Supervisory Board 
discussed its own performance and that of its committees 
and of the Executive Board. The Executive Board was not 
present at this meeting. In preparation for this extraordi-
nary meeting the individual members completed an  
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evaluation form received beforehand. This served as a frame-
work for the further discussions during the meeting. The 
agenda items related to supervision in a general sense, the 
interaction between the Supervisory Board and the 
Executive Board, the team effectiveness and composition of 
the Supervisory Board, the evaluation of the chairman of 
the Supervisory Board and of the functioning of the 
Supervisory Board. The evaluation of the functioning of the 
Supervisory Board, the committees and the individual 
members was performed in a plenary session presided over 
by the chairman of the Supervisory Board. The outcome of 
the evaluation was that both the Supervisory Board as a 
whole and its individual members had functioned properly 
and that the members had been able to make sufficient time 
for the proper discharge of their supervisory duties. It was 
noted that the members complement each other sufficiently 
in their role of advising the company and that there was a 
good spread of areas of expertise. 

The functioning of the Executive Board and of its individual 
members was also discussed and evaluated when they  
were not present. The chairman of the Supervisory Board 
provided general feedback on the results of this evaluation 
to the chairman of the Executive Board in a one on one 
meeting. The Supervisory Board noted that it has a good 
working relationship with the Executive Board. It also  
noted that as a result of the enlargement of the Executive 
Board to three members in mid-2011 it had been possible  
to achieve a more balanced allocation of time as well  
as a good and efficient division of duties among the  
members. 

A recurrent topic is the composition of the Supervisory 
Board. The Supervisory Board’s expertise in the technologi-
cal field was increased when Mr Van Iperen joined as a 
member in late 2011. As a result, the competences in the 
Supervisory Board have once again been brought into line 
with the requirements, as also explained on page 51 of the 
annual report. At this meeting the Board addressed the 
points set out in best practice provision III.1.7 of the Dutch 
Corporate Governance Code. It was established that every 

member of the Supervisory Board is independent within the 
meaning of best practice provision III.2.2 of the Code.

2013 schedule of retirement
Mr H.J. Hazewinkel and Mr P.P.F.C. Houben will retire at the 
end of the General Meeting of Shareholders of 7 May 2013 in 
keeping with the schedule of retirement. Both are eligible 
for reappointment and are making themselves available for 
a further 4-year term. The Central Works Council has been 
informed of the vacancies and the accompanying job 
profiles and has given notice that it will not avail of its right 
of recommendation. The General Meeting of Shareholders 
has also been informed of the vacancies and the accompany-
ing job profiles and given an opportunity to recommend 
candidates to the Supervisory Board, subject to the current 
profile, for nomination as a member of the Supervisory 
Board. 
The Supervisory Board has discussed the reappointments 
and the non-retiring members are unanimous in their view 
that the knowledge and experience of Mr Hazewinkel and 
Mr Houben correspond with the desired expertise as set  
out in the profile drawn up by the Supervisory Board. The 
non-retiring members of the Supervisory Board consider  
the reappointment of Mr Hazewinkel and Mr Houben to be 
in the interests of TKH in view of their knowledge of the 
workings of an international concern as well as their finan-
cial and commercial competence and experience of a listed 
company. The Supervisory Board will therefore nominate  
Mr Hazewinkel and Mr Houben as candidates for reappoint-
ment as members of the Supervisory Board. The appoint-
ments will be for a period of four years. After these changes 
the composition of the Supervisory Board will still be in 
compliance with the requirement that its members are  
independent within the meaning of best practice provision 
III.2.2. in the Corporate Governance Code.

Committees
In evaluating TKH’s corporate governance structure the 
Supervisory Board concluded in its August meeting that it 
would be desirable to make an alteration regarding the 
application of the Code and, in accordance with principle 

III.5, by setting up a separate Selection and Appointment 
Committee to handle matters previously carried out by the 
combined Appointment and Remuneration Committee. 
Although the duties of the two committees are closely inter-
related, the Supervisory Board considered that it would be 
better to split them in order to ensure that the subjects 
dealt with in the separate committees receive proportionate 
time and attention. It follows that since August 2012 TKH’s 
Supervisory Board has had three committees: the Selection 
and Appointment Committee, the Remuneration Committee 
and the Audit Committee.

The duties of the Selection and Appointment Committee in 
any event include drawing up selection criteria and appoint-
ment procedures for members of the Supervisory Board and 
the Executive Board, assessing the size and composition of 
the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board and making 
a proposal for a job profile for the Supervisory Board,  
assessing the functioning of individual members of the 
Supervisory Board and the Executive Board and reporting  
on this to the Supervisory Board. 

The Committee is also responsible for assessing the balanced 
distribution of responsibilities in both the Executive Board 
and the Supervisory Board and making recommendations for 
this (Article 2:391 (7) Civil Code), and it endeavours to fulfil 
the conditions of the guideline in so far as suitable candi-
dates can be found for any vacancies that arise. The Selection 
and Appointment Committee consists of Mr H.J. Hazewinkel 
(chairman) and Mrs M.E. van Lier Lels. 

The Remuneration Committee advises the Supervisory Board 
on the remuneration policy for the Executive Board and the 
Supervisory Board and makes proposals for this purpose.  
The Remuneration Committee met twice in the year under 
review. Among other things, the Remuneration Committee 
evaluated the remuneration policy of the Executive Board in 
the presence of the chairman of the Executive Board and 
discussed general social trends in this field. The remunera-
tion report, which explains the remuneration policy and 
describes the remuneration of the members of the Executive 
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Board, can be found on page 114 The Remuneration Committee 
consists of Mrs M.E. van Lier Lels (chair) and Mr P. Morley. 

The Audit Committee met three times during the year under 
review. The external accountant attended two of these meetings. 
At the invitation of the Audit Committee these meetings 
were also attended by TKH’s CFO, the Internal Auditor and 
the Director Finance & Control. The Chairman of the Audit 
Committee also had a meeting with the external auditor 
outside the regular meetings. An important agenda item at 
every meeting of the Committee is the company’s internal 
risk management and control system. Other topics dealt with 
at the regular meetings included taxes, pension issues, 
impairment analyses and future IFRS guidelines. The external 
auditor’s findings concerning the audit of the annual 
accounts and the review of the internal control procedures 
were also discussed in detail. In performing the auditing 
activities the external auditor once again make use of the 
work of TKH’s Internal Auditor in 2012. The Internal Auditor 
reported on the findings from his audit activities. The Audit 
Committee evaluated the functioning of the external auditor 
in terms of the quality of the audits, the sufficiency and 
implementation of the audit engagement, the quality and 
depth of the reporting and any additional input. It discussed 
its findings with the external auditor himself, the Super-
visory Board and the Executive Board. Special attention was 
paid in the year under review to the changes in the law that 
will be introduced by the Accountancy Profession Act and 
how they might affect TKH when the Act comes into force. 
The Audit Committee found that there is a good working 
relationship between the external auditor and the Internal 
Auditor. In its meeting in March 2012 the Audit Committee 
advised the Supervisory Board to recommend the reappoint-
ment of Deloitte Accountants as independent auditor for the 
2012 financial year to the shareholders. The Supervisory 
Board adopted this recommendation. The Audit Committee 
also noted that the auditor had operated independently. 

An extra meeting was held to discuss the proposed acquisi-
tion of Augusta. At this meeting the Audit Committee 
discussed the results of the due diligence investigation and 

the conditions set out in the bid letter. The chairman of the 
Audit Committee reports the main findings of each meeting 
to the Supervisory Board. 
The members of the Audit Committee are Mr P.P.F.C. Houben 
(chairman) and Mr H.J. Hazewinkel as financial expert  
within the meaning of the Corporate Governance Code.  
Mr E.D.H. de Lange, TKH’s Chief Financial Officer, serves as 
advisor. 

Final remarks
2012 was a year marked by economic recession and by a 
corresponding reluctance to invest in a number of end 
markets in which TKH operates. The efficiency improve-
ments made in the organisation and the resulting cost 
savings have shown that the TKH organisation is capable of 
responding swiftly to these changing circumstances. The 
constant focus on innovation and a strong market position 
have provided a sound foundation for the TKH organisation. 

In the year under review the emphasis was on adjusting the 
capacity and efficiency of the organisation on the basis of 
restructuring programmes. These measures were necessary, 
but not easy in view of the social responsibility. Much effort 
was also put into strengthening the technology basis and 
commercial power of the company. This requires dedication 
and passion on the part of the employees as well as a sense 
of solidarity with TKH. We take this opportunity to thank 
the Executive Board and all TKH’s employees for the special 
efforts they have made during the past year in the further 
development of the TKH group. We wish them every success 
in the realisation of the objectives in 2013. 

Haaksbergen, 5 March 2013

On behalf of the Supervisory Board
H.J. Hazewinkel, chairman
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Executive Board Executive Board
Alexander van der Lof MBA,  
Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Elling de Lange MBA,  
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Arne Dehn, Member

Telecom Solutions
Elling de Lange MBA

Building Solutions
Arne Dehn

Industrial Solutions
Alexander van der Lof MBA 

Strategic Committee
Alexander van der Lof MBA – TKH
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TKH Staff
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Renate Dieperink MBA

Company secretary / CSR
Renate Dieperink MBA
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TKH’s results in 2012 were negatively affected 

by the economic downturn that started in 2011. 

During 2012, the conditions in the construction 

and infrastructure-related market worsened even 

further, especially in Europe. 

In response, TKH implemented an efficiency programme 
within the Building Solutions segment in the second half of 
2012 and brought the capacity of the organisation more in 
line with the market conditions. The adjusted capacity, 
however, still offers sufficient room for growth and allows 
us to respond quickly to changing demands and opportuni-
ties in the market. Since investment decisions are increasingly 
being taken at the last moment, flexibility is essential.

Our investments in innovations and commercial effective-
ness bore fruit, resulting in a strong upward trend of the 
result during the year, which compensated for the economic 
downturn. In the fourth quarter, an operating result was 
achieved with a margin of 9.5% excluding acquisitions and 
9.7% including acquisitions. The order intake in the 
Industrial Solutions segment during the third and fourth 
quarters of the year was at a higher level than in the  
previous quarters, and the negative trend in order intake 
since mid-2011 was turned into a positive one. From the 
second quarter of 2013, this will positively affect turnover 
and results in this segment.

TKH Group once again devoted considerable attention to the 
realisation of its strategic targets. Key milestones were the 
strengthening of our position in vision technology following 
the acquisition of a majority stake in Augusta Technologie, 
plus the realisation of our target to book at least 20% of the 
TKH annual turnover in vision and security systems. These 

milestones have created opportunities for new growth in 
selected vertical markets in which TKH can excel, thanks to 
its high-grade technology and added value in the form of 
services and total solutions. TKH decided to change the 
name of the ‘security systems’ segment to ‘vision & security 
systems’, partly in view of the strong increase in the share  
of turnover from vision technology in this segment. 

High priority was given to the coherence of the TKH port-
folio and to the combining of TKH’s core technologies aimed 
at defined vertical markets, including optical fibre networks, 
parking, care, tunnels, marine & offshore, and tyre building. 
We expect to achieve above-average growth in the coming 
years.

The strengthening of our focus on the TKH core technologies 
connectivity, vision & security, communication, and produc-
tion systems has led to an increase in our distinctive capability 
in the end markets in which we operate. In particular, the 
interesting combinations of these technologies lead to a 
stronger combined force.

Many actions have been initiated to further strengthen  
the internal organisation, in order to be able to expand 
TKH’s market position in the coming years. We have again 
strengthened our position by further integrating and  
clustering our activities.

TKH believes there is still room to improve its ROS through  
a shift in business mix and the positioning of parts of the 
portfolio in market segments where we can provide greater 
added value. TKH once again made substantial investments 
in technology and R&D capacity to ensure that we are able 
to increase our technological lead. This can lead to new 
market positions and growth in market share. The ROS 
dropped to 7.8% in 2012, from 8.7% in 2011, largely due to 
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the high cost level combined with the surplus production 
capacity in the first half, plus investments in the organisa-
tion. The strong rise in ROS during the fourth quarter to 
9.7% illustrates the potential for further growth. It should 
be noted, however, that TKH’s ROS is always strongest in the 
fourth quarter. 

Due to the large investments in relation to the acquired 
companies as well as the relatively high cost level in relation 
to the organic turnover – and the related impact on the 
margin – ROCE decreased from 21.5% to 16.0%. This meant 
that the medium-term bandwidth target for ROCE of 18–20% 
was not achieved this year. We did, however, strengthen the 
basis for achieving the target bandwidth, especially thanks 
to the development in the fourth quarter. Within the  
activities of TKH, there is a potential for improvement of  
the ROCE ratio and we have initiated several programmes  
to achieve this improvement.

With the new financing arrangement agreed in 2011, we 
have adequately covered our financing needs for 2012. For 
the purpose of the acquisition of Augusta Technology, a 
specific financing agreement in the amount of € 100 million 
was concluded within the existing arrangement. All six 
banks from the original arrangement participated in this 
new agreement. The process of acquiring this financing 
went smoothly, which really contributed to the success of 
the takeover process.

The strong contribution of innovations to the 2012 turnover 
(21.2%, compared with 22.8% in 2011) once again underlines 
the success of TKH Group. 

There was fruitful cooperation within the solutions 
segments, which was stimulated by the Solution Boards.  
The synergies created had a positive effect on the result.  
The competence centres within the solutions segments 
contributed significantly to the transfer of knowledge for 
the purpose of increasing the positioning of the innovations 
within the TKH Group. This should help TKH to achieve a 
greater geographical spread in the core markets in which it 
operates.

The organic growth of a number of segments was also  
positively influenced by the geographical development of 
the TKH portfolio. The share of turnover outside the 
Netherlands increased from 73% in 2011 to 74% in 2012.  
In particular, the growth outside Europe had a significant  
positive effect on the international growth of the group.  
The Asian share increased from 17% in 2011 to 18% in 2012. 
The share of turnover in North America increased due to  
the expansion of the vision & security activities.

InDUSTRIAl SOlUTIOnS
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Netherlands 26 27
Europe (other) 48 49
Asia 18 17
North-America 5 4
Other 3 3

in %

  2012 2011Geographical distribution of turnover 

TElECOM SOlUTIOnS

In 2012, turnover was up € 41.3 million (3.9%) at 

€ 1,102.4 million, from € 1,061.1 million in 2011. 

Acquisitions lifted turnover by 9.1%. Reduced raw material 
prices had a negative impact of 0.2% on turnover. On balance, 
turnover fell by 5.0% organically. 

Building Solutions showed the strongest increase in turnover, 
booking a rise of 14.3%. Turnover in Telecom Solutions was 
up by 3.3%. However, Industrial Solutions recorded a decline 
of 3.8%. For the full-year 2012, Industrial Solutions accounted 
for 45% of turnover, down from 49% in 2011, while the share 
from Building Solutions increased to 40%, from 36%. Telecom 
Solutions accounted for 15% of turnover, unchanged from 
the previous year. Innovations once again made a strong 
contribution to turnover, accounting for 21.2%, compared 
with 22.8% in 2011. 

The gross margin was up in 2012 at 40.9%, from 38.9% in 
2011. Operating costs excluding one-off expenses, as a 
percentage of turnover, rose to 33.1% in 2012, from 30.2% in 
2011. When acquisitions are also excluded, operating costs in 
2012 were at a comparable level to 2011. While the cost level 
was higher in the first half of 2012 compared with the same 
period 2011, we brought this more into line with market 
conditions in the second half. Depreciations came in at € 17.5 
million, above the € 15.3 million booked in 2011, due to the 

higher level of investments in 2011 and 2012. The operating 
result before amortisation of intangible assets and one-off 
income and expenses fell by 6.4% to € 86.2 million in 2012, 
from € 92.1 million in 2011. The EBITA in Telecom Solutions 
was up 13.5% compared with 2011. At Building Solutions, 
EBITA rose by 11.9% mainly due to acquisitions. EBITA at 
Industrial Solutions was 13.8% lower than in the previous 
year, primarily due to lower order intake in 2011 and in the 
first half of 2012. The ROS for TKH Group as a whole dropped 
to 7.8% in 2012, from 8.7% in 2011. 

In 2012, an amount of € 4.2 million was spent in relation to 
acquisition costs, largely for the acquisition of the majority 
stake in Augusta Technologie (2011: € 2.0 million for the 
acquisition of Siqura). The one-off expenses for the imple-
mentation of efficiency programmes came in at € 8.0 million 
in 2012 and are included in the costs. In 2012, in the context 
of these programmes, we also included an impairment of  
€ 3.3 million in the fourth quarter, largely related to loss-
making activities in Building Solutions, which will be discon-
tinued and/or divested. 

The operating result including these one-off expenses fell  
by € 16.1 million or 17.8% to € 74.0 million. Amortisation 
charges were up € 7.8 million at € 20,9 million, from  
€ 13.1 million in 2011, largely due to the acquisitions of KLS 
Netherlands (2011), Aasset Security and Augusta Technologie. 
Financing costs increased to € 12.1 million in 2012, from € 7.4 
million in 2011. This increase was primarily due to a higher 
outstanding interest-bearing debt and a negative currency 
exchange rate effect of € 0.7 million compared to 2011. 

The 2012 results include a exceptional gain of € 3.0 million 
from the release of a provision for earn-out and put-options 
held by minority shareholders. The tax burden rose to 23.9% 
in 2012, from 22.3% in 2011, largely because 2011 included a 
one-off benefit on previous years from the application of the 
Dutch innovation tax facility.

Net profit before amortisation and one-off income and 
expenses, attributable to shareholders came in at € 47.8 

2012 2011

Geographical distribution of turnover 



Dividend proposal 

At the General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on  
7 May 2013, TKH will propose to pay a dividend of € 0.65  
per (depository receipt for a) share for 2012, compared with  
€ 0.75 for 2011. This is equivalent to a pay-out ratio of 50.8% 
of the net profit before amortisation and one-off income and 
expenses and 84.4% of net profit. TKH will propose that the 
dividend be paid out in the form of an optional dividend, in 
cash or shares, and that it be charged to the reserves. The 
pay-out of the dividend in shares will be determined one day 
after the end of the optional period on the basis of the average 
share price in the last five trading days of said optional 
period, which will end on 27 May 2013. The dividend will  
be payable, either in cash or in shares, on 30 May 2013.

InDUSTRIAl SOlUTIOnS

Turnover per solution

Dividend

million in 2012, down 20.9% from the € 60.5 million reported 
in 2011. Net profit in 2012 was € 31.0 million, down from  
€ 54.1 million in 2011. Earnings per share before amortisa-
tion and one-off income and expenses came in at € 1.28, 
compared with € 1.63 in 2011. Ordinary earnings per share 
were € 0.77, from € 1.44 in 2011. 

Cash flow from operating activities increased to € 75.2 
million, from € 47.4 million in 2011. In 2012, working 
capital as a percentage of turnover was 13.1%, up from  
11.6% in 2011, largely due to acquisitions. 

TKH made net investments in tangible and intangible assets 
of € 25.7 million in 2012, compared with € 21.9 million in 
2011. A large proportion of these related to investments in 
production locations. TKH also invested € 96.1 million net in 
acquisitions and participations and € 14.1 million in intangi-
ble fixed assets, mainly R&D, patents and licences, which 
compares to € 7.7 million in 2011. Net bank debt had increased 
to € 188.2 million at year-end 2012, up € 94.4 million from 
year-end 2011. The solvency ratio dropped to 41.1% in 2012, 
from 45.6% in 2011. TKH operates well within the financial 
ratios agreed with its banks. The Net Debt/EBITDA ratio was 
1.6 and the interest coverage ratio was 9.8. 

TKH employed a total staff of 4,736 FTE at year-end 2012, 
compared with 4,062 a year earlier. The increase in the 
number of employees was almost entirely due to acquisitions.
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existing portfolio will have priority and we will continue to 
invest in innovations.

The following acquisitions were realised successfully 
in 2012.

On 12 March 2012, TKH has reached agreement on the acqui-
sition of 100% of the shares in Aasset Security International 
(Aasset), headquartered in Paris (France), with its subsidiaries 
Aasset France and Aasset Germany, and branches in Italy and 
UK. Aasset is a leading provider of security solutions and 
video surveillance. The company is one of Europe’s leading 
distributors of CCTV products. This acquisition accelerates 
TKH’s strategic growth strategy in the security segment. 
Aasset’s brand portfolio includes the brand name GRUNDIG. 
After the acquisition, TKH has further positioned this brand 
within Europe. The activities of Aasset are integrated in the 
sub-segment vision & security systems, which is part of TKH’s 
Building Solutions. Aasset has 88 employees (FTE) and an 
annual turnover of € 35 million.

On 29 March 2012, TKH has strengthened its position in 
parking solutions with the acquisition of 51% of the shares of 
Parking + Protection in Oosterhout (the Netherlands). The 
activities of Parking + Protection focuses on project manage-
ment, security, surveillance and exploitation in parking 
projects. The techniques in the field of parking systems are 
already largely purchased by TKH companies, including 
Scanton, Keyprocessor and BB-LightConcepts.  
Parking + Protection also has a full-service monitoring 
concept and has its own service and maintenance depart-
ment. Under the name “Switch Park” Parking + Protection 
provides organizations the ability to exploit their available 
parking spaces to third parties. Parking + Protection will 
closely collaborates with companies from the TKH parking 
cluster. In addition, there is a close cooperation with the 

Part of TKH’s strategy is to achieve growth  

both organically and through acquisitions.  

In its acquisitions policy TKH focuses on  

structurally healthy companies with a strong 

position in the Telecom, Building and Industrial 

Solutions segments that are important to us. 

The acquisitions policy is based on filling in the ‘blank 
spots’, with a geographic focus on Northwest, Central and 
Eastern Europe and Asia. TKH is also increasingly looking  
for candidates with technology that will supplement TKH’s 
existing portfolio and strengthen its position in the existing 
solution segments. TKH’s aim is to make an average of be- 
tween one and three acquisitions a year, each representing 
turnover of between € 10 million and € 50 million. 

In light of TKH’s objective of increasing the share of its total 
turnover accounted for by security solutions to 20%, the 
company’s priority in 2012 was on acquisitions in that 
segment. We searched for companies with complementary 
technologies and portfolio.

As a result of the ambition to further strengthen TKH and to 
enable further growth, acquisition opportunities continuously 
will get high priority. TKH has a list of potential acquisition 
candidates. Contacts with some of these candidates are  
maintained.

In the coming period, in addition, the focus will be on an 
optimal integration of the acquired companies in the TKH 
organization. Knowledge sharing and specialization in depth 
in the field of product development and R&D will be part of 
this process. Besides, a further geographic rollout of the 

PARKInG + PROTECTIOn | BUIlDInG SOlUTIOnS Acquisitions, investments and divestments

 26



such as intelligent traffic solutions, medical applications and 
industrial inspection. The geographic complementarity of 
TKH and Augusta provides stronger access to major American 
and Asian markets, in addition to our European presence. 
The international footprint of TKH will increase considerably. 

As of 2 July 2012, Augusta is financially consolidated in TKH’s 
results, with 60% of the activities included within Building 
Solutions (vision & security systems) and the remaining 40% 
within Industrial Solutions (manufacturing systems). 

Investments
In 2012, the net investment in non-current assets totalled  
€ 25.7 million (2011: € 21.9 million). The most important 
investments related to the expansion of production capacity 
for optical fibre in China, specialty cable in Germany, ICT 
and efficiency improvements in the segment manufacturing 
systems in the Netherlands as well as replacement invest-
ments. Depreciation on non-current assets totalled € 17.5 
million in 2012 (2011: € 15.3 million). 

security cluster companies of TKH. The activities of Parking + 
Protection are integrated in the sub-segment building  
technologies, belonging to Building Solutions. Parking + 
Protection generates an annual turnover of more than  
€ 3 million.

On 3 April 2012, TKH announced that it has entered into  
a transaction agreement with German listed Augusta 
Technologie AG (‘Augusta’) and decided to make, through an 
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, a voluntary public take-
over offer to all shareholders of Augusta to acquire all 
outstanding shares in Augusta. The final offer was € 23.00 
per share Augusta. At the expiry of the acceptance period on 
22 June 2012, TKH secured 59.73% of all outstanding Augusta 
shares (excluding treasury shares), as a result of which all 
offer conditions were satisfied. 

Augusta is an integrated technology company with a focus 
on niche markets of digital image processing and optical 
sensors. The core vision technology segment focuses on the 
supply of digital cameras and optical sensor systems for  
automation and enhancing quality, safety and efficiency. 
It develops and produces both standard products and customer-
specific systems for a broad range of applications in a 
number of sectors including manufacturing, medical tech-
nology, multimedia, transport and security technology. 
Augusta stands out through its international presence and 
good customer service. The Augusta group has a workforce of 
481 employees and is headquartered in Munich (Germany) 
with a presence in Europe, Asia, USA and Canada. It gener-
ated revenues of € 112 million and an EBITDA of € 21 million 
in the financial year 2012. 

Through the acquisition of Augusta, TKH creates, one of the 
leading platforms in the strongly growing market of vision 
technology and providing the combined operations with the 
scale and capabilities to become the global leader in this 
segment. Augusta matches perfectly to the existing TKH 
activities in the market of vision and security systems. 
Through this transaction we can build on a leading vision 
technology group which strongly focuses on vertical markets BUIlDInG SOlUTIOnS | AUGUSTA
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parking solutions, care solutions, industrial connectivity 
systems and cable manufacturing NL. In addition, the secu-
rity solutions and parking solutions clusters work closely 
together on technology development. Following the acquisi-
tion of Augusta the aim is to create one of the leading  
platforms in the rapidly growing vision technology market 
in the future. 

To ensure that solutions have maximum coherence, TKH  
has set up Solution Boards consisting of the managers, 
particularly the cluster managers, of the operating com-
panies. These Solution Boards concentrate mainly on port-
folio management, business development and measures to  
optimise the profitability of the solutions segment. The 
Strategic Committee supports the Executive Board in imple-
menting decisions on strategic issues. Among the matters  
it considers are acquisitions, organisational development 
and management development. In the year under review  
the members of the Strategic Committee were involved in 
discussions of potential acquisitions and provided important 
advice on choices to be made in relation to development of 
the portfolio and organisational measures as part  
of the restructuring plans.

Operational excellence
To achieve operational excellence and optimal results for 
customers and employees, TKH uses various operational 
management models, which together constitute an opera-
tional excellence programme. The aim of this programme is 
to ensure the excellence of our operational processes. This is 
to be reflected in the efficiency and quality of the processes, 
a low rate of wastage and outage, minimisation of produc-
tion costs, complete control over process flows and an inno-
vative and flexible organisation, as well as maximum ability 
to meet the wishes of our customers. The LEAN programme 
is regarded within TKH as an important basis for operational 
excellence. LEAN is a method for eliminating all wastage 
from the production process, taking into account the value 
added in a production process. Here, the customer’s wishes 
are paramount within the production process. The LEAN 
programme not only results in a huge improvement in the 

TKH has a decentralised organisational  

structure, based on the business segments 

Telecom, Building and Industrial Solutions.  

This structure allows TKH to respond quickly 

and flexibly to opportunities in the market. 

TKH’s operations are characterised by short lines of commu-
nication, delegation of authority and entrepreneurship. 
Responsibilities are assigned as deeply as possible in the 
organisation to encourage local entrepreneurship. 

The quality of both the organisation and the employees is a 
decisive factor in the success and growth of the TKH Group. 
We therefore demand a lot of our employees. In turn, the 
employees are clear about what is expected of them and how 
they can play an active part. TKH’s strategy, and the ensuing 
challenging but realistic targets, focuses on a market-driven, 
innovative approach. This approach helps us to bundle the 
strengths of our operating companies and ensure clear cohe-
sion in our activities. Creating a fine working environment 
with open communication is important in order to stimu-
late synergy and cooperation. 

Clusters of operating companies are formed within TKH on 
the basis of overlapping activities and portfolios, thereby 
promoting cooperation and synergy. Within each cluster 
activities such as product development (R&D), marketing 
and communication, sales support and facilities manage-
ment are organised collectively. This arrangement also 
ensures consistency in branding and customer approach and 
clear positioning in a number of specific vertical markets.  
A manager is appointed to take responsibility for each  
cluster. TKH has clusters in such fields as security solutions, 

Personnel and organisation
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foundations in order to realise its ambitions for growth. 
The number of employees (FTE) at the end of 2012 was 4,736 
(2011: 4,062 FTEs). 

Central Works Council
The Executive Board and the Central Works Council held 
good and intensive consultations together in 2012. Many 
subjects were discussed, including organisational develop-
ments, the employee satisfaction survey and the restructuring 
programme. The Central Works Council also played a part in 
the discussions of the proposed acquisitions, with intensive 
discussion of the Augusta acquisition in particular. Other 
regular topics of discussion were the work-related expenses 
scheme and the developments concerning pensions.  
A member of the Central Works Council has a seat on a 
specially constituted pensions committee. To strengthen the 
ties between the Works Councils and other staff represen-
tative bodies in the Dutch operating companies, TKH organises 
an annual Works Council Day. This year’s event was held at 
VMI in Epe on 9 November. The programme included a 
presentation on general developments at TKH and presen-
tations on the work-related expenses scheme, talent manage-
ment and the employee satisfaction survey. The management 
of VMI gave a general presentation about VMI, which was 
followed by a guided tour. One meeting of the Central Works 
Council was attended by a delegation from the Supervisory 
Board. The subjects discussed at this meeting were TKH’s 
strategy and operational matters affecting TKH and its oper-
ating companies. TKH attaches great importance to its 
discussions with the Central Works Council and to an open 
dialogue. We consider that an enterprising approach to 
employee representation helps to stay alert.

production operations but also makes staff aware of their 
actions. LEAN involves the use of a ‘flat hierarchy’ with a 
large degree of responsibility and competence at grass-roots 
level. The status of the process is visible everywhere and at 
all times by means of the zone control and visual manage-
ment instruments. 
TKH always tries to exceed the customer’s expectations by 
offering best-in-class solutions. In order to meet customer 
expectations effectively TKH has put ‘customer intimacy’ 
high on the agenda in the past year. By placing the customer 
central to the customer and by delegating decision-making 
to levels deep within our organisation we are able to build a 
relationship of trust with our customers. We know what 
they want and we are able to provide tailor-made solutions. 

The entrepreneurial spirit and the scale of the business 
units appeal to many employees, who regard TKH as an 
organisation in which they can achieve personal growth 
with a large degree of independence and responsibility.  
The innovative spirit of TKH also contributes to its appeal. 
Accordingly, the TKH Group has a reputation as an interest-
ing organisation to work for. Careful consideration was 
given to the preservation of knowledge, expertise and skills 
when adjustments were made to the organisation in line 
with the changing circumstances in the past few years.  
This has guaranteed the continuity of the organisation and 
in 2012 TKH was able to continue building on the existing 
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TKH’s Central Works Council consists of 
the following members

Gerard Töpfer (VMI), chairman

Ron Broekman (VMI)
Louis Scholten (TKF)
Herbert Hennen (Eldra)
André Bezemer (Isolectra)
Aernout de Feiter (EKB)
Wouter Hermelink (Siqura)
Gerard Roolvink (TKF), also official secretary.



TKH has been reporting on Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) for some years. We have 

taken a pragmatic approach that focuses on 

reporting on specific, defined CSR projects. 

We consider it is desirable to go a step further each year in 
reporting on our CSR initiatives, activities and results and 
have therefore decided to follow the international sustaina-
bility reporting guidelines of the Global Reporting Initiative 
(GRI). This is our first report based on these guidelines. We 
wish to embark on this process very carefully, adopting a 
thorough approach to subjects such as the stakeholder 
dialogue. We will take further steps in this direction in the 
present reporting year. Nonetheless, we consider this whole 
subject to be so important that we wish to start reporting as 
fully as possible on CSR, thereby emphasising our position 
that CSR is an important strategic priority in our efforts to 
continue achieving growth in the future. We are safeguard-
ing this by integrating CSR into our strategy in 2013, both in 
our financial and non-financial objectives. 

Approach and scope
In this report we render account for our CSR performance in 
2012. In doing so we concentrate on those CSR subjects that 
are addressed in our CSR policy and for which data are  
available. In 2013 we will carry out an extensive materiality 
analysis with our stakeholders in order to determine with 
them what CSR topics are most relevant to TKH and how 
they can be reflected in our performance. In this report the 
data relate, in principle, to all our operating companies. 
Explicit mention will be made of any instances where this is 
not the case. 

CSR mission
As an international technology group TKH wishes to help 
build a sustainable society. This means that every business 
decision we take will be assessed not only in terms of its 
effect on profitability but also in terms of any consequences 
and effects it may have on our employees and stakeholders 
and its impact on the environment and our reputation. 
By conducting business in keeping with the principles of 
CSR, TKH wishes to constantly ensure that its technological 
solutions and corresponding services meet current demands 
and needs without jeopardising future needs and facilities. 

CSR policy
TKH attaches great importance to corporate social responsi-
bility. We are aware of our social duty and have named CSR 
as one of our strategic priorities for the coming years. In 
doing so we have taken the position that business can be 
conducted in a sustainable manner only if an integrated 
approach to CSR policy is adopted in day-to-day operations. 
In its policy on CSR, TKH takes account of the effect of its 
activities and business operations in four domains (the 4Ps): 
People, Planet, Profit and Positioning.

• ‘Planet’ is concern for the environment and climate - the 
impact of business on the natural environment.

• ‘People’ is the social aspect of the business - consequences of 
the business for people. 

• ‘Profit’ is the economic side of business – a precondition for 
the company’s survival.

• ‘Positioning’ is the place and distinctiveness of the 
company in the world in which it operates - safeguarding its 
reputation.

TKH’s ambition is an integrated approach to CSR themes 
and maintaining a good balance between short and long-
term results while not losing sight of corporate interests. 

Corporate Social Responsibility
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Targets will increasingly be linked to key performance indi-
cators (KPIs), so that the results are measurable and better 
suited as input for decision-making (a so-called CSR dash-
board). 

CSR standards and guidelines
Within the CSR framework we focus on certain specific 
standards and guidelines. We apply the GRI Guidelines in 
order to shape our CSR policy and reporting and set goals.  
In applying these GRI Guidelines we seek to make the inter-
nal reporting on CSR an integral part of our business opera-
tions. In this way we wish to structure and monitor our 
sustainability information and communicate it more effec-
tively to stakeholders. 

In addition, TKH operates in accordance with ISO 9001  
(quality) and 14001 (environment) certified systems. The  
CO

2 
performance ladder has been implemented by some 

operating companies at a level 3 certification level. As far as 
human rights are concerned, it goes without saying for TKH 
that its business activities should be conducted in accordance 
with the Universal Declaration of Human Rights. 

To safeguard the CSR policy the Executive Board is directly 
involved in CSR developments within the TKH organisation 
and personal targets are linked to CSR performance. TKH  
has a CSR officer who works closely with the Director 
Finance & Control in configuring the CSR dashboard and 
with the Internal Auditor in checking the correct applica-
tion of the CSR themes when auditing the TKH operating 
companies. This also ensures that possible reputational risks 
can be identified in time. 

Progress of 2012 CSR programme
The table on the next page shows by reference to the 4Ps 
what goals have been formulated and what progress has 
been made in implementing the CSR policy in the organisa-
tion. This is supplemented by the performance indicators 
applied in the context of the GRI Guidelines. 

Planet the effects of the business on the natural 
environment
Sustainability is about making sustainable use of resources 
such as raw materials but also about energy and water 
consumption. To obtain information about these elements 
TKH has decided that in any event all production-related 
operating companies should implement and be certified  
for ISO 14001. This certification will ensure that the TKH  
operating companies and their employees are familiar  
with the environmental policy and aware of relevant  
environmental themes. 

Energy and CO2 reduction
To reduce energy consumption TKH has introduced an 
energy reduction programme for all operating companies. 
This involves monitoring the consumption of fuel (litres), 
electricity (KwH) and natural gas (m3). Electricity consump-
tion is the greatest in absolute terms since it is used in the 
production process and for the lighting of buildings, the 
ventilation and air conditioning systems and the extraction 
systems. Gas is used for heating buildings and, to a limited 
extent (<5%), for industrial process heating. Diesel and fuel 
oil are used above all in the Asian and Scandinavian coun-
tries. Consumption rose in absolute volumes due, among 
other things, to the expansion of production capacity. In 
relation to turnover, however, consumption fell by 16.6%. As 
the production process is dependent on electricity it is hard 
to cut consumption. Where possible, measures have been 
taken in the production process to reduce electricity 
consumption, for example by using energy-efficient motors 
and replacing welding equipment by energy-efficient 
systems. In addition, VMI in Epe invested in a solar energy 
system in 2012. Gas consumption has fallen in absolute 
volumes as a result of specific savings measures, including 
better insulation, investment in building management 
systems and the installation of high speed doors to prevent 
draughts. 
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Planet the effects of the business on the natural environment.

Subject 

Energy and CO2 reduction 
(2008: base year)

Raw materials consumption and  
waste reduction

Water

Consumption of paper and printed 
matter (2008: base year)

IT equipment

Goal 

•  25% reduction in energy consumption in 2015.
•  25% reduction in CO2 emissions in 2015.

Maintain position on CO2 performance ladder at 
level 3.

From 2012, the average CO2 emission of new additi-
ons to the lease car fleet may not exceed 135 g/km.

Create awareness of raw materials consumption 
(with the ultimate goal of reducing it) and awareness 
of waste by a percentage yet to be defined.

Reduce water consumption and prevent spillage.

A saving of 30% in the consumption of paper and 
printed matter. 

 Dispose of hardware in environmentally-friendly 
manner and arrange for IT equipment to be  
recycled for social purposes. 

Result

• Reduction in energy use in 2012: 16.6%.
• Reduction of CO2 emissions  2012: 16.5%. 

• Position on CO2 performance ladder at level 3 
maintained.

• Total fleet of lease cars 2012: 132.3 g/km.
• New additions to the lease car fleet: 113.7 g/km.

•  Information about raw materials consumption.
• Information about waste flows.
• Establishment of a system to monitor waste 

flows, with the ultimate goal or reducing the 
quantity of waste. 

• Information about water consumption, broken 
down into information about tap water and 
ground water. 

• Establishment of a water consumption  
monitoring system to prevent spillage and 
reduce consumption. 

• Paper in accordance with FSC standard.
• Increased digitalisation of documents. 

• Drawing up of procedures.
• Selection of certified companies for destruction 

of hardware and guarantee of secure destruction 
of information on laptops and PCs.

Scope

All operating companies

Dutch cable production companies

Dutch operating companies

All production companies

All production companies

All operating companies

All operating companies
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Reduction of raw material consumption and waste
The market wants systems and solutions that adopt a  
considered and thoughtful approach to materials, raw  
materials and resources. Under its operational excellence 
programme, TKH continually focuses on improving its 
consumption of raw materials and reducing waste and 
errors in the production process. Under the LEAN 
Programme, projects are being carried out at some TKH 
operating companies to improve raw materials consumption. 
‘LEAN’ is a method for eliminating all wastage from the 
production process, taking into account the value added in 
a production process. Raw materials are used within TKH 
mainly by production-related companies. As certain raw 
materials such as plastics and copper are becoming more 
scarce, there is a risk of price rises. For TKH too, therefore, it 
is becoming increasingly important to have more information 
not just about raw materials consumption but also about 
waste flows and production errors. Here, Planet and Profit 
go hand in hand. The goal is to eliminate waste by targeted 
measures designed to avoid any negative impact on people 
and the environment and at the same time save costs. 
Programmes are under way within all TKH production 
companies to analyse and reduce consumption of raw  
materials and also identify and reduce waste flows at each 
production unit TKH also aims to separate waste flows. By 
achieving better separation at source, TKH has managed to 
identify the different types and categories of waste and what 
potential savings can be made. This is also enabling it to 
develop a more active recycling policy. 

Water consumption
The cable production companies are the largest consumers 
of water within TKH. Two categories of water are consumed 
within TKH: tap water and ground water. Tap water is used 
principally for cooling in the production process and for 
sanitary purposes. Ground water is used only for cooling in 
those parts of the production process where the cooling 
systems are virtually sealed. The use of water for cooling is 
dependent on the production capacity. Improvements in the 
production process have resulted in a decline in the propor-
tion of ground water consumption in recent years. More  

efficient use is now made of ground water partly due to 
sealed cooling systems. Programmes for the reduction of 
water consumption by all production companies within the 
group have been introduced. 

Reduction of paper consumption
TKH has set itself the goal of achieving savings of 30% in the 
consumption of paper and printed matter in 2015 (with 
2008 as base year). As regards overall paper consumption, 
TKH has stipulated that the operating companies should use 
environmentally friendly paper in accordance with the FSC 
standard. Part of the programme includes the recycling of 
paper. To achieve the target reduction TKH has ruled that 
the standard printer set-up for all PCs should be double-
sided (black-and-white) printing. It is also thought that the 
increasingly intensive use of digital communication chan-
nels, including intranet and social media tools, will reduce 
paper consumption since reports and brochures are increas-
ingly being distributed through these media. It is also 
becoming common practice to circulate documents for 
meetings digitally. 

Collection of old IT equipment
Computers and electrical equipment contain components 
that are harmful to the environment on account of, among 
other things, certain chemicals they contain. Besides  
arranging for the environmentally friendly removal of  
the material, TKH will seek to recycle IT equipment in the 
coming year in compliance with the CSR Guidelines. In doing 
so we will use certified companies that guarantee the complete 
destruction of not only the hardware but also our data. We will 
also study whether we can fulfil a social need by arranging 
for outdated computers to be used in developing countries 
or at schools and institutions.

Owing to the information obtained about energy consumption 
it was also possible to find out about the CO

2
 footprint, which 

is the total of CO
2
 emissions per year. The goal is to achieve a 

25% reduction in both energy consumption and the CO
2
 emis-

sions in 2015 compared with the base year of 2008. The  
CO

2
 emissions in 2012 were 16.5% lower than in the base year 

of 2008. Energy carriers that accounted for a significant level 
of consumption in the 2011 carbon footprint are electricity, 
gaseous and other fossil fuels and, to a lesser extent, passenger 
car traffic. The reduction target for CO

2
 emissions can be 

achieved by reducing the gas and energy consumption in  
buildings and in the production processes. 
Two TKH operating companies are certified on level 3 of the 
CO

2
 performance ladder. This instrument was designed to help 

companies find out about their own CO
2
 production in order 

to eventually realise a reduction. TKH’s decision to apply for 
certification on the CO

2
 performance ladder was taken to 

demonstrate to our customers and other stakeholders that we 
are serious in our commitment to reducing CO

2
 emissions.  

TKH at least wishes to maintain certification at level 3. 

The energy reduction programme is enabling TKH to deal 
more efficiently with energy consumption. Our focus on 
energy reduction also extends to the behaviour of our 
employees. Raising awareness continues to be a major priority. 
We will continue to pass on environmentally-friendly tips to 
employees as this helps to reduce energy consumption.

Vehicle fleet
The ‘greening’ of the vehicle fleet will also help to reduce 
CO

2
 emissions. New additions to the fleet consist of vehicles 

that carry the A, B or C label under the Dutch system of 
vehicle CO

2
 emission classification. From 2012, the average 

CO
2
 emission of new lease cars may not exceed 135 g/km. In 

2020 this must have been reduced under European direc-
tives to 95 g/km. The average CO

2
 emission per g/km of TKH’s 

existing Dutch lease fleet in 2012 was 132.3 g/km (2011: 
148.5 g/km). The new additions to the lease fleet in 2012 had 
average CO

2
 emissions of 113.7 g/km (2011: 136.1). This shows 

that TKH’s sustainability policy is being successfully trans-
lated to our vehicle leasing policy. 



People the consequences of the business for our people.

Result

• Code of conduct is available to all employees. 
• Forms part of the letter of representation of 

TKH operating companies.
• Code provisions on ethics and human rights 

tightened up.

• Performance and talent management to be 
dealt with during TKH meetings.

• Framing of training plan for each operating 
company.

• Continuation of Management Development  
programme.

• Meetings organised.
• Implementation of Yammer communication  

platform.

•  Employee satisfaction survey with an average  
score of 7.2. 

• Implementation of improvement plans.

• Rate of sick leave in 2012: 3.02%.
• Establishment of sound accident registration  

system.

• Information about all age categories.

Goal

Compliance with the TKH Code of Conduct.

Constant investment in our staff at all job levels, 
thereby helping to ensure that personal goals are 
achieved and that ambitions can be realised. 
Implementation of talent management.

Encourage knowledge-sharing to maximise  
cooperation and synergy.

Provide an insight into the motivation, satisfaction 
and expectations of the employees.

Pursue proactive policy on sick leave and avoid 
any form of personal injury and/or harm to human 
health.

Frame an age management policy designed to 
maximise the employability of all employees. 

Scope

All operating companies

All operating companies

All operating companies

Operating companies with > 25 FTE

All operating companies

All operating companies

Subject

TKH Code of Conduct

Education and training courses  
and sessions

Knowledge-sharing

Good employment practices 

Sick leave and safety

Age management policy
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People the consequences of the business for our 
people
The quality of both the organisation and the employees is a 
decisive factor in the success and growth of the TKH Group. 
We therefore demand a lot of our employees. In turn, the 
employees are clear about what is expected of them and 
what their work is helping to achieve. TKH’s strategy, and 
the ensuing challenging but realistic targets, focus on a 
market-driven, innovative approach. This approach helps us 
to bundle the strengths of our operating companies and 
ensure clear cohesion in our activities. Creating a fine work-
ing environment with open communication is important in 
order to stimulate synergy and cooperation. 

TKH Code of Conduct
The TKH Group respects the culture and customs of the 
country of establishment, without losing sight of its own 
objectives and values. The position which the TKH Group 
wishes to occupy in society is determined by our core values 
as derived from our mission and ambitions, namely involve-
ment, professionalism, cooperation & respect and society & 
integrity. The TKH Group’s operating companies endorse 
these core values. They are the parameters for our activities 
and are described in the TKH Code of Conduct. The Code of 
Conduct has been made available to all employees. To safe-
guard this and ensure that our actions are in conformity 
with the Code of Conduct a guideline on this subject has 
recently been included in the letter of representation for 
each operating company. The Code of Conduct can be down-
loaded from the TKH website. 

Part of the Code of Conduct is a whistleblower scheme. All 
employees of the TKH Group may report suspicions of 
wrongful conduct within TKH. Such a report will have no 
adverse consequences for the whistleblower if the report is 
made in accordance with the procedure established for this 
purpose. Employees may consult a counsellor appointed for 
this purpose within their own organisation or the TKH 
Group counsellor. The role of confidential counsellors was 
considered afresh in 2012 and new counsellors were 
appointed at the operating companies. 

Talent and management development
The entrepreneurial spirit and the scale of the business 
units appeal to many employees, who regard TKH as an 
organisation in which they can achieve personal growth 
with a large degree of independence and responsibility. The 
innovative spirit of TKH also contributes to its appeal. TKH 
thus has a reputation as an interesting organisation to work 
for. Careful consideration was given to the preservation of 
knowledge, expertise and skills when adjustments were 
made to the organisation in line with the changing circum-
stances in the past few years. This has guaranteed the  
continuity of the organisation and in 2012 TKH was able to 
continue building on the existing foundations in order to 
realise its ambitions for growth. 

TKH attaches great importance to maintaining constant 
investment in its staff at all levels of the organisation. In 
this way we can help the individual employee to achieve his 
or her personal goals and ambitions. For example, employees 
are given the opportunity to enhance their level of personal 
development through technical training and education 
courses, workplace know-how exchanges, expansion of 
responsibilities, coaching and on-the-job training. Qualified 
internal candidates are preferred when job vacancies arise. 
The operating companies must include an annual plan of 
action in the strategic plans for education and training and 
must make a budget available for this. 

Performance & Talent Management has been classified as a 
priority in the years ahead. Under this programme TKH 
wishes to recruit, develop and retain talents. This is not tied 
to particular jobs or job grades. We wish to build up infor-
mation about the workforce, particularly the competences 
of the employees, using a talent profile. This will reveal 
whether there is sufficient potential for talent to be devel-
oped. Attention is also being paid to seniority within the 
organisation and to key positions. Under the Performance & 
Talent Management Programme we wish to promote the 
qualitative and quantitative development of competences 
and the talents of staff for the ultimate goal of realising the 
strategic TKH goals and increasing staff motivation. 

A Management Development (MD) Programme for young 
TKH managers with growth potential has been organised 
with Nyenrode Business School in Breukelen since 2010. In 
addition to the theoretical training, the MD programme also 
gives the participants an opportunity to share their practical 
knowledge about TKH and its activities. The basic principle 
is that the composition of the group should reflect a variety 
of cultures and identities. The participants have a particular 
ambition and growth potential. The age limit for participa-
tion has been set at 40 years in view of the programme’s 
objective of identifying ‘young potential’. This MD 
programme helps to intensify the participants’ sense of 
connection with the TKH Group and makes optimal use of 
the synergy of an internationally operating group. A second 
group successfully completed the MD programme in 2012. 
To keep the participants involved ‘repeat days’ are organised. 
This MD group also act as ambassadors for the future 
programmes. The Executive Board is closely involved in  
the programme and its members give guest lectures.

In its search for new talent, TKH maintains close contacts 
with business schools and universities. 

Knowledge-sharing
TKH feels it is important for companies to be able to learn 
from each other and selects individual operating companies 
or clusters of companies as a benchmark for the entire 
group. TKH has been awarding a prize for the ‘Best 
Performing TKH Company’ since 2007. In 2012 the prize was 
awarded for the second successive time to VMI Group for the 
results achieved and the high proportion of innovations 
combined with a successful operational excellence 
programme involving lean operations. 

In their annual management meeting the members of the 
Executive Board and senior management discussed recur-
ring themes such as the TKH strategy, innovations and the 
progress of the operational excellence programme and CSR. 
The special theme of this meeting was ‘customer intimacy’.



To facilitate knowledge-sharing we implemented Yammer, 
the enterprise social network, in 2012. Yammer is a modern 
means of communication which can be used by employees 
to share and discuss news and knowledge within a protected 
communication environment. 

Good employment practices 
Satisfied and committed employees are in our opinion an 
important element in the success of a company. TKH sets 
great store by good employment practices and tries to main-
tain a healthy and stimulating working environment at all 
times. An employee satisfaction survey was conducted in 
both 2011 and 2012 in order to measure the success of our 
good employment practices. The purpose of the survey is to 
provide information about the motivation, satisfaction and 
expectations of the employees. It also tries to get insight to 
the commitment and loyalty of the employees. The survey 
was conducted at TKH operating companies with more than 
25 FTEs. The average response rate was 85%. The average rate 
of satisfaction was 7.2, which was comparable to the bench-
mark. The highest score was 8.2 and the lowest 6.6. Safety, 
cooperation and the nature of the work were themes that 
were highly appreciated. General points for improvement 
were internal communication and career prospects within 
the organisation. Based on the results of the survey, the 
operating companies themselves defined areas for improve-
ment and formulated both short-term and long-term  
measures, which have now been largely implemented. 

Sick leave and safety
Sick leave management is primarily the responsibility of the 
immediate manager of the sick employee. The main aim is to 
manage and reduce short and medium-term sick leave. One 
way in which this is achieved is by frequent contact. The sick 
leave management is designed to encourage the employees’ 
own sense of responsibility. Employees who report sick are 
immediately referred to the relevant occupational health and 
safety doctor or specialist. This means that the employee 
receives immediate medical attention and the company is 
informed at an earlier stage about the diagnosis, method of 
treatment and, ultimately, anticipated date of recovery. 
The sick leave rate in 2012 was 3.02%, which was fractionally 
lower than the 2011 rate of 3.05%. Establishing what 
percentage of sick leave has a work-related cause is impor-
tant. This makes it possible to identify possible problems 
and determine a suitable, proactive response. 

Every operating company is responsible for providing a safe 
working environment for its employees. TKH is committed to 
preventing any form of personal injury and/or harm to 
human health. Our aim is to organise the work in such a 
way that it does not have a detrimental effect on the health 
and safety of the employees. TKH has put in place an accident 
registration system at the production-related companies. To 
obtain more information about the nature of the accidents 
and the efforts made to prevent accidents as far as possible, 
greater priority will be given to the accident registration 
system at more TKH operating companies in order to be able 
to guarantee a safe working environment. We will do this by 
communicating about safety instructions and their enforce-
ment as well as the theme of safety during the regular forms 
of consultation with the operating companies. 

TKH attaches great importance to the good health of its 
employees. Good health is conducive to job performance and 
is instrumental in improving working conditions. Health 
checks were offered for the first time to the staff of an  
operating company in 2012. To what extent this health 
programme can be offered more widely within the TKH 
Group is under consideration. 

2012 2011

Netherlands 40 42
Europe (other) 39 33
Asia 19 23
North-America 1 1
Other 1 1

  2012 2011
Geographical distribution
of employees

Geographical distribution of employees
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Profit precondition for the company’s survival

Subject

Innovative strength is one of the  
cornerstones for further growth

Financial targets

Socially Responsible Procurement (SRP)

Goal

At least 15% of the turnover should consist of 
innovations, i.e. products and/or services that 
have been introduced in the previous two years.

The long-term financial target is healthy balance 
sheet ratios, as follows:
• ROS: 9% to 10%. 
• ROCE: 18% to 20%. 

Set sustainability criteria based on the TKH Code 
of Conduct in procurement processes. 

Result

• 2012: 21.2%.

• In 2012 the ROS was 7.8% and ROCE 16.0%.

• SRP was embedded even more securely in the 
CSR policy in 2012.

Scope

All operating companies

All operating companies

All operating companies

Positioning safeguarding our reputation

Subject 

Sustainable customer and product 
portfolio

Supply chain responsibility

Human rights

Supporting good causes

Goal

Focused development of products and solutions 
that are distinctive and help us to establish a  
sustainable position with our customers.

Increase focus on supply chain responsibility and 
proactive participation in supply chain initiatives.

100% guarantee that TKH operating companies 
act in accordance with the Universal Declaration 
of Human Rights.

Increase social commitment and create  
opportunities for TKH’s stakeholders. 
Increase name recognition and employee  
involvement.

Result 

• Constant focus on customer satisfaction and  
sustainable innovations.

• Study how we can give effect to supply chain 
 responsibility.

• Standard item on the agenda of negotiations/ 
purchasing activities.

• Internal auditor covers the theme during his  
auditing activities.

• Provisions tightened up in the TKH Code of Conduct.

• In 2012, TKH once again supported various 
good causes that comply with the criteria.

Scope

All operating companies

Dutch operating companies

All operating companies

All operating companies
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nal organisation concerned with customer- and market-
oriented thinking is also a principal plank of the policy  
and is, for example, expressed in further professionalisation 
of the account management and, increasingly, a combined 
internal approach to marketing and marketing strategy.  
In the year under review special attention was paid to 
‘customer intimacy’ in order to meet customer demand even 
better and put our relationship with customers on an even 
firmer footing. TKH is continuously improving its services 
and boosting customer satisfaction where necessary. On the 
basis of the findings from the customer value performance, 
survey targets have been set and specific improvements have 
been made. The aim is to be in an even better position to 
boost customer satisfaction. Higher rates of customer  
satisfaction will also enable us to boost customer loyalty.

TKH’s innovations will increasingly be matched to trends in 
sustainability. Examples include energy-saving lighting 
systems and our systems for the provision of more ‘care at a 
distance’, but also our tyre building systems also contribute 
to an efficient production process. 

Supply chain responsibility
Sustainable development clearly requires bundling of forces. 
We can achieve more by bundling our efforts with customers, 
suppliers and civil society organisations. Supply chain 
responsibility still receives insufficient attention within 
TKH, although we certainly acknowledge its benefits. In the 
period ahead we will study how we can give effect to the 
concept of supply chain responsibility. 

Human rights
As far as human rights are concerned, it goes without saying 
for TKH that its business activities should be conducted in 
accordance with the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, 
which provides, among other things, that all parties in society, 
including enterprises, are obliged to safeguard human 
rights. By making it possible to discuss this subject during 
negotiations and purchasing activities, we endeavour to find 
out about how our business activities may possibly adversely 
affect human rights on which they have a direct bearing. 

a stable and entrepreneurial climate. TKH wishes to achieve 
healthy annual earnings growth per share, for example by 
boosting turnover growth and establishing a strong position 
in the high potential sectors of Telecom Solutions, Building 
Solutions and Industrial Solutions. The goals are continually 
measured and, where necessary, adjusted. TKH’s main (finan-
cial) goals are listed on page 9 (goals and strategy) of the annual 
report and in the report of the Executive Board from page 22

In 2011 TKH continued to focus on investment in innovation 
and entrepreneurship and on maintaining and expanding 
the customer base. At least 15% of the turnover must consist 
of innovations. In 2012, the innovation rate reached 21.2%. 

By pooling the purchasing requirements and sharing knowl-
edge in this area, we achieve synergy benefits in the procure-
ment field. In recent years, TKH has wherever possible 
consolidated the purchasing of raw materials, components 
and products as part of its product and systems portfolio. It 
has also combined purchasing agreements for non-product 
related (NPR) goods and services and, for example, purchases 
energy centrally in the Netherlands. SRP is receiving increas-
ing attention and is also stimulated by customers by means 
of a so-called Code of Supply. TKH has also set sustainability 
criteria for its procurement processes, which are derived 
from the TKH Code of Conduct. 

Positioning safeguarding our reputation
TKH feels a sense of responsibility towards its employees, 
shareholders, customers and business partners. We conduct 
our activities in accordance with principles of honesty, 
integrity and transparency. We respect the legitimate inter-
ests of those with whom we have business relationships and 
endeavour as a group of companies to fulfil our responsibili-
ties towards the social environment in which we are active.

Customer and product portfolio
TKH strives for a balanced and sustainable customer and 
product portfolio with innovative concepts that meet both 
customer and market demand. We wish to have thorough 
information about and knowledge of the markets. The inter-

Other information 
TKH is an international group of companies with a workforce 
that consists of many nationalities. 77% of the employees are 
men and 23% women. A record is made of whether the ratio 
of men to women within TKH sufficiently reflects the labour 
market and is a correct reflection of our sector. In our 
appointment policy we consider people with physical  
disabilities and are also committed to offering an attractive 
working environment to this group of employees. We provide 
workplaces for employees with physical disabilities and, 
wherever possible, remove restrictions. We also examine 
whether it would be possible to outsource work to sheltered 
workshops, in order to serve a social interest. 

At the end of 2012 the group had 4,736 employees (FTEs) in 
service (2011: 4,062), with the following geographical break-
down. The employees of the TKH Group as a whole can be 
broken down into the age categories as shown above.

This information serves as input for the policy on age-related 
employment. The aim of an age-aware personnel policy is to 
increase the employability of all employees: people with 
wishes, ambitions and potential in whom we wish to bring 
the best to the fore. This is not just about older employees 
but about employees of all ages and in all stages of life.

Profit precondition for the company’s survival
TKH applies a strategy designed to achieve added value and 
thus safeguard its continuity. We attach great importance to 

Age categories employees
of the TKH Group

in %

< 20 years 3 2
20 - 30 years 16 16
30 - 40 years 28 29
40 - 50 years 32 33
50 - 60 years 18 17
60 - 65 years 3 3
> 65 years 0,4 0,3

2012 2011



The internal auditor covers the subject of human rights 
during his auditing activities at the operating companies 
and questions our managers about compliance with human 
rights and what potential human rights conflicts could 
arise. The TKH Code of Conduct has been tightened up in 
respect of human rights in order to make our operating 
companies aware of the theme and also to ensure that they 
act in compliance with the Universal Declaration of Human 
Rights

Good causes
TKH specifically supports various good causes. Its sponsor-
ship is based on a sense of social commitment and commer-
cial considerations. One of the aims of TKH’s sponsorship is 
to create opportunities for its stakeholders. We also use 
sponsorship to enhance our name recognition, publicise our 
solutions or increase employee involvement. There is a 
distinction between the sponsorship at holding company 
level and the sponsorship arranged by individual operating 
companies, which are usually local initiatives. The following 
are examples of sponsoring at TKH level:
•  TKH supports one member of a team of researchers who 

are conducting research into treatment methods for the 
Alzheimer’s Foundation over a period of 3 or 4 years.

•  TKH provides financial support for cultural initiatives, 
including the international piano competition for young 
musicians and local music festivals.

•  As TKH considers the health of its employees to be of the 
utmost importance, it sponsors the sporting performances 
of employees for charity. In the year under review this 
included participation in the Alp d’HuZes (cancer 
research) and the Tour for Life (Médecins sans Frontières). 

•  TKH sponsors ‘De Opkikker’, a foundation that organises 
outings for families with children with a long-term illness, 
and Hopeful Hearts in Nanjing (China), a foundation that 
arranges life-saving operations for children with heart 
defects in China. 

Besides providing financial support TKH also wishes to 
display social commitment in its business operations.  
We wish to ‘contribute our bit’ to society, for example by 

making our employees, facilities or resources available free 
of charge for good causes. For example, we made 75 TKH 
volunteers available free of charge during a special outing 
organised by De Opkikker foundation. The aim of these 
outings is to provide some welcome relief for very sick chil-
dren after they have been cooped up for long periods during 
their treatment. During a ‘Super Opkikkerdag’ 55 families 
are offered a special personal outing on the same day. A 
wide range of activities are laid on and each family is 
escorted by its own volunteer throughout the entire day. 
CSR has obtained a permanent place in the TKH organisa-
tion and forms a fundamental and integral part of our strat-
egy. In the coming year we will work together with our 
stakeholders on expanding our CSR policy. The four Ps will 
continue to apply in full and form the basis for this further 
expansion. 
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Outlook

TKH operates in a number of segments with 

varying market conditions. It is unclear what 

impact if any the economic conditions will have 

in 2013. 

In Telecom Solutions, we expect continued growth in invest-
ments in optical fibre networks. European plans to roll out 
FTTH connections have now been clarified and we are in a 
solid position in the European market to grow in line with 
market growth. Turnover in copper networks will continue 
to decline in line with the shift in investments towards opti-
cal fibre networks. 

In Building Solutions, we expect a continued decline in 
investment levels in the building and construction sector 
and a continuation of challenging market conditions. This 
will impact margins in this segment, which together with 
lower volumes will have a negative impact on profit. 
However, a number of market niches have potential for 

growth. Due to the consolidation of Augusta Technologie for 
the full year 2013, on balance we expect to realise profit 
growth in Building Solutions. 

In Industrial Solutions, the order intake increased in the 
second half of 2012 and this is likely to result in an improve-
ment from the second quarter of 2013. However, it is unclear 
to what extent this growth in order intake will continue in 
the coming quarters, in view of the difficult conditions in 
the automotive sector. A further increase in market share, 
on the back of our strong technological positioning, does 
offer perspective for growth in the medium-term. At the 
moment, we expect the 2013 result in this segment to be in 
line with the 2012 result. 

In view of the uncertain economic conditions in a number 
of segments, it is too early to make a profit forecast for 2013 
for TKH as a whole. As usual, we will aim to publish a fore-
cast for the full year 2013 profit at the presentation of the 
half-year results in August 2013. 

BUIlDInG SOlUTIOnS
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Overview per Business segments
TKH focuses with its segmentation fully on the business segments Telecom 

Solutions, Building Solutions and Industrial Solutions. The business segments 

are oriented to the market in which they operate. We strive for an optimal 

approach of this market by offering total solutions. For our operating com-

panies, this leads to more transparency. It promotes internal synergy and 

encourages our companies to share their experience and knowledge and  

so grasp opportunities in the market.



Telecom Solutions Building Solutions Industrial Solutions

Indoor telecom systems

Fibre network systems

Copper network systems

 

Building technologies

Vision & security systems

Connectivity systems
 

Connectivity systems 

Manufacturing systems
 

Markets

•	Building and construction market

•	Government

•	Traffic infrastructure

•	Care institutions

•	Parking organisations

•	Marine and offshore

•	Rail

•	Energy companies

Markets

•	Machinery building industry

•	Process industry

•	Tyre building industry 

•	Medical industry

•	Robot industry

•	Automotive industry 

•	Can making industry

Markets

•	Telecom operators

• Cable operators

•	Service providers

•	Telecom installers

•	Telecom retailers

•	Housing association
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In the Telecom, Building and Industrial Solutions business 
segments, TKH integrates the group’s basic ICT, electrical engi-
neering technologies and mechatronics into total solutions. 

TKH strives to apply basic technologies and knowledge of 
those technologies and procedures in different business 
segments. Capacity in the area of system integration,  
engineering, service and maintenance, logistics, assembly 
and production is also shared within and among the three 
business segments. Software is an increasingly important 
element of the integrated solutions. 
•  As part of our effort to optimise ROCE and the flexibility  

of our capacity, TKH tries to outsource as much of the  
capital-intensive production as possible. We aim to retain 

Markets
TKH is focusing on a number of key vertical (growth) markets in which our 

specialised knowledge and expertise are expressed even better. Through our 

organisation structure, in which many activities are delegated locally and deep 

in the organisation, we have close contact with our customers. We know what 

is going on and what their needs are. To respond to it with our technological 

solutions, we both can be successful in these markets.

capital-intensive production capacity in-house where this 
is necessary for strategic reasons. That applies for the 
production of specialty cable, optical fibre, and optical 
fibre cable. The company carries out roughly 30% of the 
capital-intensive production internally. 

•  Components and products are purchased from various 
suppliers and then assembled into systems in-house as far 
as possible. 

•  TKH develops distinctive technologies itself and in colla-
boration with suppliers. Whenever TKH works in partner-
ship with third parties it tries to retain ownership of the 
technology or stipulate that third parties will supply the 
technology exclusively to TKH in the countries where it 
operates.
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Telecom Solutions

Indoor telecom systems

home networking-systems, broadband  

connectivity, IPTV-software solutions 

Fibre network systems

fibre optic, fibre optic cable, connectivity  

systems and components, active equipment

Copper network systems

copper cable, connectivity systems and  

components, active equipment 

Business modelSegment | Sub-segment 

Telecom Solutions 

Indoor telecom systems

Fibre network systems

Copper network systems

Markets

•	Telecom operators
•	Cable operators
•	Service providers
•	Telecom installers
•	Telecom retailers
•	Housing association

Turnover share

15%

4%

8%

3%
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Fibre network systems
Turnover in this segment was up 11.6%. In particular, 
Germany and Eastern Europe saw turnover growth, as  
existing network upgrades and the further penetration of 
fibre networks became a higher priority. The market demand 
for fibre in Western Europe increased in volume (kilometres 
of optical fibre) by 6%. The financing of new networks was 
not an obstacle, although a number of telecom companies 
took a more cautious stance on the role-out of fibre networks 
due to high investments in new 4G networks. 

The production capacity expansion in China was successful. 
We were able to utilise the new production facilities from the 
second quarter onwards and by the fourth quarter capacity 
had been doubled year-on-year, to annual production of more 
than 4.5 million kilometres of optical fibre. The new produc-
tion technology has led to a major increase in efficiency in 
terms of material use and production rate. Thanks to this, 
the margin in this segment has improved, despite increased 
pressure on prices. We strengthened our position in France 
and made preparations to take advantage of growth in this 
market by setting up a local entity. 

Developments in the year under review
Turnover within the Telecom Solutions segment rose by 
3.3% to € 167.1 million. This organic increase in turnover 
came from the segments fibre network systems and indoor 
telecom systems. The copper network systems segment 
recorded a decline in turnover.

EBITA rose by 13.5% to € 14.7 million. This increase was due 
to volume growth and a related improvement in the margin 
on the back of higher productivity and cost efficiency. This 
raised the ROS to 8.8% in 2012, from 8.0% in 2011. 

Indoor telecom systems
Turnover increased by 9.6%, with the biggest rise in turnover 
booked in the second half of the year, as a result of the 
recovering market and a greater proportion of IPTV projects. 
Demand for multimedia systems and upgrades to home 
networks increased despite pressure on consumer spending, 
partly because of the increased penetration of fibre 
networks. 

Telecom Solutions

Copper network systems
Turnover in this segment dropped 19.2%. After a short-lived 
upturn in 2011 due to a backlog in network maintenance, 
market demand declined considerably in 2012. The continued 
shift of priority to fibre networks and the investments by 
telecom operators in 4G networks are accelerating the 
decline in investments in this segment. Margins were down 
as a result of the drop in turnover but remained positive on 
the back of effective cost controls.    

Telecom Solutions develops, produces and delivers systems for applications from basic outdoor 

infrastructure for telecom and CATV networks to indoor home networking. The focus is on providing 

customers with care-free systems due to the system guarantees we provide. Around 40% of the 

portfolio consists of optical fibre and copper cable for node-to-node connections. The remaining 

60%, consisting of components and systems in the field of connectivity and peripheral equipment, 

is used mainly in the network’s nodes. 
1 Before one-off expenses of € 0.4 million in 2012. 

Key figures full year Telecom Solutions
(in € million unless otherwise stated)

  2012  2011 Change in %

Turnover 167.1 161.7 +3,3
EBITA 1 14.7 13.0 +13,5
ROS  8.8% 8.0% 
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Building Solutions

Building technologies
Turnover in Building Technologies was up 11.1%, with 3.6% 
of this from acquisitions. There was a considerable increase 
in the contribution from care systems for both intramural 
and extramural care. The market for remote healthcare 
seems to be increasingly open to new technologies that facili-
tate better and more efficient health care. TKH technologies 
are an effective response to this demand. The increased 
demand for healthcare systems compensated for the drop in 
demand in the building and construction sector. Efficiency 
solutions in the field of energy-saving lighting systems and 
intelligent parking systems also outperformed the market. 

Vision & security systems
Turnover in this segment was up 47.0%. The increase was due 
to the acquisitions of Aasset Security and Augusta Technologie. 
Organic turnover was down 10%. The market conditions in 
the building and construction sector and the reduction in 
public sector investments had a strongly negative impact on 
growth. Thanks to expansion outside the Netherlands and 
the increasing demand for TKH’s efficient technological  
solutions, we were able to counteract to some extent the 
impact of the deteriorating market conditions. TKH’s leading 
position in vision technology plays a key role in this. The 

Developments in the year under review
Turnover in the Building Solutions segment was up 14.3%, 
with acquisitions accounting for 18.7% of turnover growth. 
Organic turnover was down 4.0%. Lower raw material prices 
had a negative impact of 0.3%. Organic turnover in the 
fourth quarter fell 9.0% due to the continued deterioration in 
the building and construction sector, especially in Europe, 
and a reduction in inventories. In the course of 2012, we 
anticipated a continued decline in the building and construc-
tion markets and took measures to reduce costs and 
launched an efficiency programme.  

The EBITA before one-off income and expenses increased to  
€ 22.9 million. The vision technology activities of Augusta 
Technologie made a considerable contribution of € 8.8 million. 
The efficiency measures we took and the better match between 
capacity and market demand improved the result on sales 
considerably. In the fourth quarter, the ROS came in at 7.9%, 
excluding the contribution from Augusta Technologie (Q4 
2011: 5.6%). In particular the results from the segments 
connectivity and vision & security showed an improvement, 
whereby in the fourth quarter, the market conditions for the 
connectivity segment were particularly challenging. The ROS 
for the full year fell slightly to 5.3% from 5.4% a year earlier. 

growing need to replace the human eye with cameras in the 
field of security, as well as for process and product controls, 
means that investments in this segment are becoming an 
ever greater priority. TKH’s positioning in the market for 
vision and security-related tunnel technologies developed 
positively. 

Connectivity systems
Turnover was down 5.9% due to lower raw material prices 
(effect of 0.7%) and the reduction of inventories at our 
production companies. Excluding these effects, turnover was 
more or less unchanged from the previous year. The market 
conditions were challenging due to the reduced market 
volume in the building and construction sector, as well as  
in the infra and solar market. Measures introduced in the 
course of 2012 to improve efficiency, strengthen the commer-
cial organisation and increase internationalisation meant 
that despite the strong decline in demand, billed turnover 
was more or less unchanged and the result improved in the 
fourth quarter. We made substantial investments in the 
development of the portfolio, services and the organisation 
to boost our market positions in the niches in which TKH is 
active. 

Building Solutions develops, produces and delivers solutions in the field of efficient electro technical 

technology ranging from applications within buildings to technical systems which, linked to soft-

ware, provide efficiency solutions for the care and security sectors. The know-how focuses on 

vision technology and connectivity systems combined with efficiency solutions to reduce the 

throughput-time for the realisation of installations within buildings. In addition, the segment focuses 

on intelligent video, intercom and access monitoring systems for a number of specific sectors, 

including elderly care, parking and security for buildings and work sites.

1 Before one-off expenses of € 7.6 million in 2012 (2011: € 2.0 million).

Key figures full year Building Solutions
(in € million unless otherwise stated)

   2012  2011 Change in %

Turnover 436.9 382.1 +14,3
EBITA 1 22.9 20.5 +11,9
ROS  5.3% 5.4%
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Building Solutions

Building technologies

energy-saving light and light switch systems, 

energy management systems, care systems, 

structured cabling systems 

Vision & security systems

Vision technology, systems for CCTV, video/

audio analysis and detection, intercom, 

access control and registration, central control 

room integration 

Connectivity systems

specialty cable (systems) for shipping, rail, 

infrastructure, solar and wind energy, as well as 

installation and energy cable for niche markets 

Business modelSegment | Sub-segment 

Building Solutions 

Building technologies

Vision & security systems

Connectivity systems

Markets

•	Building and construction market
•	Government
•	Traffic infrastructure
•	Care institutions
•	Parking organisations
•	Marine and offshore
•	Rail
•	Energy companies

Turnover share 

40%

9%

16%

15%
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Industrial Solutions

Connectivity systems

specialty cable systems and modules for  

the medical, robot, automotive and machine 

building industries 

Manufacturing systems

advanced manufacturing systems for the production of car and truck tyres,  

can washers, product handling systems, machine operating systems and test 

equipment 

Business modelSegment | Sub-segment 

Industrial Solutions 

Connectivity systems

Manufacturing systems

Markets

•	Machinery building industry
•	Process industry
•	Tyre building industry 
•	Medical industry
•	Robot industry
•	Automotive industry 
•	Can making industry

Turnover share

45%

22%

23%
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had a negative impact on the turnover in the machine 
construction and automotive sectors. We were able to offset 
some of the decline in some sectors through further interna-
tionalisation and by focusing on innovations for the medical 
sector and the robotics sector in the form of complete cable 
systems. The fourth quarter saw organic growth in this 
segment. 

Manufacturing systems
Turnover in manufacturing systems was down by 4.2%. The 
organic drop in turnover came in at 13.3%, largely due to the 
low level of investments in the tyre manufacturing industry, 
as a result of the developments in the automotive sector that 
date back to mid-2011. The ensuing reduction in order intake 
translated into reduced turnover for the tyre manufacturing 
systems segment in 2012. A positive development was the 
higher order intake realised from the third quarter onwards. 
This confirms that the previously announced medium-term 
investment plans in the tyre manufacturing industry are 
now taking shape. The need for greater efficiency and quality 
improvements is a good motivator for investments in TKH’s 

Developments in the year under review
Turnover in the Industrial Solutions segment dropped to  
€ 497.6 million. On average lower raw material prices had a 
negative impact of 0.3% on turnover. The acquisition Augusta 
Technologie accounted for 4.8% of turnover. The organic drop 
in turnover was 8.3%. The decline in turnover was due to a 
reluctance to invest that has been affecting the market for 
capital goods since mid-2011.  

EBITA dropped to € 60.0 million. In percentage terms, the 
decline in EBITA was greater than that in turnover due to a 
relatively high cost level related to maintaining production 
capacity for projected medium-term growth. From the third 
quarter onwards, order intake increased compared to previous 
quarters. The ROS dropped to 12.1% in 2012, from 13.5% in 
2011, but remained at a healthy level.    

Connectivity systems
Turnover in the connectivity systems segment dropped 3.4%. 
Lower raw material prices had a negative impact of 0.6% on 
turnover. The reluctance to invest in the industrial sector 

Industrial Solutions

technology, despite less positive developments in the auto-
motive sector. We expanded R&D capacity to increase our 
technological lead and target an increase in market share. 

The remaining segments in manufacturing systems booked 
an increase in order intake and a rise in turnover. 

Industrial Solutions, develops, produces and delivers solutions ranging from specialty cable, plug 

and play cable systems to integrated systems for the production of car and truck tyres. Its knowledge 

in the field of automation of production processes and the improvement of the reliability of production 

systems gives TKH the distinctive ability to respond to the need in a number of specialized industrial 

sectors, such as tyre manufacturing, robotics, medical and machine construction industries, to 

increasingly outsource the construction of production systems or modules.

Key figures full year Industrial Solutions
(in € million unless otherwise stated)

  2012  2011 Change in %

Turnover 497.6 517.2 -3.8
EBITA 60.0 69.6 -13.8
ROS  12.1% 13.5% 
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The Executive Board and the Supervisory Board 

attach great importance to compliance with the 

principles of integrity, accountability and trans-

parency in the management of the company. 

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board are guided in 
this regard by the Dutch Corporate Governance Code. On  
10 December 2008, the Corporate Governance Monitoring 
Committee published the updated Dutch Corporate 
Governance Code, based on the Dutch Corporate Governance 
Code which was published on 9 December 2003. The 
updated Code (the ‘Code’) replaces the Dutch Corporate 
Governance Code from 2003 and entered into force on  
1 January 2009. The Executive Board and the Supervisory 
Board are responsible for the Corporate Governance struc-
ture at TKH and compliance with the Code. TKH complies 
with the majority of the recommendations in the Code and 
continually checks whether compliance with the Code can 
be improved. For this reason it has been decided to split the 
Appointment and Remuneration Committee of the 
Supervisory Board into a Selection and Appointment 
Committee and a Remuneration Committee.
In this chapter we provide a brief outline of these recom-
mendations from the Code and an explanation of the main 
points on which the company departs from the Code with a 
careful statement of its reasons for doing so and a descrip-
tion of proposed measures designed to further improve the 
Corporate Governance structure.

Outlines of the Corporate Governance structure
TKH Group NV is a public company under Dutch law. The 
management of the company lies with the Executive Board 
under the supervision of the Supervisory Board. In the 
course of the company’s expansion, activities abroad have 

grown relatively faster than those in the Netherlands.  
The majority of the employees therefore now work in other 
countries. Consequently, the company is no longer subject to 
full two-tier board structure (Section 153(3b) of Book 2 of the 
Netherlands Civil Code). In its meeting on 28 April 2009, the 
General Meeting of Shareholders agreed that TKH will volun-
tarily apply the full two-tier structure (Sections 2:158 to 
2:164), with the undertaking from TKH that this topic will 
again be put on the agenda when the number of employees 
in the Netherlands amounts to 45% or less than the total 
number of employees during a continuous period of two 
years. The percentage of employees of the TKH group in the 
Netherlands amounted to less than 45% in 2011 and 2012.  
A proposal will therefore be put to the General Meeting of 
Shareholders on 7 May 2013 that a limited two-tier board 
structure should be introduced. The regime as proposed by 
TKH would differ from the existing full two-tier board struc-
ture in that members of the Executive Board would no 
longer be appointed and dismissed by the Supervisory Board 
but would instead be appointed by the General Meeting of 
Shareholders, at a binding nomination of the Supervisory 
Board. 

Executive Board
The Executive Board is charged with managing the company, 
which means, among other things, that it is responsible for 
achieving the company’s objectives, the strategy and associated 
risk profile, the development of results and corporate social 
responsibility issues that are relevant to the business. The 
Executive Board is also responsible for compliance with all 
relevant primary and secondary legislation, for managing 
the risks associated with the company’s activities and for 
financing the company. Based on the current structure of 
TKH, the Executive Board has three members. For practical 
reasons, the Executive Board has created an internal division 
of duties, which indicates the responsibilities of individual 

members for specific functional and business areas. The 
Executive Board, as well as each individual member of the 
Executive Board, are independently authorised to represent 
the company.
TKH endorses the principles relating to ‘Role and procedure’ 
(II.1), ‘Remuneration’ (II.2) and ‘Conflicts of interest’ (II.3) as 
set out in the Code, unless otherwise mentioned below. TKH 
also endorses the accompanying best practice provisions. 
TKH has the following reservations:
•  The best practice provision concerning the maximum 

term of office of four years (II.1.1) is not adhered to for two 
of the three members of the Executive Board.  
Mr. J.M.A. van der Lof has been employed by TKH since 
1982 and was appointed as a member of the Executive 
Board in 1998, well before the Code came into force in 
2004. Mr. E.D.H. de Lange has been employed by TKH since 
1998 and was appointed as a member of the Executive Board 
in 2008. TKH’s point of view with respect to them both is 
that existing contractual agreements cannot be broken 
and that existing contracts of employment are respected. 
The best practice provision applies to Mr. A.E. Dehn, who 
entered into service at TKH on 1 August 2011 and was 
appointed as a member of the Executive Board. Mr. Dehn’s 
four-year term of appointment terminates after the first 
General Meeting of Shareholders that will be held following 
the elapse of four years after his appointment.

• Best practice provision II.1.10 relating to timely and close 
involvement of the Supervisory Board in a takeover process 
if a takeover bid for the (depositary receipts of) shares in 
the company is prepared and best practice provision II.1.11 
with respect to the immediate discussion with the 
Supervisory Board of a third competing bidder in a takeover 
bid, apply and are included in an internal scenario. 

•  The remuneration policy is presented on page 114 of the 
annual report. A scenario analysis prior to the drafting 
and adoption of the remuneration policy is part of the 

Corporate Governance at TKH
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process. There is a share plan rather than a share option 
plan for the members of the Executive Board. The share 
plan involves a financial contribution by the Executive 
Board since the individual members must buy the same 
number of shares as the number that are awarded ‘free of 
charge’ within the framework of the plan. Due to the 
financial contribution provided by the members of the 
Executive Board it has been provided that the shares must 
be held for at least three years (best practice provision 
II.2.4. and II.2.5.). With respect to best practice provision 
II.2.8, the severance payment is a maximum of one year’s 
salary. The existing employment contracts of the members 
of the Executive Board do not include a ‘change of control’ 
clause (best practice provision II.2.14).

•  With respect to the provisions of chapter II.2 relating to 
the remuneration policy and report (best practice provi-
sions II.2.10 to II.2.15), for an explanation of these provi-
sions we refer to the remuneration report on page 114.  
If there is a change in the value of a conditional award  
of variable remuneration components for the Executive 
Board (best practice provision II.2.10), this will be reported 
in the remuneration report.

Supervisory Board
The role of the Supervisory Board is to supervise the policies 
of the Executive Board and the general affairs of the 
company and its affiliated enterprises and to assist the 
Executive Board by providing advice. In performing its 
duties, the Supervisory Board shall be guided by the inter-
ests of the company and its affiliated businesses and shall 
take into account the relevant interests of the company’s 
stakeholders. The Supervisory Board shall also have due 
regard for corporate social responsibility issues that are  
relevant to the company. The Supervisory Board currently 
consists of five members. The members of the Supervisory 
Board are appointed by the General Meeting of Shareholders 
upon the recommendation of the Supervisory Board, with 
the Executive Board, the Central Works Council and the 
General Meeting of Shareholders all having a right of recom-
mendation. Account is taken of the criteria referred to in 
the profile when nominating candidates. The members of 

the Supervisory Board are appointed for a period of four 
years, after which reappointment may follow. A member of 
the Supervisory Board can only be reappointed twice for a 
full term after a first term of office. The time of resignation 
of members of the Supervisory Board is recorded in a retire-
ment schedule. The Supervisory Board appoints from among 
its members a Chairman and Vice-Chairman to replace the 
Chairman should the occasion arise. The Vice-Chairman is 
also the point of contact for individual members of the 
Supervisory Board and directors concerning the functioning 
of the Chairman. TKH endorses the principles and underlying 
best practice provisions set out in chapter III of the Code as 
they relate to the Supervisory Board and applies them, 
unless otherwise stated below.
•   The Supervisory Board has a profile in which the relevant 

aspects with respect to diversity in the composition of the 
Supervisory Board and the specific objectives pursued by 
the Supervisory Board in terms of diversity are addressed 
on the basis of best practice provision III.3.1. The current 
composition of the Supervisory Board is the point of 
departure for the annual evaluation by the Supervisory 
Board. At the moment, there is diversity in the Supervisory 
Board in terms of representation of both men and women 
and representation of more than one nationality.

• Principle III.5 on the ‘composition and role of three key 
Committees in the Supervisory Board’ provides that a sepa-
rate Remuneration Committee and a separate Selection 
and Appointment Committee must be established. In 2012 
TKH made an alteration in the application of the afore 
mentioned principle of the Code and established a sepa-
rate Selection and Appointment Committee in addition to 
a Remuneration Committee. Although the duties of the 
two committees are closely interrelated, the Supervisory 
Board considered that it would be better to split them in 
order to ensure that the subjects dealt with in the separate 
committees receive equal time and attention.

•  With regard to best practice provision III.5.13 concerning 
the possible use of the services of a remuneration consult-
ant, the Remuneration Committee has assured itself that 
the relevant consultant does not provide advice to the 
directors of the company. 

General Meeting of Shareholders
A General Meeting of Shareholders is held annually. 
Extraordinary General Meetings are held as often as consid-
ered desirable by the Executive Board or Supervisory Board 
and also as often as requested in writing to the Executive 
Board or Supervisory Board by shareholders and/or holders 
of depositary receipts, representing at least 10% of the 
issued capital, with a specification of the topics to be 
discussed. TKH endorses the principles and underlying best 
practice provisions formulated in chapter IV of the Code and 
relating to the shareholders and applies them, unless other-
wise stated below.
•   Depositary receipts for shares (principle IV.2): Ordinary 

shares in the company, with the exception of registered 
shares, are transferred by notarial deed to the Stichting 
Administratiekantoor TKH Group (“Stichting 
Administratiekantoor”). In exchange for these shares the 
Stichting Administratiekantoor issues depositary receipts 
for those shares. The voting rights to the shares are vested 
in the Stichting Administratiekantoor. At their request, 
the Stichting Administratiekantoor must give the holders 
of depositary receipts authorisation to cast a vote, to the 
exclusion of the authoriser, on the shares for which the 
holder has depositary receipts at a General Meeting speci-
fied in the proxy. The authorisation is unrestricted and is 
therefore not subject to any exchangeability limit. The 
Stichting Administratiekantoor is not required by law 
(Section 2:118a of the Netherlands Civil Code) to grant the 
proxy or may withdraw a proxy that has been given if a) a 
hostile public offer is announced or made or is expected to 
be made, b) one or more persons possess at least 25% of 
the depositary receipts and/or shares, or c) in the opinion 
of the Stichting the voting right of a holder of a depositary 
receipt is fundamentally in conflict with the interest of 
the company. If the Stichting Administratiekantoor avails 
of one of these possibilities, it must notify the holders of 
depositary receipts stating reasons. The current Executive 
Committee of the Stichting Administratiekantoor consists 
entirely of independent members. The Stichting must exer-
cise the rights attached to the shares in such a way that 
the interests of the company and its associated businesses 
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and all its stakeholders are protected as well as possible. 
No depositary receipts have been issued for the cumulative 
preference financing shares, the cumulative preference 
protection shares or the priority shares.

•   TKH’s articles of association allow the Executive Board to 
decide that shareholders may exercise their voting rights 
before the General Meeting of Shareholders by electronic 
means. TKH introduced the e-voting system for the General 
Meeting of Shareholders in May 2012 when an electronic 
voting proxy could be issued prior to the General Meeting 
(Principle IV.1). 

•   On cost grounds TKH does not comply with the provision 
(best practice provision IV.3.1.) that all shareholders should 
be able to follow the analyst meetings, presentations to 
(institutional) investors and press conferences at the same 
time by means of webcasting, telephone lines or other-
wise. TKH publishes its financial calendar on the website, 
which also reports on analyst and press meetings. The 
presentations are placed on the website of TKH. TKH has 
an Investor Relations policy which it has posted on its 
website (best practice provision IV.3.13). By providing rele-
vant financial and other information properly and in a 
timely fashion, the applicable restrictions are observed 
and care is taken that relevant information is provided 
equally and simultaneously to all stakeholders and that it 
is available to them on its website. 

Financial reporting and external auditor 
TKH endorses the principles (and the accompanying best 
practice provisions) relating to ‘Financial reporting’ (principle 
V.1.), ‘Role, appointment, remuneration and assessment of 
the functioning of the external auditor’ (principle V.2.) and 
‘Relationship and communication by the external auditor 
with the bodies of the company’ (principle V.4.), and applies 
them. The Audit Committee reviews annually the functioning 
of the external auditor. Part of the evaluation is the recom-
mendation to the General Meeting of Shareholders of the 
appointment of the external auditor for the next financial 
year. At least in the year prior to a change in the external 
auditor partner, the Supervisory Board examines the need to 
establish a procedure for a tender with respect to the audi-

tors’ engagement. A change in the external auditor partner 
is scheduled for the 2013 financial year. As new legislation 
in the form of the Accountancy Profession Act was pending 
in the 2012 financial year the Supervisory Board has decided 
to await the final changes in the law and in the meantime 
to recommend the reappointment of Deloitte Accountants 
as external auditor for the 2013 financial year
TKH has appointed an Internal Auditor. The Internal Auditor 
falls under the responsibility of the Executive Board and has 
access to the external auditor and to the chairman of the 
Audit Committee (principle V.3. and best practice provision 
V.3.2). 

This is a statement concerning Corporate Governance as 
referred to in article 2a of the Decree laying down additional 
requirements for annual reports ‘Vaststellingsbesluit nadere 
voorschriften inhoud jaarverslag’ effective as of 1 January 
2010 (the ‘Decree’). The information required to be included 
in this Corporate Governance statement pursuant to articles 
3, 3a and 3b of the Decree can be found in the following 
chapters, sections and pages of this 2012 Annual Report and 
are deemed to be included and repeated in this statement:
•  the information concerning compliance with the Dutch 

Corporate Governance Code as required by article 3 of the 
Decree can be found in the chapter on ‘Corporate 
Governance at TKH’;

• the information concerning the main features of the inter-
nal risk management and control systems relating to the 
financial reporting process as required by article 3a sub a 
of the Decree can be found in the chapter on ‘Risk 
Management’;

•  the information regarding the functioning of General 
Meeting and the main authorities and rights of the share-
holders and holders of depositary receipts in shares as 
required by article 3a sub b of the Decree can be found in 
the chapter on ‘Corporate Governance at TKH’;

•  the information regarding the composition and functioning 
of the Executive, Board, the Supervisory Board and its 
Committees as required by article 3a sub c of the Decree 
can be found in the chapter on Corporate Governance, the 
‘Report of the Supervisory Board’ and on pages 16 and 21;

• the information referred to in the Takeover Directive 
(Article 10) Decree as required by article 3b of the Decree 
can be found in the chapter on ‘Corporate Governance at 
TKH’, ‘The TKH Share’ and in the notes to the company 
financial statements.

This Corporate Governance statement can also be found on 
TKH’s website: www.tkhgroup.com.

Corporate Governance- 
Statement
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Risk management
TKH´s risk management policy, which falls under 

the responsibility of the Executive Board, is an 

integral part of its strategic policy and receives 

constant attention. 

The aim is to control as effectively as possible the main risks 
to which TKH is or may be exposed, to facilitate the reliable 
realisation of operational and financial objectives and to 
ensure compliance with laws and regulations.
 
Risk management and control systems
The most important components of our internal risk manage-
ment and control systems in the year under review were:
•  Analysis and evaluation of our strategic, financial report-

ing and operational risks for each operating company. This 
analysis and evaluation is based on the Internal Control 
Framework of the ‘Committee of Sponsoring Organisations 
of the Treadway Commission’ (COSO). The task of improving 
the framework in order to optimise the process of risk 
assessment receives constant attention. Current develop-
ments affecting the COSO framework, such as the renewed 
internal control concept which is to be finalised by COSO 
in 2013, are taken into account in this connection. 

 The internal control measures have been identified and 
documented for the major risks. The most important risks 
have been integrated in the internal reporting models. Risk 
analysis is used to investigate the application and use of 
certain internal control systems in the various companies.

•  The TKH Manual includes:
• a code of conduct and whistleblower scheme;
• insider trading regulations;
• guidelines on responsibilities and authorisations for 

investments, specific transactions and procedures for the 
assessment and approval of acquisitions;

•  guidelines for the minimum internal controls that must 
exist for each process;

•  guidelines for the hedging of financial risks (Treasury 
Statute);

•  guidelines for the internal reporting to the Executive 
Board;

• transfer pricing guidelines.
•  guidelines for insurances that should be concluded 

centrally and locally and how to deal with claims.
• guidelines for the internal and external financial report-

ing.
•  Extensive budget and report process according to TKH’s 

guidelines, whereby the monthly results are analysed in 
relation to the budget and the forecast for the entire year 
is revised if necessary. 

•  At least once a quarter the results, the outlook and the 
risks identified for each operating company are discussed 
between the Executive Board and local management.

• Detailed procedures for important processes of each oper-
ating company. Insurance policies have been taken out for 
the usual risks which will enable the financial conse-
quences of disasters to be cushioned as far as possible.

Besides the internal controls, the operation of the internal 
risk management control systems for external financial 
reporting is also assessed by the external auditor in the 
context of the audit of the annual financial statements. The 
results of this audit are discussed with the Executive Board 
and the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board. TKH has  
a cascade system of ‘Letters of Representation’ and ‘In-Control 
Statements’. The management and controllers of the operat-
ing companies confirm to the best of their knowledge:
•   that the strategic, financial and operational risks have 

been analysed and assessed;
•  that the risk management and control systems with 

respect to external financial reporting risks functioned 

adequately in the preceding year;
•  the accuracy and completeness of the information 

presented in the internal annual reports;
•  the correct application of the TKH accounting principles 

as included in the TKH Manual. 

Strategic, operational, financial and compliance risks
General
TKH’s strategy focuses on supplying innovative solutions for 
customers in the Telecom, Building and Industrial Solutions 
segments. We focus on niche markets in Northwest, Central 
and Eastern Europe and Asia. We expand through both 
organic growth and acquisitions. This strategy of focusing 
our core activities on the specified business segments, the 
geographic spread of our operations and the diversity of our 
customers and suppliers mitigate the influence of cyclical 
and incidental positive and negative trends. TKH manages 
the risks it is exposed to as effectively as possible by making 
carefully considered choices and spreading its activities 
across different markets.

Financing
TKH pursues an active policy on maintaining sound balance 
sheet ratios. This is apparent, among other things, from the 
financial ratios and the attention the company devotes to 
managing its working capital. In late 2011 TKH agreed a new 
committed credit facility of € 250 million with a group of six 
banks. In April 2012 this was increased, mainly in connec-
tion with the acquisition of Augusta, to a € 300 million 
revolving and standby facility, with considerable flexibility 
regarding withdrawals and repayments and an 18-month 
loan of € 50 million. The term of the revolving and standby 
facility is until the end of 2016. In addition, TKH has bilateral 
uncommitted credit facilities of € 265 million. As of  
31 December 2012, TKH had freely available credit facilities 
totalling € 255 million, taking into account bank guarantees 
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that have been issued. The amount of credit available for 
each subsidiary is determined centrally. 
TKH operates within the terms of the covenants with the 
banks. The company frequently assesses whether it is still in 
compliance with the terms of the covenants. In the process it 
calculates the effects of various forecast scenarios.

Production facilities
TKH operates with a range of production facilities at various 
locations. The regional distribution of these production activ-
ities allows the company to cope with any interruption to 
business due to a disaster at a particular location. Any such 
disasters are also covered by consequential loss insurance. In 
addition, TKH´s main production locations have a detailed 
emergency contingency plan. 

Exchange rate
Due to the growing internationalisation of purchasing, sales 
and production, and to the volatility of the currencies, much 
importance is attached to managing exchange rate risks. TKH 
has a Treasury Statute which describes the exchange rate risk 
management, including powers, authorisations and report-
ing procedures. The main exchange rate risks occur in rela-
tion to the Chinese renminbi, the US dollar and the Japanese 
yen. Where possible, moneys received in foreign currencies 
are used for payments in the same currencies. At the same 
time, as much use as possible is made of netting monetary 
balance sheet items in the same currency. With regard to 
purchases in foreign currencies, the company tries as far as 
possible to gear the conditions of sale to them. The company 
uses derivative financial instruments to limit the remaining 
exchange rate risks. The Executive Board is closely involved in 
both the formulation and implementation of the exchange 
rate risk management policy. The aim is to finance foreign 
investments in local currencies and so avoid translation risks 
as much as possible.

Interest
The interest policy is determined at corporate level. The aim 
is to find a good balance between the development of TKH’s 
financing requirements and the expected development of
interest rates in the short, medium and long term. In addi-
tion, balances with credit institutions are compensated to 
minimise interest charges. This policy is implemented in 
compliance with strict rules and in close consultation with 
the Executive Board.

Pensions
For the non-branch-related pension schemes TKH has 
concluded a group pension contract for the Dutch operating 
companies with Nationale Nederlanden on the basis of a 
so-called guarantee contract. The plans differ from one 
company to another and relate mainly to average salary 
schemes. The interest profit share is based on the company’s 
own separate investment deposit. Developments in interest 
rates and the prices of the equity investments form the basis 
for the surplus interest payable to TKH. Nationale 
Nederlanden guarantees that the accrued pensions will be 
paid out for life to the participants, naturally subject to the 
condition that TKH has met its premium payment obligations. 
A disappointing development of the investment portfolio 
does not affect Nationale Nederlanden’s payment guarantee 
and does not result in any obligations for TKH. The pension 
contract with Nationale Nederlanden ended on 1 January 
2013. A new pension agreement was negotiated in 2012.  
As a consequence of a lower notional interest rate and 
increased life expectancy, the pension premiums have risen 
sharply. Most of the employees are covered by the industry 
pension schemes of the Metalektro and Metaal en Techniek 
pension funds. These pension funds had cover ratios of 93.9% 
and 92.4% respectively at the end of 2012.

Raw materials
The risks relating to the availability and the development of 
prices of raw materials are limited as far possible by purchas-
ing raw materials from several carefully selected suppliers 
and by concluding multi-year contracts with the suppliers of 
important raw materials. The price risk relates mainly to the 

economic stock positions. The following measures are taken 
to manage the price risks associated with raw materials:
• Economic stock positions are limited as far as possible.
• The copper positions of each operating company are moni-

tored for the economic stock positions, stock prices, rate of 
turnover and expected relationship between copper prices 
and selling prices (price elasticity). 

• Price developments are incorporated as far as possible in 
the selling price of products and/or services or where possi-
ble hedged on the futures market.

• Every month price developments, economic stock positions 
and hedges are discussed by a committee made up of 
members from various disciplines and chaired by TKH’s CFO.

• Derivatives are employed to a limited extent in order to 
hedge the price risk on free inventory.

Market and product
In North-West, Central and Eastern Europe and Asia we 
increasingly act as a supplier of total solutions. Consequently, 
TKH is forming a growing number of strategic relationships 
with customers and suppliers, which limits the market risk. 
This trend is a response to our customers’ desire to reduce 
the number of suppliers with a view to cost reduction and 
more effective product development. TKH devotes a lot of 
attention to these market trends and economic develop-
ments. Business plans are continually reviewed in light of 
trends and developments using, for example, a weekly dash-
board for the most important performance indicators, 
including turnover and order book, so that the company can 
identify risks in good time and take appropriate action. TKH 
also has a cascade system for assessing and evaluating poten-
tial and existing contractual obligations. Due to the combina-
tion of technologies, geographical distribution and presence 
in different markets and product market segments and our 
product portfolio in these markets and segments, TKH is less 
sensitive to changing market conditions.

Competition
TKH increasingly focuses on niche markets and supplying 
customised total solutions. As a result, the competition in 
each product-market combination is limited.

Financial ratios  Bank convenants Current ratios

Net debt / EBITDA < 3.0  1.6
Interest coverage ratio  > 4.0 9.8
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Technology
The activities of the development departments of the various 
companies within the TKH Group are always geared towards 
the development of optimum technology which is reliable and 
at the same time safeguards TKH’s strong competitive position. 
For the external development of products and concepts which 
could be of strategic importance, TKH sometimes provides 
subordinated financing in return for exclusivity.

Credit risks
The group’s financial assets consist mainly of cash and bank 
balances, trade debtors and other receivables. The credit risk 
for cash and cash equivalents is small because cash pooling 
agreements have been concluded. Moreover, bank balances 
are kept only at system banks in order to limit the credit risk. 
The principal credit risks relate to receivables from trade 
debtors. However, the risk is spread over a large number of 
customers in different market segments and countries. Part 
of the risk is insured with credit insurance companies. For 
projects involving large orders mainly for international 
customers, TKH also uses bank guarantees, advance payments 
(against a bank guarantee) or confirmed irrevocable letters of 
credit. Use is also made of factoring, which amounts to an 
indirect form of credit insurance. The subsidiaries pursue an 
active debtors policy, subject to internal credit limits. 
Furthermore, the development of the payment periods of 
debtors of each subsidiary are analysed at group level every 
month.

Acquisitions
One of TKH’s objectives is to achieve growth both organically 
and through acquisitions. TKH is constantly searching for 
potential acquisition candidates which would fit in with 
TKH’s strategy and generate growth of earnings per share. 
Although TKH has a lot of experience with acquisitions and 
the associated financial, integration and other risks, the risks 
attached to acquisitions are greater than those associated 
with the organic growth of existing subsidiaries, however 
thorough the prior due diligence. The point of departure is 
that TKH will integrate companies that are acquired in its 
management and reporting systems within two months. It 

also endeavours to introduce further harmonisation of  
operating processes and systems to avoid any risks. 

Environment
TKH’s environmental policy concentrates first and foremost 
on preventing or limiting the negative effects of its activities 
and products on the environment. We closely monitor our 
compliance with environmental legislation. The production 
companies actively pursue a policy in accordance with ISO 
14001. This underlines the company’s ambition of not only 
manufacturing and supplying a high-quality product but also 
protecting the environment as far as possible by means of 
sustainable business operations.

ICT
The ICT infrastructure of TKH is organised in such a way that 
the ICT requirements of its decentralised, global organisation 
are provided for in a reliable and secure manner. The companies 
within the TKH group are individually responsible for their 
own local infrastructure and its support. TKH has issued guide- 
lines setting out the requirements for an ICT infrastructure. 
Companies from the same region are stimulated to share 
their knowledge in the ICT field in order to generate scale 
advantages. TKH uses firewalls and other security systems.  
In addition, TKH has an ICT contingency plan.



The Executive Board is responsible for the 

design and effectiveness of the internal systems 

of risk management and control. 

The purpose of these systems is to identify and effectively
manage the significant risks to which the company is 
exposed. However, they can never provide an absolute guar-
antee that the group will achieve its objectives and cannot 
entirely prevent major errors or losses, incidents of fraud or 
actions in breach of laws and regulations.
The Executive Board regularly assesses and analyses:
• the strategic, operational, financial and compliance risks;
• the structure and effectiveness of the internal systems of 

risk management and control as described in the previous 
section.

Such analyses have been carried out with subsidiaries during 
business planning and quarterly review processes. Trends and 
developments are also monitored and analysed at meetings 
of the Executive Board, the Strategic Committee and the 
Solutions Boards. The findings from these analyses are 
shared with the Audit Committee and the Supervisory Board. 
Taking into account the aforementioned risks and the meas-
ures designed to manage them, and in accordance with the 
best practice provision II.1.5. of the Corporate Governance 

Code, the Executive Board declares that to the best of its 
knowledge:
• the risk management and control systems provide a reason-

able assurance that the financial reporting does not 
contain any errors of material importance;

• the risk management and control systems worked properly 
in the year under review.

With reference to Article 5.25c (2c) of the Wft, the Executive 
Board declares that to the best of its knowledge:
• the annual financial statements in the annual report give a 

true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position 
and profit of TKH and the companies included in the 
consolidation;

• the annual report gives a true and fair view of the situa-
tion on 31 December 2012, the state of affairs at TKH and 
its subsidiaries during 2012, the details of which are 
presented in the annual financial statements, and that the 
annual report describes the fundamental risks facing the 
company.

Haaksbergen, 5 March 2013

J.M.A. van der Lof MBA, Chief Executive Officer 
E.D.H. de Lange MBA, Chief Financial Officer
A.E. Dehn, member of the Executive Board

Management statement
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New balance by disruption 

The technological developments within the TKH group are increasingly making 

TKH a prominent player in the niche markets in which we operate. We are 

prepared to be ‘disruptive’ and to replace existing technologies or processes 

with completely new ways of thinking about how a problem can be solved.  

This gives TKH a distinctive character and makes us an interesting partner to 

collaborate with. The attractiveness of the returns on the systems offered by 

TKH, in combination with the unique solutions and added value that are 

provided, lead to many new market opportunities. Global growth of market  

share can thus be achieved in many domains. This offers exceptional prospects 

with regard to the opportunities for our solutions and the value creation that  

TKH pursues as a company. 
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Sometimes all it takes is a little push, sometimes a 

hefty shove. To achieve its ambitious growth 

targets TKH Group is prepared to regularly disrupt 

the market and shake it awake. The end result, of 

course, is that total costs in the chain fall.

‘TKH Group is a technology company that is market-driven,’ says 
CEO Alexander van der Lof. ‘We choose our markets very strategi-
cally: niche markets with a higher than average growth rate. What’s 
more, in these niche markets we also aim to steadily increase our 
market share.’ An ambitious goal and to achieve it TKH is prepared 
to be disruptive, in other words to shake up and unsettle the pre-
sent market so that a new balance can be created. We set our-
selves a goal, for example a particular market position, and then 
search for a way of achieving it.’
Van der Lof sees that social trends are often the engine for growth. 
‘Take ageing,’ he says. ‘We foresaw long ago that people would 
want to stay living at home for longer. If the right facilities are laid 
on, you can immediately provide more people with efficient care. 
Ten years ago our brand VieDome was already providing screen-to-
screen communication with all kinds of supplementary services 
such as intercom, access control and camera surveillance. This has 
led to a change in the funding structure in the care sector. Money is 
now available for the provision of “care at a distance” as well.’
TKH is also helping at present to increase patient adherence to 
medication reliability. Subsidiary KLS has developed technology that 
allows medicines to be packaged automatically for individual 
patients. Packets can be provided for every moment when the 
patient must take medicines. This reduces the chances of medica-
tion errors, but it has also thrown the total logistical chain into  
disarray. As a result, of course, total costs in the chain are falling.’

Vertical market
According to Alexander van der Lof, being disruptive is about  
solving problems in ways no one has yet thought of. He mentions 
as an example TKH’s subsidiary Flexposure, which has developed 
software, capable of linking different parking management systems 
together. This enables a manager of several car parks, for example 
a car park operator or local authority, to combine the reporting and 
management of all these car parks simply and easily. The parking 
market is one of the vertical markets on which TKH focuses, and it 
is a market about which TKH really knows all there is to know, for 
one thing because a number of its companies are active in this 
market. Together these companies have integrated functionalities 
such as entry, payment, lighting systems, security, intercom and 
camera surveillance. ‘We provide a total package for a competitive 
price,’ says Van der Lof. ‘We’re prepared to offer customers new 
technologies and new forms of service in order to distinguish our-
selves from the existing players. TKH is able to do this because of 
the huge possibilities offered by its potential market position due to 
the size of the market and the marked need of customers for new 
forms of service. By contrast, our competitors find themselves 
having to defend existing positions.’ 

New service concept
Being disruptive can involve the introduction of new technology.  
For example TKH’s subsidiary VMI, that, by using vision technology, 
integrates various stages into the production process. But it can 
equally well concern a new service concept. For example, last year 
TKH’s subsidiary TKF opened a ‘cable desk’ which can meet all the 
cable needs of a large corporate customer. And as the contacts 
are exceptionally close, this has greatly improved efficiency. Every-
thing is delivered in the correct sizes, the correct packaging and 
just-in-time. ‘In the service field we are almost always disruptive,’ 
says Van der Lof. ‘Customers are increasingly in need of a single 

A disruption 
creates a  
new balance

 58



TKH GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2012

point of contact. We deliver integrated systems rather than separate 
components. This is why we can be this single point of contact.’  
By cooperating closely in this way with its customers TKH can 
often take a further step in the market. This is currently happening 
at present in the Marine & Offshore sector, a vertical market which 
has only recently become a real focus market for TKH. ‘This means 
that we now know precisely what is going on and are much better 
placed to provide tailor-made systems,’ says Van der Lof. ‘From  
a basic market position achieved by means of partial solutions such 
as connectivity, we then look around for other customer needs  
that match the TKH portfolio. We have specialised in solutions for 
critical communication infrastructure and security, which are  
systems that are ideally suited to the Marine & Offshore market.’
Usually, being disruptive means taking a step in the direction of the 
market, but it can sometimes involve taking a step in the other 
direction, towards a supplier. This is what TKH’s Chinese subsidiary 
TFO, an optical fibre manufacturer, has done by entering into closer 
cooperation with its Japanese supplier Shin-Etsu. Even more 
remarkably, it has done this in cooperation with another optical fibre 
manufacturer in China.

‘To be disruptive you must always be capable of organising yourself 
effectively,’ says Van der Lof. ‘Here we see the strength of our 
building blocks. We use a great variety of techniques and manage 
to combine them in such a way as to create a new market  
perspective.’

‘ We’re prepared to offer customers new  
technologies and new forms of service in order to 
distinguish ourselves from the existing players.’
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Collaborating with a 
technology leader

Fibre network systems

Sometimes an unorthodox approach is the best way 

to strengthen your market position. In China, for 

example, subsidiary TFO decided to enter into  

far-reaching collaboration with a supplier. Other 

market participants have been left trailing.

China has the reputation of being good at copying what others have 
invented. This is why Western and Japanese companies are always 
cautious about setting up business in China. Nonetheless, this is 
precisely what TKH subsidiary TFO asked of its main supplier, the 
Japanese company Shin-Etsu. TFO produces optical fibre in its tubes 
factory in Nanjing and is dependent for this on preforms: refined glass 
transported from Japan to China. In China TFO uses these preforms 
to make optical fibre at a production speed of 2,500 metres per 
minute – the highest speed achieved in the industry. So there are two 
high-tech companies that are completely dependent on each other. 
‘TFO is an important customer for Shin-Etsu’, says managing director 
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Xia Li. ‘To continue guaranteeing the quality of our products to our 
customers, we are also a critical customer and can provide Shin-Etsu 
with valuable feedback. We are a reliable and expert partner.’

The idea was obvious: would it not be more convenient if the  
preforms were produced closer to where the optical fibre cable is 
produced? This would cut the transport time (three weeks reduced 
to two hours) and would have the added advantage that labour is 
much cheaper in China. ‘We would really have lost a competitive 
edge if we had not taken this step’, explains Xia Li. The plan would 
also reduce the risks. She continues, ‘there is always a risk of fluc-
tuating exchange rates. But there was also another potential danger, 
namely that the Chinese government could take import measures  
to protect local manufacturers. Such a ban could be requested by a 
local manufacturer, and it would not be the first time that the govern-
ment had granted such a request.’

Lots of cultural differences
The benefits were clear, but it still took some time to surmount all  
the obstacles. Ultimately, TFO set up a joint venture with another  
customer of Shin-Etsu: the Chinese company Fasten. A competitor of 
TFO, as both companies are active in the Chinese market, although 
TFO’s involvement in this market is only partial as most of its produc-
tion goes to Europe. Together they could guarantee taking all of  
Shin-Etsu’s production in China. ‘We’re glad that we were able to 
build up such a trusting relationship with Shin-Etsu that they dared to 
embark on this adventure with us’ says Xia Li. ‘But I have to say that  
working with a supplier in this way also proved to be a real source of 
inspirational disruption.’ The decision to set up a joint venture was 
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Strengthening position 
supply chain for optical 
fibre preforms
Shin-Etsu (Jiangsu) Optical Preform Co Ltd is a joint venture 
in which Shin-Etsu Chemical has a 75% stake and Jiangsu 
Fasten Hongsheng Group and TKH Group each have a 
12.5% stake. The production facility has a total area of 
135,000 m2 and is located in the high-tech industrial park in 
Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province in China, 150 kilometres to the 
northwest of Shanghai.
Shin-Etsu Optical Preform specialises in the production of 
optical fibre preforms, in other words the basic material for 
the production of optical fibre. By taking a strategic interest 
in the joint venture TKH has strengthened its position in the 
supply chain for optical fibre preforms and is deriving direct 
benefit from the technological lead acquired by its partner 
Shin-Etsu Chemical in the field of preform production.

 

‘ We’re glad we have managed to 
build up sufficient trust.’

taken by the three parties in 2010. One of the factors was that the 
two customers together had much know-how which could help  
Shin-Etsu in establishing a factory in China. ‘Cultural differences 
abounded,’ explains Xia Li. ‘We’re a European-owned Chinese com-
pany with Western-style management. Shin-Etsu is Japanese and 
Fasten is Chinese. So it was an extraordinary experience for all of us.
Fortunately we succeeded in understanding one another and were 
willing to make mutual concessions. The Japanese are very keen on 
striking a balance, and it was important for us to assist them in 
achieving this.’



New technology can enable care institutions to 

reorganise their processes. Such technology must 

then be very good. But what is even more impor-

tant is the realisation that it is not the technology 

what stands centrally.

The aim of being disruptive, according to Frans Stravers, Mextal’s 
commercial director, is to prompt organisations to reassess their 
processes. He describes this as ‘unfreezing’, ‘moving’ and ‘freezing’. 
‘We often think up a move as a means of unfreezing a situation,’  
he explains. ‘We show that things can be done better; we push 
against something and provide the impetus for change. The initial 
reaction is often astonishment, but ultimately this is followed by 
change and acceptance. The process changes. Things that were 
previously out of the question become the new standard.’
Stravers has been engaged in this way in the care sector for more 
than a decade with a concept of care known mainly as the VieDome 
brand. Under this name TKH develops advanced solutions for the 
care sector, for both residential and domiciliary care. Visual commu-
nication systems, fire safety, access control, sensors, camera obser-
vation, intercom, wander detection systems, care alarm systems etc. 
‘In 2004 we already believed that part of the care could also be pro-
vided from a distance,’ he explains. ‘But the whole funding structure 
militated against this. Nursing staff were paid only for the time they 
spent in someone’s home.’ As part of an innovation project known 
as ‘Innovative Action in Brabant’, Stravers, together with the project 
partners, asked a regional nursing home to put him in contact with 
eight people on the waiting list for admission. Working together with 
a housing association, he proceeded to offer them accommodation. 
They then received nursing home care at home from a home care 
organisation which also participated in the project. Stravers says, 

Care Solutions Giving a push to 
change the process
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‘At that time nursing homes were far from ready for such an idea,  
so we demonstrated that it was perfectly possible to provide care 
for people at home.’ At this point the whole thing really took off.  
The Innovation and Information Committee of the Lower House of 
Parliament expressed interest, and soon afterwards VieDome had an 
exhibition stand in the hall of the Lower House. He continues, ‘As we 
had persevered with our idea, people had gradually come to realise 
that much residential care can also be provided at home.’ The fund-
ing structure has now been modified and money is also available for 
care-at-a-distance. In fact, the distinction between residential and 
domiciliary care has largely disappeared as a result. For example, 
VieDome works for an institution for people with an intellectual 
impairment who live at six hundred different locations. Some live 
alone and others with three or four fellow residents. ‘So how does 
this differ from home care?’ asks Stravers rhetorically. ‘Only the 
funding form is different.’ 

Camera in the bathroom
Frans Stravers can cite all kinds of examples of innovations that were 
initially unwelcome as they were too different. One example is the use 
of camera monitoring to see from a distance how people are getting 
on. ‘Initially, everyone thought this idea was a bit of a laugh, which is 
perhaps understandable as this was the time when Big Brother was 
first showing on TV,’ says Stravers. ‘We then allowed people to choose 
where they wanted the cameras installed. And, just as I had expected, 
ninety percent wanted a camera in the bathroom.’ Nowadays people 
at his presentations are amused when Stravers tells about the experi-
ments presently being conducted by TKH in a European context with 

Informal family care as 
social business case 
The ageing of Europe has already started, as has the 
decline in the number of young people. It follows that 
in due course there will be more elderly disabled 
people. 

This is why the European Commission has asked consul-
tancy agency Deloitte and the Danish Institute for 
Technology to identify useful initiatives in Europe. The aim  
is to find business cases that are sound both financially and 
socially. ‘Part of the social business case is, for example, 
informal family care,’ says Frans Stravers. ‘This does not 
generate any cash, but it does make a worthwhile contri-
bution to the standard of care.’ VieDome has submitted a 
social business case which has already been selected. ‘We 
have applied services and created added social value in a 
manner that appealed to the assessors,’ says Stravers. ‘Our 
proposal has made it through to the last five. The results of 
the study are due to be announced shortly.’

systems that respond to the actions of the user. Stravers smiles, 
‘that’s the disruptive power of technological innovation, impelling soci-
ety forwards.’ Take the idea of care management and care circles. 
What used to happen is that nurses would receive calls directly from a 
client, whom they would then visit. Stravers explains: ‘This was inefficient 
because the caller often asked simple questions which could just as 

easily be answered from a distance. For example, they might ask what 
time the nurse is coming. If the calls are instead routed through a cen-
tral post it is possible not only to answer the questions quickly but also 
to prioritise the help: who needs help first? And once the nurse arrives 
she is no longer distracted by having to deal with subsequent calls. 
Instead she can concentrate on her work.’ Care circles go a step fur-
ther by channelling the provision of help by a number of collaborating 
care organisations through one central point. The VieDome technology 
makes this possible, for example by connecting various existing tech-
nologies in a single transparent platform. Naturally, disruption is not 
always a pleasant experience. For many of our customers the introduc-
tion of our system entails organisational changes. These usually involve 
the primary processes. Customers are not always accustomed to the 
fact that a technology firm thinks in terms of processes. But they do 
find it thought-provoking and appreciate the fact that our solution is 
future proof and can cope with change.’

Developing in dialogue with the surroundings
Frans Stravers is a sociologist by profession and does not therefore 
regard himself as a product developer. ‘We don’t develop products 
in the traditional way, with a roadmap of how you bring the product 
to the market. Instead, we develop our products in dialogue with the 
surroundings, with what we see happening. Naturally, you need very 
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Mextal has been part of the TKH Group for the last two 
years, and the Nuenen-based company has benefited 
considerably from this. Frans Stravers comments, ‘In large 
projects it helps to have the support of the parent company. 
We have a workforce of 35. When you service a care institu-
tion that has 600 locations, you’re sometimes asked 
whether you can handle the workload. But now that we’re 
part of TKH we’re no longer asked that kind of question.’ 

Being part of a group also helps with international expansion. 
Operating under the TKH Care Solutions flag the various 
companies can join forces. 

This is also true of company like KLS. ‘What they do is also 
very disruptive’, says Stravers. KLS provides IT services for  
the pharmaceutical industry and makes much use of vision 
technology. This enables a pharmacy, for example, to automa-
tically sort all the different boxes and pots as they arrive and  
to dispense medicines through other channels, for example a 
Medicomaat dispensing point. KLS can also help pharmacists 
to dispense medicines to patients, by means of packets 
containing precisely the right quantity of medicines and labelled 
with the time they are to be taken. If the patient does not take 
the medicines from the dispenser at the right time, this can trig-
ger an alarm. ‘This greatly increases adherence to medication 
reliability,’ says Stravers. ‘And it reduces the total costs of the 
supply chain. This is fantastic, but it is naturally takes some 
getting used to. All kinds of players in the supply chain have to 
move up a little bit, relinquish certain benefits and create new 
ones. Ultimately this creates a new division of roles.’

Together with its sister company Alphatronics, Mextal has 
developed the ‘care phone’ of the future. At present, thousands 
of Dutch people have a care phone at home that allows them to 
call for help by simply pressing the remote control button they 
wear around their neck. This old generation of care phones is 
based on analogue telephony. This form of telephony will 
shortly disappear. VieDome’s new care phone is IP-based and 
works on the Internet. The phone is always online and therefore 
much safer. This technology also means that new functions 
such as acoustic monitoring can be added. As the phone is 
often in people’s homes, design is an important factor. The 
success of the design is demonstrated by the fact that it has 
won the Good Industrial Design award.

Frans Stravers has now also organised the first collaboration 
with sister company Keyprocessor. The two companies are 
working together to develop care locks. ‘When people need 
urgent care, carers must be able to enter the home,’ explains 
Stravers. ‘But fitting a key cabinet near the front door is an  
invitation to burglars as well. And having a gigantic key rack  
at some central point is just plain inconvenient.’ The two 
companies have therefore devised a lock that can be operated 
remotely, with the correct authorisation, based on Keyprocessor’s 
software. For example, the door can be opened with an access 
card for the next hour. The client and his or her family can still 
operate the lock, because the ordinary cylinder remains in the 
lock alongside the added electronics. ‘Once the care is no 
longer needed, the electronics can simply be removed again 
without damage to the door.’

Developing together

good technology in order to set developments in motion. But we’re 
not really so concerned with the product, our ultimate responsibility 
is for the provision of the service.’ Stravers attaches greater impor-
tance to a high quality service than to a website full of all kinds of 
products and their technical specifications. ‘We monitor all our sys-
tems 24 hours a day,’ he says. ‘In the event of an outage we have a 
reserve system, for example back-up units for the Internet, and 
whenever a fault occurs we notify our users that we are taking steps 
to put it right, sometimes even before they have noticed anything is 
amiss. We remove the worries and concerns of our clients by taking 
end-to-end responsibility. From alarm button to central care control 
post, we ensure that everything works.’ 

Customised domotics
Stravers has immersed himself in the subject of health care domotics, 
particularly the question of why one project is successful and another 
not. From his own research he has drawn a number of conclusions. 
First, you have to provide a whole range of functionalities. If you are 
active in only one particular area people will continue looking for 
other solutions. There is then a risk that they will replace your product 
again in due course. This is why VieDome provides an unparalleled 
range of functionalities, from care alarms and visual communication 
to news and games. The second important lesson he learned was 
that everyone has his or her own profile and that technology must 
be capable of being adjusted both at service level and at the interface 
how it is offered. Some people need no more than a plug-in, which 
they install as an addition to their web browser. Others want a set-top 



box with remote control. Stravers has even gone so far as to ensure 
that VieDome can configure its interface to the client’s requirements. 
‘Older people often don’t press a button properly. Or, they press it 
twice, thereby turning the system on and immediately turning it off 
again. We get them to try out pressing the button. In this way we 
can adjust the equipment to their needs.’ VieDome takes a similar 
approach when configuring screens and monitors. One person may 
want a lot of functionalities and another may want a simple screen 
for fear of being unable to have no overview anymore. If a client 
doesn’t want the telephone receiver on the left then we put it on the 
right and, if necessary, connect it to his or her hearing aid. In this 
way, all these excellent possibilities are made available in manage-
able form to the end user. On the basis of his research Stravers has 
developed a vision and a model that can be used to shape the 
VieDome platform. He has also published on this subject. 
 
Starting with an empty home
So does this mean that every new home should be crammed full  
of technology? ‘No, the opposite is true,’ says Frans Stravers. ‘If a 
housing association asks us what a accommodation should contain, 
we always say “Nothing! Wait until the people have moved in and 
then we’ll ask them.” Provided that there is an internet connection 
and a cable to every room, we can lay on any service afterwards.’
He knows from experience that half of the clients never even use the 
traditional pull-switches, quite apart from more expensive and redun-
dant solutions on which savings can be made. But, as he points 
out, ‘What is even more important is that if people are confronted 
with all kinds of aids they do not yet need, they will regard them as 
a nuisance. This may then discourage them from using these aids 
when they actually become necessary later on.’ Another advantage 
of this approach is that the facilities can be removed again for a 
subsequent occupant. ‘Age-proofing is always temporary,’ says 
Frans Stravers. ‘It’s just another word for flexibility.’

‘For many of our customers the  
introduction of our system entails 
organisational changes.’
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As a trading company Isolectra is accustomed to 

bringing suppliers together and thus creating 

added value for a customer. The company has now 

started to focus on a new role as engineer, for 

example in the new niche markets infrastructure 

and tunnels. 

The Netherlands is a world leader in the field of sunken tunnels. The 
tunnel safety requirements imposed by Rijkswaterstaat (the execu-
tive arm of the Dutch Ministry of Infrastructure and the Environment) 
have become a great deal stricter since the fires in the Mont Blanc 
tunnel and the deportation centre at Schiphol Airport. So it is all the 
more remarkable that TKH’s subsidiary Isolectra has managed to 
carve out such a strong position in the tunnel market in such a short 
period. Observation equipment, alarms, intercom and public address 
systems – Isolectra can deliver all these products to the specifica-
tions of the National Tunnel Standard. Naturally, the Capelle aan  
den IJssel-based company works together with other TKH compa-
nies such as Siqura, Commend Benelux and VDG. This fits within 
the recent transformation which Isolectra has undergone. Originally  
a trading company which imported a variety of products, it has put 
increasing focus in recent years on its role as integrator. ‘We used  
to sell products in boxes and after delivery had virtually no contact 
with the customer,’ says managing director Werner Hulst. ‘Now 
we’re much more involved in maintaining contact with customers, 
getting to know them and really understand their wishes. Using this 
information we can then design customised solutions.’ One such 
customer is Rijkswaterstaat, which nowadays concerns itself less 
with the precise design and instead specifies orders at a higher level 
of abstraction. In other words, the suppliers must guarantee availa-

Setting the standard

Infra & Tunnel Solutions
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‘We’re prepared to take on 
part of this responsibility.’



bility and safety. ‘We’re prepared to take on part of this responsibili-
ty’ says Hulst. ‘Naturally, this is much appreciated by  
our customers, the contractors and installation companies.’ Hulst  
is convinced that more and more contractors will choose Isolectra. 
‘Naturally, we’ll put in an attractive offer for every tunnel in the 
Netherlands that is put out to tender on the basis of a performance 
contract, with a multi-year maintenance contract.’ Thanks to 
Isolectra’s proven technology the total cost of ownership is falling:  
in the long run everything that requires less maintenance saves 
money. And with less need for maintenance tunnels need not be 
closed, which in turn reduces the chance that the contractor incurs 
penalties to Rijkswaterstaat because of unavailability.’ Hulst believes 
that the extent to which this manner of working is proving disruptive 
is evident from the reaction of competitors, ‘You can see that the 
others are trying to follow us.’ 

Optimising added value
It has hardly been a simple transformation and it still requires some 
fine-tuning. Naturally, our customers much appreciate that we create 
extra value for some of their activities. But at the same time there is 
a chance that we may also come to be regarded as a competitor to 
some extent, since we can also create added value elsewhere.’ Hulst 
resolves this by what he calls ‘a lot of communication’. ‘I constantly 
try to make clear that we are merely playing to our strengths. We 
have no wish to engage in competition with installation companies, 

and are instead searching for a role that does justice to our added 
value.’ In other sectors too, Isolectra is constantly engaged in boost-
ing added value, for example in the care sector in which the com-
pany has been active already for many years. ‘We have recently 
developed a new presence registration system. Until recently nurses 
and care givers had to keep a record of exactly how long they had 
been with a client and what work they had done there. This was  
the basis on which they were paid. Naturally, it was a huge adminis-
trative operation. In cooperation with sister company Commend 
Benelux and the installer, Isolectra has now revolutionised the way 
time is recorded in this sector. ‘And do you know the best thing 
about it?’ says Hulst. ‘It’s the fact that since time is now automati-
cally logged, a nurse need never again spend valuable time watch-
ing the clock. This has resulted in a totally different experience for 
clients. They now have the feeling they’re getting more attention.’ 

Above the present standard
In Care and Infrastructure as well as in other sectors such as 
Industry and Marine & Offshore, Isolectra always fosters integration. 
‘We bring suppliers together,’ says financial director Arnoud Fial. 
‘Together we look for new solutions. In this way, we contribute 
something which separate companies could not.’
For example, Isolectra has played an important role in integrating 
intercom and public address systems in tunnels. Until recently these 
were separate worlds, but naturally the installation of the underlying 
systems involved duplication. In collaboration with Commend 
Benelux (intercoms) and supplier Duran (public address systems) 
Isolectra has come up with a smarter solution. Commend Benelux 
supplies the speech and listening unit, Duran supplies the amplifier 
and Isolectra creates the interface. Although improvements can still 
be made, Hulst is very satisfied with the result, ‘Speech recognition 
rates are 15% higher than the present standard. So I’m assuming 
that this will become the new standard.’

‘We bring suppliers together. 
  In this way we can contribute 
 something which separate 
 companies could not.’
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If any technology is truly disruptive it is vision. 

Cameras monitor production processes and traffic 

flows and are elevating medical research to a 

higher level. With 23 years in the business Frank 

Grube is still continually amazed at the pace of 

development in his industry. 

Frank Grube never ceases to be excited about all the different 
things his customers do with the cameras his team supplies. ‘One 
use, to which our cameras are put, for example, is testing blood for 
irregularities when leukaemia is suspected. A blood sample is taken 
and the images taken by a camera are analysed by dedicated soft-
ware to determine whether there are irregularities in the single cells 
of the blood sample. This happens overnight. In the morning the 
doctor only needs to examine the cells with irregularities.’ This 
saves a tremendous amount of time. Grube, who is CEO of the 
German company Allied Vision Technologies (AVT) – part of 
Augusta Technologies – points out that the examination is also  
carried out much more thoroughly than would be possible by  
a human.

New possibilities are being created every day 
But Frank Grube can give many more examples: analysing the 
movements of patients who have a muscular disease, managing 
industrial or logistical processes by recognising and carefully posi-
tioning components, monitoring traffic flows, helping people to 
improve their golf swing and many others. ‘I’ve been in this busi-
ness for 23 years and I continue to be amazed by the ever growing 
multitude of applications,’ he says. ‘New possibilities are being 
created every day. Most of them are disruptive in the sense of 

New possibilities 
every day

Vision & security systems

‘We’re just at the start of  
exploring all the possibilities.’
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doing things in a completely new way.’ AVT, where he has  
worked for over a decade now, has a tradition when it comes  
to making custom-made cameras. This started even before he 
arrived, when the company was still known as Manfred Sticksel 
CCD Kameratechnik. He explains, ‘My predecessor started impor-
ting Sony and Hitachi cameras, but as these Japanese companies 
were not interested in modifying smaller quantities of the cameras 
according to customer requests, he started doing this himself for 
niche markets.’ 

Different requirements
Fresh impetus and a new strategic direction was provided by the 
acquisition of the company in 2000 by the listed Augusta 
Technologies, and by the appointment of Frank Grube shortly after-
wards. ‘When I arrived here we had a workforce of 20,’ he says. 
‘There was no marketing department, no product management and 
no international experience and hardly anyone spoke English.’ 
Grube used his international experience for AVT to access the 
world market with their newly developed own camera portfolio, 
developed and manufactured in-house. AVT now has a workforce 
of more than 220 people and branches in the United States, 
Canada, Singapore and China, as well as distribution partners in 
more than 30 countries.
The camera portfolio consists of a wide range of products for appli-
cations in such diverse fields as industrial inspection, medical and 
scientific imaging, security, traffic and logistics – all of them built in 
a modular system and in accordance to the latest standards. 
Developing custom-made cameras is still a strong USP for the 
company. Many of AVT’s cameras are therefore supplied to OEM’s 
that integrate them into their own equipment.
‘We closely monitor all vertical markets’, comments Grube.  
‘A camera used for medical purposes must meet different criteria 
then a camera used in, say, industrial processes. And outdoor  

cameras have an entirely different set of requirements, for example 
relating to environmental factors. We also have infrared cameras  
to make aspects visible that cannot be captured by a camera for 
visible light and also would not be visible for a human eye.’

Building a brand
Cameras alone are not enough, as Frank Grube knew from his 
experience. This is why he started building a brand at an early 
stage. ‘When I decided to make all the cameras red, people started 
asking whether I was mad!’ he remembers. ‘In the 1990s machine 
vision cameras were predominantly black. However, I realised that 
we had to try something different. Nowadays everyone knows our 
red cameras and associates AVT with the color red.’
Grube also wished to set the standard in the areas of service and 
customer experience. Steve Jobs was an important source of  
inspiration for him. ‘Although we are stated in a very technical  
oriented market, we know that there is more to the product than 
just a high quality standard of the camera: the package design,  
the offer to try out the camera before-hand and a dedicated service 
straightaway is as important for us!’ Shortly after delivery the  
customer receives a telephone call from a dedicated support  
engineer who informs the customer that he is on standby in order 
to provide any assistance that may be necessary. ‘Our customers 
appreciate the overall offer of AVT’, states Grube.

A majority holding in the Augusta Group, to which AVT belongs, 
was recently acquired by the TKH Group. It is still too early to be 
able to talk of specific partnerships, but Frank Grube seems to be 
well-informed about other companies in the TKH Group that use 
vision technology. Informative talks have already been held with 
Siqura, which concentrates on infrastructure applications. `Augusta 
will certainly help TKH to continue developing its vision strategy.  
So we’re just at the start of exploring all the possibilities.’

‘I realised that we had to try 
something different. Nowadays 
everyone knows our red  
cameras.’

 69



 70

When it comes to parking solutions, TKH is more 

than a technology group, it is also a service 

provider. This enriches the spectrum of possible 

solutions. Parking is not a goal in itself. It is usually 

secondary to some other activity. So it is logical to 

integrate the two. 

Managing director Huib van Engelen of Parking + Protection was 
actually rather astonished that TKH Group approached him about  
a takeover. ‘But TKH is a technology group, isn’t it?’ was his imme-
diate reaction. With Parking + Protection (P + P) he has built up a 
company that is purely a service provider. ‘I’d expected them to go 
looking for a technical company.’ Nonetheless, it turned out that 
when CEO Alexander van der Lof made the approach over a year 
ago he was deadly serious about acquiring P + P. ‘I explained  
what we were about and that we monitor our systems 24 hours a 
day in order to help our customers and alleviate their worries,’ says 

Parking becomes 
less static

Parking Solutions
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Van Engelen. His reply was, ‘That’s exactly what I’m looking for.’ 
The takeover is typical of how TKH Group has grown: a technology 
group that puts the emphasis very much on total solutions and  
service, delivering solutions rather than products. From this perspec-
tive P + P, which creates, manages and operates parking facilities, 
for example for hospitals and in urban open environments, is a really 
valuable acquisition. It also shows how wide a range of parking 
solutions TKH provides. For example, it supplies the familiar parking 
management systems, designed to equip a car park with barriers, 
intercom, ticket machines etc. Often such systems also include 
cameras, which are used in combination with video analysis soft-
ware that enables the operator to identify on what screen is happen-
ing anything unusual. But in addition to these systems TKH has an 
overarching system developed by its subsidiary Flexposure, which 
makes it possible for large car park operators to manage several 
car parks at the same time. This consists of an extra ‘software layer’ 
capable of communicating with all the different parking management 

systems on the market. This is ideal, say, for a local authority or  
a large operators such as Q-Park. ‘Combinations of this kind are 
something fairly special in the parking market,’ says Peter Dingemans, 
business development director of TKH Parking Solutions. ‘It’s a 
market with a lot of ‘walls’ we’d like to break down.’

Theatre with car park
TKH develops smart combinations not only for car park operators  
but also for end users. An example is a partnership with a retail chain, 
hospital or theatre. So if you go to the theatre you are immediately 
offered parking time. And if you make an appointment at the polyclinic 

we reserve a parking space for you. ‘Parking is not a goal in itself,’ 
says Van Engelen. ‘It’s usually a secondary activity. So it would be 
logical to integrate the two. Look at all the trouble retailers take to 
provide customers with a pleasant shopping experience, but the car 
park has remained a grey and boring concrete maze. Why shouldn’t 
the customer experience be extended?’
This can also be handy for business customers. A hotel that is  
located to a large car park and will shortly host a large conference 
can simply indicate online how many parking spaces it wishes to 
reserve. It passes on the registration numbers of the cars, and on  
the day itself the guests can simply drive in thanks to the system of 
automatic registration plate recognition. In the years ahead TKH 
Parking Solutions will focus its efforts on developing parking portals  
of this kind where people can book a parking space online. The  
experience of P + P in this field will become very useful. In recent 
years P + P has developed the concept of Switch Parking, a special 
parking portal which makes it possible to reserve parking spaces 
online that would not otherwise be accessible (see box). 

‘It’s a market with a good many inter-
nal walls we’d like to break down.’
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Enthusiastic club
There are now four companies within TKH that focus expressly on 
the parking market. Besides P + P and Flexposure, the other two 
companies are Scanton Parking+, which provides total solutions for 
operators, and BB-Lightconcepts, which supplies innovative, energy-
saving lighting systems in which just a few light sources are capable 
of providing an even light yield in large spaces. This is achieved by 
means of a special film that distributes the light through a long tube. 
‘Fantastic, all that synergy with other companies!’ exclaims Van 
Engelen. ‘We’re an enthusiastic, close-knit club of people who don’t 
regard each other as competitors.’ The four companies are working 
closely together on even more advanced solutions (Premium Parking), 
such as price differentiation. ‘This is becoming ever more important,’ 
he continues. ‘For example, registration plate recognition makes it 
possible to charge a different rate for parking spaces on the roof of a 
car park than for spaces on the ground floor. This is also handy for 
companies that wish to ensure that their staff don’t occupy the best 
spaces all day long.’ Other products under development include 

Off-peak parking 
The basic idea behind Switch Parking is that our city 
centres are getting clogged up – ‘We already have 8 million 
cars in the Netherlands and this looks set to rise to  
12 million by 2040,’ says Huib van Engelen – but many 
parking spaces are occupied only temporarily.  ‘The parking 
spaces around apartment buildings are empty during the 
day,’ continues Van Engelen. ‘That’s a shame. Why wouldn’t 
you let someone park there? And the situation at industrial 
and commercial premises is the reverse: there the parking 
spaces are empty in the evenings and at weekends.’ To 
make efficient use of these parking spaces during off-peak 
hours you need a smart system that allows motorists to use 
the parking space temporarily. They must be gone by the 
time the permanent users return. This can be arranged by 
reserving online through the system operated by P + P, with 
which the motorist opens an account. ‘It’s advantageous for 
the motorist,’ explains Van Engelen, ‘because he or she is 
assured of a space. And this also reduces the volume of 
circulating traffic looking for parking spaces because  
motorists can drive straight to their reserved space. Existing 
spaces are better utilised, thereby reducing the need for 
construction activity. And, above all, it’s really good news for 
the owner of the parking space. We come bearing money!’

guidance techniques for directing motorists to spaces reserved for 
them. This system can be easily implemented in combination with 
the products of BB-Lightconcepts, because they are integrated  
components. Another example is a system to enable motorists to 
easily locate their car in a large car park, either by means of a ticket 
that is printed for them as soon as they pay or by means of an app 
that displays the pedestrian route.

Disrupting the market
‘Parking is becoming less static as a result of all these new types of 
application,’ says Dingemans. This is equally true of the parking 
market, which has noted how TKH is now active in all the different 
fields. Following the acquisition of P + P, TKH now has a car park 
operator in the group, while other car park operators are also  
customers of the group. ‘This disrupts the market,’ comments  
Van Engelen. ‘It makes us a disruptive force. Fortunately, most com-
panies can appreciate our aims, but it is sometimes necessary to 
explain them.’ TKH Parking Solutions also has an increasingly strong 
hand to play in the international market. Dingemans explains, ‘In 
Western Europe we have become accustomed to very busy car 
parks. This has encouraged us to develop advanced solutions,  
which in turn provides a good basis for international expansion.’

‘Fantastic, all that synergy with 
other companies!’
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Marine & Offshore

Going beyond the 
basic requirements

Each sector has its own requirements, and the 

Marine & Offshore sector is no exception. But just 

meeting them is not sufficient. ‘Only if you concen-

trate on focus markets will you be treated as an 

equal.’

‘Sometimes little things make a big difference. If you want to ‘strip’ 
the end of a cable in order to connect it, the little bits of film intended 
to separate the wires from one another can really get in the way, 
particularly if they also stick to one another!’ says Peter Nes, Marine 
& Offshore business line manager with TKF. ‘This is why we studied 
whether we could use a different material which doesn’t stick. That 
would save our customers a huge amount of time, because they 
may have to strip a cable as many as 12,000 times in the course of 
building a ship. Although this only costs a few seconds every time, 
it adds up to a lot. In the end we found a way of producing the 
cable without even making use of film of this kind. Apart from the 
advantage to the customer we too benefit because we need less 
material, which is a favourable outcome in terms of our sustainability 
policy.’ It is one of the many advantages Nes mentions. He has 
been responsible in the past few years for the Marine & Offshore 
business line, a sector for which the company has delivered cables 
for some considerable time but which has recently become a focus 
market. This makes a lot of difference. ‘We’ve chosen a market-
driven approach, which involves knowing precisely what is going 
on,’ says Nes. To start with, the requirements of the Marine & 
Offshore sector are very different from those of other sectors. For 
example, connectors must be waterproof rather than splashproof, 
which is sufficient in other sectors. No materials may be used which 
could in any way cause sparks, resulting in the chance of an explosion. 



And as the cables must often be resistant to oil, the materials too 
have to meet special requirements. In the case of a wind turbine, 
by contrast, this is not so important, but then the cable must be 
suitable for high voltages.

The slipperiest cables
But TKF goes a step further than these basic requirements. For 
example, the company makes cables that are more slippery than 
those of other manufacturers. This has many advantages for ship-
builders because cables often have to be drawn through narrow 
apertures. ‘It’s worth a lot to our customers if they can shorten the 
time needed to build a ship,’ says Nes. ‘You have to realise that 
most ships are not built until they have been sold or chartered,  
certainly in today’s economic climate. So the shipping line puts off 
building the ship as long as possible, but once the work starts it 
has to be done quickly. This is where we come in, because we help 
to reduce the lead time. This can save as much as a hundred thou-
sand euros per vessel!’ So it’s about smart, customised solutions, with 
cables that are also bundled, labelled and delivered in the correct 
lengths and carry the right instructions. The delivery time is just as 
important. ‘Most companies build ships in succession because they 
do not have the equipment to work on more than one ship at the 
same time,’ explains Nes. ‘So the production must never come to  
a standstill, because this causes knock-on delays. Nothing is more 
annoying than having to wait for cables. You can’t make any  
connections, nor can you do any testing.’ 

This is why TKF concentrates on fast delivery times. ‘In keeping with 
TKH’s efforts to achieve operational excellence, we have entirely 
geared our production processes by using ‘lean manufacturing’ 
techniques. The ultimate aim is a model in which we can produce 
so quickly that we no longer have to carry stocks. For example, we 
no longer make production schedules for the next eight weeks, but 
instead give the operator the freedom to adjust production flexibility 
in line with current demand.’
TKF also tries estimate this demand as accurately as possible in 
advance, by having frequent contact with customers. ‘We want to 
have an idea of what is in the pipeline,’ says Nes. ‘And we naturally 
also want to know what customers consider important. Becoming 
attuned to one another requires a good deal of mutual feedback.’

Overtaking local suppliers
Just how disruptive this way of working can be is evident from 
TKF’s ability to compete with local suppliers in the case of overseas 
projects. ‘We’re overtaking local suppliers, because we can deliver 
more quickly even though our cables take a few weeks to arrive  
by ship,’ says Nes proudly. ‘Competitors from low wages countries 
have completely disappeared off the map, we’re no longer in com- 
petition with them.’ The big advantage for the customer is that over-
all costs fall. Nes continues, ‘Installing cables generally costs more 
than the cables themselves, so we help by ensuring that the installa-
tion process takes place as smoothly as possible.’ This has benefits 
not only in Europe where wages are high, but also in countries such 
as Bangladesh where there is shortage in trained personnel. 

Mission critical
TKF is very successful in the Marine & Offshore sector – a market 
which is of great interest to it in view of the many other technolo-
gies. This is reflected in its outstanding growth rate. So the time 
has come to introduce other TKH companies to this sector.  

‘ Apart from the advantage to the 
customer we achieve a benefit for 
our other stakeholders as well.’
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For example, Nes has been in contact with sister company Siqura, 
which includes among its specialisations video observation and the 
related data transmission. ‘Our forte is working in difficult circum-
stances where proper functioning is essential. “Mission critical” is 
our term for this’, says Roger Decker, Solutions & Marketing 
Director of Siqura, which has been part of the TKH Group for the last 
year and a half. Siqura provides observation solutions for motorways, 
public transport, data centres, nuclear power stations and other 
places where outage is not really an option. ‘Every outage costs 
money,’ says Decker. This is why Siqura has developed a system 
that allows for remote monitoring of the functioning of cameras.  
Is the camera providing an image? And what about the signal-to-
noise ratio? Is there perhaps dirt on the lens? And if something is 
wrong with the camera the operator knows precisely what the 
problem is and can send the right person with the right equipment 

to repair it. That way, every problem can be quickly resolved.
Another way of maximising equipment reliability and hence the 
availability of the functions is to ensure that as few parts as possible 
are used. ‘The fewer the number of parts, the less there is to go 
wrong,’ says Decker. These are also qualities which are highly  
desirable in the Marine & Offshore sector. Decker continues, ‘A  
drilling platform at sea is monitored from a distance. If something is 
wrong you can’t just send out an expensive engineer in a helicopter. 
First of all you need to identify the exact nature of the problem, so 
that it can be resolved quickly and efficiently.’ 
Nes confirms that there are plenty of opportunities for other TKH 
companies in the Marine & Offshore sector. ‘Thanks to the contacts 

we have now built up, we know a lot about what is going on in the 
sector and what the specific requirements are. So we can now 
draw up a joint plan of action.’ Roger Decker adds, ‘It’s important 
to speak the language of your customer. That breeds confidence. 
Only if you concentrate on focus markets will you be treated as an 
equal.’

‘It’s worth a lot to our customers if 
they can shorten the time needed 
to build a ship.’
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Manufacturing systems

A machine that had been outdated in Europe by 

the advent of new technology proved to be the 

ideal icebreaker in China. Now the Chinese too are 

accustomed to VMI quality and the accompanying 

advanced technology. The factory in Epe is  

continuing to develop new technology. ‘At a given 

moment we wiped the slate completely clean.’

For fifteen years there was always scope to improve the 248 tyre 
building machine. ‘The 248 evolved: it became quicker, more accu-
rate, easier to maintain etc.,’ says Harm Voortman, CEO at VMI. 
‘But, nonetheless, at a given moment there was nothing we could 
improve more. It had just about reached the limits of its development.’ 
The 248 had been a tremendous success all those years, but the 
competitors had not stood still. The added value of a VMI machine 
was diminishing all the time. ‘We were the most expensive in the 
market, and the price difference was becoming hard to justify,’ 
explains Voortman. In addition, the company in Epe had long been 
developing a new machine – the MAXX. What, therefore, could be 
more logical than to discontinue production of the 248? But that 
was not what VMI did. Voortman continues, ‘In 2008 we decided to 
somewhat simplify the machine, renaming it the 245, and to produce 
it almost entirely in China.’
Until then VMI had hardly managed to get a toe in the door in 
China, although it had had its own factory there since the 1990s. 
The Chinese tended to buy tyre building machines from Chinese 
machine builders. This has now changed. ‘In a short space of time 
we were able to set up the entire production line there, buying 85% 
of the parts locally,’ says Voortman. ‘This was an enormous opera-

A second life 
in China
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tion, because we still had to ensure that we could guarantee VMI 
quality. But we have been spectacularly successful. Since 2010 we 
have produced a record number of machines, sometimes three a 
week. This has disrupted the entire market, both for Western and 
for local competitors. And it has revolutionised thinking. Suddenly 
the Chinese are buying VMI quality.’
Needless to say, protecting the intellectual property rights was a 
particular concern. ‘We already had our own factory in China with 
staff on long-term contracts. So the staff are very loyal. But it’s still 
China and you have to remain cautious.’ This is why VMI still pro-
duces certain core technologies only in its plant in the Netherlands. 
Examples are the camera systems and the drums, used to wind the 
rubber. ‘Little miracles of technology,’ enthuses Voortman. ‘In this 
way we can tell customers that the essence of the product comes 
from the Netherlands, but they’re still benefiting from the lower  
production costs in China.’

Hands-off, eyes-off
While VMI is still perfecting the production of the 245 in China, for 
example by making production more ‘lean’, the company is already 
well advanced with its new plans. Voortman explains, ‘At a given 
moment we decided to wipe the slate entirely clean and review 
certain things from scratch.’ However, a number of first principles 
were crucial: maximum output, maximum accuracy and ‘hands-off, 
eyes-off’ in other words, eliminate human influence on the quality 
and output of the production.

‘We make customers aware of 
hidden costs of this kind.’

Under the generic name ‘MAXX technology’, which includes a tyre 
building machine, VMI has developed a totally new steel belt cut-
ting and splicing machine. Previously, the usual cutting machine 
was a type of guillotine, with a blade cutting downwards through 
the steel-reinforced rubber. ‘When you enter a tyre factory you can 
hear the stamping of the machine from a long way off,’ says 
Voortman. ‘It costs an incredible amount of energy and the wear 
on the blades is considerable as it is hard to dose the power and 
adjust the blades.’ Other disadvantages of the old system are the 
many miscuts, which damage the material, and the fact that the 
machine is often at a standstill, for example when it has to be  
recalibrated or the blade has to be replaced.
‘We set about analysing the entire process,’ continues Voortman. 
‘For example, what power was actually needed? This turned out  
to be surprisingly little, although the material to be cut is very hard.  
A great deal harder, in fact, than so far applied in the industry.’ 
Ultimately, VMI’s R&D department came up with the idea of a servo 
driven rotary cutter, something like a pizza wheel. This ensures that 
the cutting force is automatically dosed and no longer needs cali-
bration. What’s more, replacing the blade is very easy. The quality 
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of the cut is also improved and there is less wear on the blade as 
this is made of a special alloy treated with a special coating.’
The EdgiQ, as the new cutting and splicing machine is known, is 
of major assistance in maximising production capacity, but, 
strangely enough, it does not significantly increase the number of 
cuts per unit of time. The gains are mainly in other areas, such as 
less downtime and less loss of material. Voortman explains, ‘We 
make customers aware of hidden costs of this kind’.

Innovation award
Comparable reasoning applies to VMI’s decision to integrate the 
various steps in the tyre production process. Everything that has to 
be stored temporarily because production steps are not synchro-
nised costs money. This is why the company developed the con-
cept of Modular Tyre Manufacturing (MTM) a few years ago. MTM 
integrates all the steps in the process – from raw material to  
finished tyre. An added advantage is greater flexibility. If 30 tyres  
of another type are needed, the production process need not be 
halted in order to introduce other components. It can all be done 
with the same basic material. In consequence, VMI recently intro-
duced the FLEXX Belt Maker, which won an important innovation 
award at the Tyre Technology Expo in Cologne in February 2013. 
The FLEXX Belt Maker integrates all the steps in the production of 
steel-belted radials in a completely new way. As a result, it not only 
provides greater flexibility but is also cheaper to use. ‘Something 

similar has often been tried in the past, says Voortman. ‘But never 
has such quality been achieved as a result. Now it’s a really serious 
alternative to existing concepts.’  

‘The gains are mainly in other  
areas, such as less downtime  
and less loss of material.’
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Technology remains  
within the group
To protect VMI’s advanced technology, the company is 
nowadays working more closely with other companies 
within the TKH group, particularly in the field of vision 
technology. ‘We use cameras to be able to position all 
parts accurately,’ says Voortman. ‘This is a highly compli-
cated technology because rubber is a material that is hard 
to film – it’s mat black! This is why we ourselves have 
developed 3D laser technology and complex software to 
analyse the images and control the machines.’ 
Until now VMI has ordered these cameras from external 
suppliers. ‘Sometimes one of them would let on that they 
had recently received an order from one of our competitors 
for exactly the same package of materials,’ says Harm 
Voortman. ‘Of course, we were glad if the suppliers told us 
this, but I suspect that in many cases they didn’t disclose 
it.’ Fortunately, situations of this kind will not occur in the 
future because VMI is at an advanced stage of developing 
a completely new camera together with sister company 
NET in Germany. This special camera will shortly replace 
the different cameras which VMI has needed hitherto. ‘For 
a different function we now only need to change a setting,’ 
explains Voortman. ‘So we’ll only have one type of camera 
in stock. What’s more, this new camera is able to process 
even more complex algorithms and more accurate images 
faster, thereby taking a further step forwards in terms of 
the accuracy and speed of the machines. Naturally,  
NET will not supply the camera to other customers. Our  
algorithms are now incorporated into the hardware, which 
cannot be hacked.’
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No computer whatever is as clever as a human being because 
humans are very good at seeing the ‘logical’ links between all kinds of 
different information and taking decisions on this basis. ‘Nowadays, 
security-critical doors are equipped with access control, cameras and 
intercom systems. But when there are several people in front of the 
door, they should logically identify themselves individually and not, as 
usually happens, wait for one person to open the door and then all 
enter together. This can be automatically indicated via the intercom as 
the camera system has detected several people,’ says R&D specialist 
Gaby Uljee. ‘But these systems are not usually connected to one  
another to this required level in the way that this happens in our brains.’ 
The more you link systems together the more the technology assumes 
a human dimension. If all sensing system elements are actually used, 
the advantages are countless. The air treatment system and the 
lighting in a car park must work faster or slower depending on the 
amount of car movement detected by the cameras. And if you com-
bine the access control, the building evacuation system and the fire 
alarm system you know precisely who is in a particular zone of the 
building in the event of an emergency. This makes it possible to free 
up the fastest escape route and identify it using sound, a monitor 
and/or lighting systems. ‘But one system alone can’t do all of this,’ 
says Uljee. ‘You have to link systems together.’ A good example, in 
his view, is what integrated security systems can achieve in relation 
to the kind of shooting incidents at schools that have occurred in the 
United States in the past year. ‘A system cannot prevent someone 
from bringing a rifle to school, but it can detect gunshot sounds.  
You can then close off particular areas to restrict the gunman’s 

Making  
technology 
more human

Technology and innovation
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The more you can link technology with other techno-

logy, the more human is the end result. In recent years 

TKH has developed many new technologies and the 

process of linking them all together is now in full swing.



sufficient in the long term. Disruptive technology is more in keeping 
with functionality-based thinking. It gives the freedom to really con-
sider solutions from the perspective of what the customer needs. 
Customers have less and less need of boxes containing products; 
what they want instead is a function, for example security. Our job  
is then to provide this security.’ With an ecosystem customers 
themselves can choose what functionalities they wish to purchase. 
This is simply a question of turning the function on and off. Uljee 
explains, ‘Naturally we can ensure that this new system is fully 
compatible with existing systems; customers then can connect their 
present systems with, at most, the necessity of a software update.’ 
In his view this will create a situation that is very attractive for large 
customers. ‘Once they start doing business with us, they won’t 
soon switch to another supplier. We provide them with unparalleled 
opportunities for data mining, as all our data are interconnected. 
This is a step which the market will feel.’ What he believes will also 
be of real benefit to the company is the experience of game pro-
grammers. Flexposure decided at a given moment to recruit a dif-
ferent type of programmer – people with experience of games. 
‘Games interfaces are designed to be much more intuitive; after all, 
games players don’t tend to read the help files!’ he says. ‘In the 
conservative world of the security industry this required a leap of 
faith, but it has paid off as our usability is now much better than 
that of our competitors.’ 

Resolving together
This process is likely to be disruptive internally as well, because 
many companies will have to change their mode of operation. 
‘We’re trying to resolve this together,’ says Uljee. ‘The other com-
panies aren’t forced to use our services, that’ll never be the case at 
TKH. We’re too democratic for that. But we do try to constantly 
reinvent ourselves. That helps us to keep ahead of the others.’ It’s 
an iterative process, he emphasises.’

movement while still allowing the police complete freedom.’ Uljee 
has considerable experience of linking different systems together.  
For example for Flexposure, which joined the TKH Group last year, 
he developed management software that overlies existing software 
and can combine different systems. This enables, the owner of a 
number of car parks to control all these car parks in the same way, 
even if they are all fitted with different systems. In addition, he can 
compare information from all these systems and take decisions 
about the management of the car parks on the basis of this infor-
mation. It is what Uljee calls the ‘fourth layer’ in the integration of 
functionalities. First, you have the equipment, the hardware which 
actually opens a door or functioning the intercom. Then you have a 
software layer, which adds intelligence. Over and above this comes 
a management layer which helps in managing, reporting and visual-
ising what happens. And then there is an overarching layer that links 
the different systems together.

Ecosystem
Uljee is already working on the next step: integrating more closely 
the operations of various TKH companies. ‘In recent years there 
have been many acquisitions. The trick now is to preserve the 
intrinsic value of all these different businesses intact (the goodwill, 
product range, customer groups) but at the same time to integrate 
them more closely. Uljee would preferably like to develop what he 
provisionally terms an ‘ecosystem’, comparable to the operating 
system of a computer, smartphone or tablet. Each functionality 
would then be an app. The advantage would be that matters such 
as authorisation, encryption, storage and look & feel could all be 
handled within TKH at a single place – all these matters would be 
within your eco-system – the system around which the entire group 
would be based. Each separate company could then focus entirely 
on what it is good at.’ In his view TKH has clearly opted for a  
disruptive approach. ‘That’s better than incremental innovation 
involving a lot of little steps in the same direction. That is not  

‘We provide them with unparalleled 
opportunities for data mining, as 

 all our data are interconnected.
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Consolidated balance sheet At 31 December before profit appropriation 

	
	
	 Notes	 2012 2011 					

Assets 	 	 	 		
Non-current assets    
Intangible non-current assets 4 342,657 204,228 
Tangible non-current assets 5 191,561 167,665 
Investment property 6 3,480 3,370 
Financial non-current assets 7 16,995 12,637 
Deferred tax assets 16 13,050 10,157
Total non-current assets  567,743 398,057
    
Current assets    
Inventories 8 196,658 164,803 
Receivables 9 151,162 140,584 
Construction contracts for third parties 10 48,380 46,258 
Current income tax  1,546 0 
Cash and cash equivalents 11 66,465 28,597
Total current assets  464,211 380,242
   
Assets held for sale 12 7,165 7,165
Total assets  1.039,119 785,464

Equity and liabilities 	 	 	 		
Group Equity    
Shareholders’ equity 13 367,119 356,226 
Minority interest  60,463 1,645
Total group equity  427,582 357,871
    
Non-current liabilities    
Non-current liabilities 18 202,445 123,502 
Deferred tax liabilities 16 62,654 39,195 
Provision for pensions 17 12,121 12,412 
Other provisions 15 20,923 19,476
Total non-current liabilities  298,143 194,585
    
Current  liabilities    
Borrowings 19 59,564 4,103 
Trade payables and other payables  20 215,695 188,176 
Construction contracts for third parties 10 31,940 35,347 
Current income tax liabilities  778 1,840 
Provisions 15 5,417 3,542
Total current liabilities  313,394 233,008 

Total equity and liabilities  1.039,119 785,464

in thousands of euros 
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Consolidated profit and loss account
	 	
	 Notes	 2012 2011 					
	 	 	
Net turnover 1  1,100,178 1,060,179
Other operating income  2,204 902
Total turnover 23 1,102,382 1,061,081
    
Cost of raw materials, consumables, trade products and subcontracted work  651,758  648,597 
Personnel expenses 25 241,620  209,790 
Depreciation 27 17,494  15,276 
Amortisation 28 20,876 13,055 
Impairment  29 3,318 0 
Other operating expenses 30 117,466  97,311
 
Total operating expenses 2  1,052,532 984,029
Operating result  49,850 77,052
    
Financial income and expenses 31 -12,059 -7,490
Change in value of provisions for earn-out and put options 
minority shareholders  2,965 0
Share in result of associates  -67 82
Result before tax  40,689 69,644
    
Tax on profit  32 9,722 15,563
Net result   30,967 54,081
      
Attributable to:    
Shareholders of the company  28,753 53,481
Minority interest  2,214 600
    30,967 54,081
      
Earnings per share attributable to shareholders 33   
Weighted average number of shares (x 1,000)  37,512 37,146
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of 
diluted earnings per share (x 1,000)  37,623 37,293
    
Ordinary earnings per share before amortisation and one-off income and 
expenses (in e) 3  1.28 1.63
Ordinary earnings per share before amortisation (in e) 3  1.01 1.57
Ordinary earnings per share (in e)  0.77 1.44
Diluted earnings per share (in e)  0.76 1.43

1 Including changes in inventory of finished goods, work in progress and construction contracts of 
 € - 28.9 million (2011: € 85.6 million).
2  In the operating expenses 2012 is included impairments and one-off expenses of € 12.2 million 
 as a result of restructuring and acquisitions (2011: € 2.0 million). 
3  Non-IFRS compulsory disclosure

in thousands of euros
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	 	 2012 2011 					
	 	
Result over the period  30,967 54,081
    
Currency translation differences  -3,177 -251 
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (after tax)  406 -1,063 
Revaluation of property  4,462 2,479 
(De) / Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets   3,146 -1,352
Net income and expense recognized directly in equity  4,837 -187
   
Total result for the period  35,804 53,894
    
Attributable to:    
Shareholders of the company  33,591 53,294
Minority interest  2,213 600
Total result over the period  35,804 53,894

Comprehensive income
in thousands of euros
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Consolidated statement of changes in group equity
     Investments       
  Share Legal Revaluation revaluation Translation Cashflow Other Unappro-  Minority Total
 Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve  reserve hedge reserve reserves  priated profit Total interest  group equity 

Balance at 1 January 2011 9,395 12,305 11,616 25,271 1,861 6,449 -6,029 216,392 40,205 317,465 1,565 319,030
Profit for the year         53,481 53,481 600 54,081
Change in cash flow hedges       -1,063   -1,063  -1,063
Revaluation of property    2,479      2,479  2,479
Release realised revaluation    661    -661  0  0
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets     -1,352     -1,352  -1,352
Exchange differences      -268    -268 17 -251
Total result 0 0 0 3,140 -1,352 -268 -1,063 -661 53,481 53,277 617 53,894
             
Appropriation profit last year        40,205 -40,205 0  0
Dividends 93 -93      -14,188  -14,188  -14,188
Dividends to minority shareholders        -309  -309 -379 -688
Acquisition of minority interests          0 -158 -158
Share and option schemes (IFRS 2)        1,597  1,597  1,597
Purchased shares for share and option schemes        -5,221  -5,221  -5,221
Sold shares for share and option schemes        3,605  3,605  3,605
Capitalised development costs   5,093     -5,093  0  0
Balance at 31 December 2011 9,488 12,212 16,709 28,411 509 6,181 -7,092 236,327 53,481 356,226 1,645 357,871
             
Profit for the year         28,753 28,753 2,214 30,967
Change in cash flow hedges       336 70  406  406
Revaluation of property    4,462      4,462  4,462
Release realised revaluation    -793    793  0  0
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets     3,146     3,146  3,146
Exchange differences      -3,176    -3,176 -1 -3,177
Total result 0 0 0 3,669 3,146 -3,176 336 863 28,753 33,591 2,213 35,804
             
Appropriation profit last year        53,481 -53,481 0  0
Dividends 91 -91      -21,667  -21,667  -21,667
Dividends to minority shareholders        -773  -773 -318 -1,091
Acquired minority interests as a result of acquisition          0 56,923 56,923
Share and option schemes (IFRS 2)        1,743  1,743  1,743
Purchased shares for share and option schemes        -6,236  -6,236  -6,236
Sold shares for share and option schemes        4,235  4,235  4,235
Capitalised development costs   -1,543     1,543  0  0
Balance at 31 December 2012 9,579 12,121 15,166 32,080 3,655 3,005 -6,756 269,516 28,753 367,119 60,463 427,582

in thousands of euros
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Consolidated cash flow statement
	
	
	 Notes	 2012 2011 					
	 	 	
Cash flow from operating activities
Operating result  49,850 77,052
    
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment   42,080 28,623
Share and option schemes not resulting in a cash flow  1,743 1,597
(Gain) / loss on sale or disposal of tangible assets  -198 -292
Changes in provisions  143 -2,449
Changes in working capital  4,766 -31,622
Cash flow from operations  98,384 72,909

Interest paid  -11,433 -7,928
Income taxes paid  -11,702 -17,546
Net cash flow from operating activities  (A) 75,249 47,435
    
Cash flow from investing activities    
Dividends received from non-consolidated associates  484 456
Purchases of tangible non-current assets  -26,481 -24,271
Disposals of tangible non-current assets  1,200 2,408
Disposals less purchases of investment property  -466 0
Acquisition of subsidiaries 35 -95,810 -31,295
Acquisition of associates    -249 -3,176
Investments in intangible non-current assets  -14,113 -7,671
Net cash flow from investing activities   (B) -135,435 -63,549
    
Cash flow from financing activities    
Dividends paid  -22,758 -14,876
Purchased shares for share and option schemes  -6,236 -5,221
Sold shares for share and option schemes  4,235 3,605
Proceeds from long-term debts  70,591 123,502
Repayments of long-term debts  0 -55,000
Change in borrowings  55,461 -27,840
Net cash flow from financing activities   (C) 101,293 24,170 
   
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (A+B+C) 41,107 8,056
   
Exchange differences  -3,239 -2,486
   
Change in cash and cash equivalents  37,868 5,570
   
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  28,597 23,027
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December  66,465 28,597

in thousands of euros
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General
The	consolidated	financial	statements	of	TKH	Group	N.V.	
(hereafter	“TKH”)	have	been	drawn	up	in	accordance	with	
the	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	(“IFRS”)	
adopted	by	the	European	Commission	and	applicable	as	at	
31	December	2012.	
The	company	financial	statements	are	part	of	the	consoli-
dated	financial	statements	of	TKH.	For	the	company	profit	
and	loss	account	of	TKH,	use	is	made	of	the	exemption	pur-
suant	to	Article	2:402	Book	2	of	the	Netherlands	Civil	Code.	
The	financial	statements	have	been	prepared	based	on	the	
historical	cost	basis,	except	for	the	valuation	at	fair	value	of	
property,	available-for-sale	financial	assets,	derivative	finan-
cial	instruments	and	share-based	payments.	All	transactions	
in	financial	instruments	are	recognised	at	transaction	date.

New accounting principles
As	from	1	January	2013	the	amended	IAS	19	Employee	Benefits	
becomes	effective.	IAS	19R	must	be	applied	retrospectively	
with	restatement	of	comparative	numbers.	IAS19R	contains	
certain	important	changes	for	the	financial	statements	of	TKH:	
•	The	option	to	defer	actuarial	gains	and	losses	will	be	termi-

nated.	The	actuarial	gains	and	losses	are	directly	recog-
nized	in	Other	Comprehensive	Income.	

•	The	interest	cost	on	the	defined	benefit	obligation	and	the	
expected	return	on	plan	assets	will	no	longer	be	presented	
in	operating	result,	but	presented	in	financial	result.	

•	The	expected	return	on	plan	assets	is	calculated	against	the	
rate	used	to	discount	the	defined	benefit	obligation.	

The	application	of	the	revised	standard	will	have	the	follow-
ing	impact	on	equity	and	result	in	the	figures	of	2012:	
•	A	lower	operating	result	of	€ 531,000	and	higher	financial	

expenses	of	€ 50,000,	resulting	in	lower	net	result	of	
around	€ 436,000.

•	A	negative	impact	on	equity	of	€ 1,044,000	(net).
•	A	lower	total	result	in	the	consolidated	statement	of	

comprehensive	income	of	€ 12,707,000	(net)	due	to	actu-
arial	losses	mainly	caused	by	a	lower	discount	rate.

Consolidation
The	consolidated	financial	statements	include	the	annual	
accounts	of	all	subsidiaries	over	which	TKH	has	control.	TKH	
has	control	if	it	can	determine	the	financial	and	operating	
policies	of	an	entity	so	as	to	obtain	benefits	from	its	activi-
ties.	A	list	of	consolidated	entities	is	included	on	pages	
137-139.	The	results	of	group	companies	that	are	acquired	are	
recognised	in	the	year	of	acquisition	from	the	effective	date	
that	control	is	acquired.	All	intra-group	transactions	and	
balances	are	eliminated	in	the	consolidation.

Segmentation
The	information	is	segmented	into	the	operating	segments	
Telecom,	Building	and	Industrial	Solutions	of	which	discrete	
financial	information	is	available	that	is	evaluated	regularly	
by	the	highest	operational	decision-makers.	The	Board	
decides	on	the	allocation	of	resources	and	reviews	the	perfor-
mance	of	the	Solutions.	These	benefits	are	reviewed	and	
reported	to	the	level	of	operating	profit.	The	solutions	are	
based	on	the	product	/	market	combinations	in	which	TKH	
companies	operate.	The	accounting	principles	that	are	
applied	to	these	consolidated	financial	statements	also	apply	
to	the	business	segments.	The	transaction	prices	for	deliveries	
between	segments	are	determined	on	a	commercial	basis.	The	
results,	assets	and	liabilities	of	a	segment	include	both	items	
directly	linked	to	that	segment	as	items	that	can	reasonably	
and	consistently	be	allocated	to	that	segment.	Besides	the	
information	about	the	operating	segments,	selective	informa-
tion	by	geographic	region	is	disclosed.

1  Accounting principles

Foreign currencies
Transactions	in	foreign	currencies	are	translated	into	the	
respective	functional	currencies	of	the	entities	of	the	group,	
at	the	prevailing	exchange	rate	at	transaction	date.	In	foreign	
currency	denominated	monetary	assets	and	liabilities	at	the	
balance	sheet	date	are	translated	at	the	exchange	rate	prevail-
ing	at	that	date.	The	as	a	result	of	the	conversion	occurring	
exchange	differences	on	monetary	items,	are	recorded	in	the	
profit	and	loss	account.	Non	monetary	assets	and	liabilities	
in	foreign	currencies,	which	are	recorded	at	fair	value,	are	
translated	at	exchange	rates	prevailing	at	the	date	that	the	
fair	values	were	determined.
Assets	and	liabilities	of	foreign	subsidiaries	are	translated	at	
the	exchange	rates	prevailing	on	balance	sheet	date.	The	
profit	and	loss	accounts	of	foreign	subsidiaries	are	translated	
using	the	weighted	average	monthly	exchange	rates	over	the	
year	under	review.	Exchange	differences	arising	from	the	
translation	are	credited	or	charged	to	the	translation	reserve	
(equity).	These	exchange	differences	are	recognised	in	the	
profit	and	loss	account	as	income	or	expense	in	the	period	
that	the	activities	are	disposed	of.

Business combinations
Acquisitions	of	businesses	are	accounted	for	using	the	acqui-
sition	method.	The	consideration	transferred	in	a	business	
combination	is	measured	at	fair	value,	which	is	calculated	as	
the	sum	of	the	acquisition	date	fair	values	of	the	assets	trans-
ferred,	liabilities	incurred	and	the	equity	interests	TKH		
issued	in	exchange	for	control	of	the	acquiree.	Acquisition-
related	costs	are	generally	recognised	in	profit	or	loss	as	
incurred.	At	the	acquisition	date,	the	identifiable	assets	
acquired	and	the	liabilities	assumed	are	recognised	at	their	
fair	value	at	the	acquisition	date,	except	that:
•	deferred	tax	assets	or	liabilities	and	liabilities	or	assets	

related	to	employee	benefit	arrangements	are	recognised	
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and	measured	in	accordance	with	IAS	12	Income	Taxes	and	
IAS	19	Employee	Benefits	respectively;

•	liabilities	or	equity	instruments	related	to	share-based	
payment	arrangements	of	the	acquiree	or	share-based	
payment	arrangements	of	the	Group	entered	into	to	
replace	share-based	payment	arrangements	of	the	acquiree	
are	measured	in	accordance	with	IFRS	2	Share-based	
Payment	at	the	acquisition	date;	and

•	assets	(or	disposal	groups)	that	are	classified	as	held	for	
sale	in	accordance	with	IFRS	5	Non-current	Assets	Held	

	 for	Sale	and	Discontinued	Operations	are	measured	in	
accordance	with	that	Standard.

Goodwill	is	measured	as	the	excess	of	the	sum	of	the	con-
sideration	transferred,	the	amount	of	any	non-controlling	
interests	in	the	acquiree,	and	the	fair	value	of	the	acquisition	
date	net	amounts	of	the	identifiable	assets	acquired	and	the	
liabilities	assumed.	If	the	amount	is	negative,	the	excess	is	
recognised	immediately	in	profit	or	loss	as	a	bargain	
purchase	gain.

Minority	interests	are	reported	separately	from	the	group	
result	and	group	equity.	Acquired	minority	interests	are	
treated	as	transactions	with	owners	in	their	capacity	as	
owner	and	there	is	no	goodwill	reported	in	respect	of	such	
transactions.	The	adjustments	of	the	minority	interests	arising	
upon	transactions	where	there	is	no	control	are	based	on	a	
proportionate	amount	of	the	net	assets	of	the	subsidiary.
When	a	minority	shareholder	has	a	right	to	sell	its	shares		
to	TKH	according	to	a	contractual	agreed	formula	(“put	
option”),	a	liability	is	recognised	for	the	shares	to	be	
purchased.	The	liability	is	recognised	at	the	expected	present	
value	of	the	future	cash	outflow.	The	consolidation	is	
prepared	on	the	basis	of	the	economic	ownership	that	TKH	
has	acquired.	A	legal	reserve	is	accounted	for	the	interest	in	
the	equity	of	the	subsidiary	of	which	the	economic	owner-
ship	has	been	obtained,	but	not	yet	the	legal	ownership.	
Adjustments	after	balance	sheet	date	on	the	value	of	the	
liability	for	put	options	and	earn-out	payments	are	recog-
nised	directly	into	the	profit	and	loss	account.
Business	combinations	that	took	place	prior	to	1	January	
2010	are	accounted	for	in	accordance	with	the	previous	

version	of	IFRS	3.	This	means	that	adjustments	in	the	value	
in	the	liability	for	put	options	and	earn-out	are	recognised	
directly	into	goodwill.	For	acquisitions	after	1	January	2010,	
changes	in	the	provisions	for	earn-out	and	put-options	are	
directly	recognized	in	the	profit-	and	loss	account.	Advisory	
cost	related	to	acquisitions	are	directly	recognized	as	costs.

Intangible non-current assets
Goodwill
Goodwill,	as	the	difference	between	the	purchase	price	and	
the	company’s	interest	in	the	net	asset	value	(on	the	basis	of	
the	total	of	the	fair	value	of	assets	acquired	and	liabilities	
assumed)	of	acquired	participations,	is	capitalised.	Goodwill	
is	allocated	to	cash-generating	units.	Goodwill	is	not	amor-
tised.	Instead,	it	is	tested	at	least	annually	for	impairment.	
Any	impairment	loss	is	recognised	in	the	profit	and	loss	
account	as	soon	as	it	occurs	and	is	not	reversed	in	subsequent	
periods.	
On	sale	of	a	subsidiary,	the	goodwill	is	included	in	the	deter-
mination	of	the	profit	or	loss	on	a	disposal.

Other intangible non-current assets
Expenditure	for	research	is	charged	the	profit	and	loss	when	
incurred.	Expenditure	for	development	is	capitalised	if	the	
following	conditions	are	met:
•	An	asset	is	created	that	can	be	identified;
•	It	is	probable	that	the	asset	created	will	generate	future	

economic	benefits;	and
•	The	development	costs	can	be	measured	reliably.
Development	costs	are	not	capitalised	if	they	are	directly	
reimbursed	by	third	parties.
	
Other	intangible	non-current	assets	are	valued	at	historical	
cost	less	amortisation.	The	amortisation	is	on	a	straight-line	
basis	over	their	expected	useful	life.	The	expected	useful	life	
is	as	follows:
•	Capitalised	development	costs:	3-5	years;
•	Patents,	licenses	and	trademarks:	3-10	years;
•	Acquired	customer	relationships:	7-17	years;
•	Acquired	brand	names:	10-15	years.
•	Acquired	intellectual	property:		5-10	years

Tangible non-current assets
Lease
A	lease	is	classified	as	a	financial	lease	if	the	terms	of	the	
lease	transfer	practically	all	the	risks	and	rewards	of	owner-
ship	of	an	asset.	All	other	lease	agreements	are	classified	as	
operating	leases.	Assets	acquired	as	financial	lease	are	valued	
at	the	lower	of	the	fair	value	and	the	minimum	lease	payments	
at	inception	of	the	lease,	less	accumulated	depreciation	and	
impairment	losses.	Payments	made	under	an	operating	lease	
are	recognised	in	the	profit	and	loss	account	in	the	period	
to	which	they	relate.	Benefits	arising	from	entering	into	an	
operating	lease	are	spread	over	the	term	of	the	lease.

Property, plant and equipment
Land	and	buildings	used	for	business	operations	are	stated	at	
fair	value.	The	fair	value	is	based	on	the	replacement	value	
less	depreciation	or	lower	market	value.	The	replacement	
value	and	the	market	value	are	derived	from	the	most	recent	
valuation	reports.	Valuations	are	performed	with	sufficient	
regularity	to	ensure	that	the	carrying	amount	does	not	differ	
materially	from	that	which	would	be	determined	using	fair	
values	at	the	balance	sheet	date.
The	remaining	useful	life	is	determined	in	the	valuation.	
The	revaluation	is	depreciated	over	the	remaining	useful	life.
Any	revaluation	increase	or	decrease	of	land	and	buildings	is	
recognised	in	the	revaluation	reserve,	subject	to	a	provision	
for	deferred	tax	liabilities,	except	where	the	revaluation	
reserve	for	a	specific	asset	is	negative,	in	which	case	the	
balance	is	reported	as	an	impairment	loss.	A	revaluation	
which	eliminates	the	impairment	loss	is	recognised	directly	
in	the	profit	and	loss	account.	The	depreciation	on	buildings	
that	has	been	revalued	is	calculated	by	the	straight-line	
method	and	recognised	in	the	profit	and	loss	account.	

Other	plant	and	equipment	includes	machinery,	furniture,	
transport	equipment	and	cars	and	operating	assets	in	
progress.	These	assets	are	stated	at	cost	less	accumulated	
depreciation	and	any	impairment	losses.	The	other	plant	and	
equipment	are	written	off	from	the	moment	they	are	ready	
for	their	intended	use.
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The	expected	useful	life	of	tangible	non-current	assets	is:
•	Land:	infinite;
•	Buildings:	30-33	years;
•	Machinery	and	installations:	5-15	years;
•	Other	equipment:	3-10	years.
Depending	on	the	type	of	asset,	a	remaining	value	between	
0-10%	is	accounted	for.	

Investment property
The	investment	property	are	business	premises	and	houses	
not	used	for	own	business	operations.	These	assets	are	stated	
at	fair	value.	Gains	and	losses	due	to	changes	in	the	fair	value	
are	recognised	directly	in	the	profit	and	loss	account	in	the	
period	that	the	change	in	value	occurs.

Financial non-current assets
Associates
The	associates	in	which	TKH	has	significant	influence	in	the	
financial	and	operating	policy	decisions,	but	no	control,	are	
valued	according	to	the	equity	method.		Under	the	equity	
method,	the	share	in	the	profit	or	loss	of	the	associate	is	
recognised	in	the	profit	and	loss	account.	The	share	in	the	
associate	is	determined	based	on	TKH’s	share	in	the	net	assets	
of	the	associate,	including	the	paid	goodwill	at	acquisition	
and	less	any	impairment	loss.
Dividend	from	associates	is	recognised	when	the	shareholders’	
right	to	receive	payments	have	been	established.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Listed	shares	that	are	traded	in	an	active	market	are	classified	
as	available-for-sale	financial	assets	and	are	stated	at	fair	
value.	Fair	value	is	based	on	the	stock	price	at	balance	sheet	
date.	Gains	and	losses	due	to	changes	in	the	fair	value	are	
recognised	in	other	comprehensive	income	and	accumulated	
under	the	heading	of	investments	revaluation	reserve	for	
available-for-sale	financial	assets.	When	the	investment	is	
disposed	of	the	cumulative	gain	or	loss	previously	accumu-
lated	in	the	investments	revaluation	reserve	is	reclassified	to	
profit	or	loss.	Dividends	are	recognised	in	profit	or	loss	when	
the	shareholder’s	right	to	receive	the	dividends	is	established.

Impairment
At	least	every	year	the	company	reviews	its	tangible	and	
intangible	assets	to	determine	whether	there	are	indications	
that	those	assets	have	suffered	an	impairment	loss.	If	there	is	
any	such	indication	the	recoverable	value	of	the	asset	is	esti-
mated	to	determine	the	extent	of	the	impairment	loss.	If	the	
asset	does	not	generate	cash	itself,	the	company	determines	
the	recoverable	value	of	the	smallest	cash-generating	unit	to	
which	the	asset	belongs.
The	recoverable	amount	is	the	fair	value	less	cost	to	sell	or	
the	value	in	use,	whichever	is	higher.	The	value	in	use	is	
based	on	the	estimated	discounted	value	of	future	cash	flows	
using	a	discount	rate	based	on	current	market	assessments	of	
the	time	value	of	money	and	the	risks	specific	to	the	asset.	
If	the	recoverable	amount	of	an	asset	is	less	than	its	carrying	
amount,	the	asset	is	recognised	at	the	recoverable	amount.	
An	impairment	loss	is	recognised	immediately	in	the	profit	
and	loss	account,	unless	the	asset	concerned	is	carried	at	a	
revalued	amount,	in	which	case	the	impairment	loss	is	first	
deducted	from	the	revaluation	reserve.	When	an	impairment	
loss	subsequently	reverses,	the	carrying	amount	of	the	asset	
is	increased	to	the	revised	estimate	of	its	recoverable	amount,	
with	the	exception	of	goodwill,	but	never	higher	than	the	
carrying	amount	that	would	have	been	determined	when	no	
impairment	loss	has	been	recognised.	The	increase	is	recog-
nised	immediately	in	the	profit	and	loss	account.		If	this	
increase	relates	to	a	revalued	asset	where	the	write	down	is	
not	recorded	in	the	profit	and	loss	account,	then	the	increase	
is	recorded	directly	in	the	revaluation	reserve.

Inventories
Inventories	are	stated	at	the	lower	of	cost	and	net	realisable	
value.	The	net	realisable	value	is	the	estimated	sales	price	in	
normal	course	of	business	less	estimated	cost	of	completion	
and	selling	expenses.	The	cost	of	raw	materials	and	consuma-
bles	is	based	on	the	average	purchase	price	and	cost	incurred	
in	bringing	the	inventories	to	their	present	location	and	condi-
tion.	The	cost	of	semi-manufactured	and	finished	product	
comprises	the	direct	materials	and	direct	labour	costs	as	well	
as	a	surcharge	for	the	indirect	production	costs.

Construction contracts 
If	the	outcome	of	a	construction	contract	for	third	parties	
can	be	reliably	determined,	then	the	revenue	and	costs	are	
reported	in	proportion	to	completion	at	the	balance	sheet	
date.	The	stage	of	completion	is	calculated	on	the	basis	of	the	
related	costs	incurred	for	services	provided	in	comparison	to	
the	total	expected	project	costs,	unless	this	is	not	representa-
tive	for	the	stage	of	completion.	Variations	in	contract	work,	
claims	and	incentive	payments	are	included	to	the	extent	
that	they	can	be	determined	reliably	and	settlement	is	likely.	
If	the	outcome	of	a	construction	contract	can	not	be	measured	
reliably,	revenue	is	accounted	for	the	costs	incurred	if	it	is	
probable	that	the	benefits	will	be	realised.	Contract	costs	are	
recognised	as	expenses	in	the	period	that	they	occur.	If	the	
expected	project	costs	exceed	the	project	revenue,	then	the	
expected	loss	is	provided	directly	and	deducted	from	the	
construction	contracts.	
Construction	contracts,	consisting	of	the	balance	of	costs	
incurred,	profits	and	losses	taken	less	amounts	invoiced,	are	
stated	as	a	receivable	when	the	balance	is	positive.	If	the	
balance	of	costs	incurred,	profits	and	losses	taken	less	
invoiced	amounts	on	a	project	is	negative,	it	is	stated	as	a	
liability	for	that	particular	project.

Receivables
Receivables	are	recognised	at	face	value	less	provisions	for	
bad	debts.	This	valuation	approaches	the	fair	value	of	the	
receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash	and	cash	equivalents	comprise	cash	on	hand	and	short-
term	deposits.	

Assets held for sale
Non-current	assets	are	classified	as	held	for	sale	if	their	carry-
ing	amount	will	be	recovered	principally	through	a	sale	
transaction	rather	than	through	continuing	use.	This	condi-
tion	is	regarded	as	met	only	when	the	sale	is	highly	probable	
and	the	asset	is	available	for	immediate	sale.	Assets	held	for	
sale	are	measured	at	the	lower	of	their	previous	carrying	
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amount	and	fair	value	less	costs	to	sell.	Assets	held	for	sale	
are	not	depreciated.	

Revaluation reserve
The	realised	part	of	the	depreciation	on	tangible	non-current	
assets	is	released	in	favour	of	the	other	reserves.	When	a	
revalued	asset	is	sold,	the	revaluation	reserve	is	transferred	to	
the	other	reserves.

Provisions
General
Provisions	are	recognised	for	obligations	resulting	from	past	
events,	for	which	it	is	probable	that	they	will	require	a	settle-
ment	and	whose	size	can	be	reasonably	and	reliably	esti-
mated.	Provisions	are	measured	at	management’s	best	
estimate.	Long-term	provisions	are	discounted	to	present	
value,	with	the	exception	of	the	provision	for	deferred	tax.

Pensions
Premiums	for	defined	contribution	plans	are	recognised	as	
liabilities	in	the	period	to	which	they	relate.	
For	defined	benefit	pension	plans,	the	net	liability	is	calcu-
lated	per	scheme	by	estimating	the	retirement	benefit	obliga-
tion	that	employees	are	entitled	to	in	exchange	for	their	
services	rendered	during	the	financial	year	and	previous	
years.	The	retirement	benefit	obligations	are	discounted	and	
the	fair	value	of	the	plan	assets	are	deducted	from	the	obliga-
tion.	The	retirement	benefit	obligations	and	the	costs	of	the	
defined	benefit	plans	are	calculated	according	to	the	
“Projected	Unit	Credit	Method”,	with	actuarial	calculations	
being	made	at	balance	sheet	date.	Actuarial	gains	and	losses	
are	not	included,	unless	the	net	accrued	not-recognised	actu-
arial	gains	and	losses	at	the	end	of	the	preceding	reporting	
year	were	greater	than	the	highest	of:
•	10%	of	the	present	value	of	the	gross	liabilities	arising	from	

the	defined	benefit	plan;	and
•	10%	of	the	fair	value	of	the	plan	assets	on	that	date.
The	portion	that	exceeds	the	limit	is	recognised	in	the	profit	
and	loss	account	prorated	over	the	expected	average	remain-
ing	working	lives	of	the	participants.
When	defined	benefit	plans	are	improved,	the	part	related	to	

past	services	is	amortised	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	
average	period	until	the	benefits	become	vested.

Jubilee bonuses
The	net	liability	for	jubilee	bonuses	is	the	amount	of	future	
benefits	that	relate	to	services	from	employees	during	the	
financial	year	or	previous	periods.	The	liability	is	calculated	
according	to	the	“Projected	Unit	Credit	Method”	and	is	
discounted	to	its	present	value.	The	discount	rate	is	equal	to	
the	defined	benefit	scheme.

Deferred tax
Deferred	tax	relates	to	temporary	differences	between	the	
value	in	the	financial	statements	and	the	value	for	tax	
purposes.	No	deferred	tax	is	recognised	for	non	deductible	
goodwill	and	associates	included	in	the	participation	exemp-
tion.	Deferred	tax	assets	are	only	recognised	to	the	extent	
that	it	is	probable	that	they	can	be	realised.	Deferred	tax	is	
calculated	at	the	tax	rates	that	are	expected	to	apply	when	
they	are	settled.
Changes	in	deferred	tax	are	recognised	immediately	in	the	
profit	and	loss	account,	with	the	exception	of	changes	in	the	
tax	rates	of	deferred	tax	on	revaluations,	the	effects	of	which	
are	recognised	directly	in	equity.	

Interest bearing liabilities
Interest	bearing	liabilities	are	initially	measured	at	fair	value,	
after	deducting	related	transaction	costs,	and	subsequently	
measured	at	amortised	costs,	using	the	effective	interest	rate	
method.

Derivative financial instruments
Financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	are	recognised	in	the	
balance	sheet	when	TKH	concludes	a	contract	for	such	an	
instrument.	Derivative	financial	instruments	are	stated	at	
fair	value	on	the	contract	date	and	are	then	reported	at	the	
prevailing	fair	value	at	subsequent	reporting	dates.	Changes	
in	the	fair	value	of	derivative	financial	instruments	that	are	
designated	and	effective	as	hedges	of	future	cash	flows	are	
recognised	directly	in	equity.	The	ineffective	portion	is	recog-
nised	immediately	in	the	profit	and	loss	account.	If	the	cash	

flow	from	an	existing	commitment	or	an	expected	future	
transaction	results	in	the	recognition	of	an	asset	or	liability,	
at	the	time	the	asset	or	liability	is	recognised	the	associated	
gains	or	losses	on	the	hedging	instrument	that	had	previ-
ously	been	recognised	in	equity	are	included	in	the	valuation	
of	the	asset	or	the	liability.	For	hedges	that	do	not	result	in	
the	recognition	of	an	asset	or	a	liability,	the	gains	or	losses	
recognised	in	equity	are	recognised	in	the	profit	and	loss	
account	in	the	same	period	as	the	underlying	hedged	transac-
tion	is	recognised	in	the	profit	and	loss	account.	Changes	in	
the	fair	value	of	derivative	financial	instruments	that	do	not	
qualify	for	hedge	accounting	are	recognised	immediately	in	
the	profit	and	loss	account.
Hedge	accounting	is	discontinued	when	the	hedge	instru-
ment	expires,	is	sold,	exercised	or	no	longer	qualifies	for	
hedging.	The	cumulative	gains	or	losses	on	that	hedging	
instrument	recognised	up	to	that	time	in	equity	are	recog-
nised	in	the	profit	and	loss	account	when	the	forecasted	
transaction	occurs.	If	a	hedged	transaction	is	no	longer	
expected	to	occur,	the	cumulative	gains	or	losses	recognised	
in	equity	are	transferred	to	the	profit	and	loss	account.

Turnover
The	turnover	of	TKH	consist	of	goods,	services	and	projects	
within	Telecom,	Building	and	Industrial	Solutions	that	can	
be	offered	to	customers	as	a	separate	product/service	or	as	
total	solution.	Total	turnover	comprises	the	net	turnover,	the	
change	in	inventories	of	finished	product	and	work	in	
progress	as	well	as	other	operating	income.	Net	turnover	
comprises	the	amounts	in	the	reporting	year	from	the	supply	
of	goods	and	services	to	third	parties	less	discounts	and	taxa-
tion	levied	on	the	turnover.	The	change	in	inventories	of	
finished	product	and	construction	contracts	concerns	the	
production	companies	and	projects	within	TKH.
The	supply	of	goods	is	recognised	as	turnover	if	the	following	
conditions	are	met:
•	The	significant	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership	of	the	

goods	are	transferred	to	the	buyer;
•	TKH	does	not	retain	involvement	and	effective	control		

over	the	sold	goods	usually	associated	with	ownership;
•	The	amount	of	the	revenue	can	be	measured	reliably;
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•	It	is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	associated	with	
the	transaction	will	flow	to	TKH;

•	The	costs	incurred	or	to	be	incurred	related	to	the	transac-
tion	can	be	reliably	measured;

Turnover	on	work	in	progress	is	recognised	in	accordance	
with	the	accounting	principles	described	under	“construc-
tion	contracts”	(see	before).	
Services	primarily	relate	to	project	management,	installation,	
service	and	maintenance.	If	the	result	of	a	transaction	in	
which	services	are	performed	can	be	estimated	reliably,	then	
the	revenue	relating	to	those	transactions	are	included	for	
the	stage	of	completion	at	the	balance	sheet	date.	The	result	
of	a	transaction	can	be	estimated	reliably	when	all	the	follow-
ing	conditions	are	met:
•	The		amount	of	the	revenue	can	be	measured	reliably;
•	It	is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	associated	with	

the	transaction	will	flow	to	TKH;
•	The	extent	to	which	the	services	have	been	performed	at	

the	reporting	date	can	be	reliably	determined;
•	The	costs	incurred	or	to	be	incurred	related	to	the	transac-

tion	can	be	reliably	measured.
The	profit	recognition	based	on	stage	of	completion	is	deter-
mined	as	follows:
•	Installations	include	relatively	low	fees	with	a	quick	turna-

round	and	are	therefore	recognised	after	completion;
•	Service	and	maintenance	fees	are	recognized	for	the	stage	

of	completion.

Operating expenses
General
The	cost	of	production	and	other	expenses	directly	related	to	
ordinary	operational	activities	which	underlie	the	operating	
income	are	stated	as	operating	expenses.
Government subsidies
Government	subsidies	are	recognised	in	the	profit	and	loss	
account	in	the	same	period	as	the	expenses	to	which	they	
relate.	The	subsidy	is	deducted	from	the	related	costs.
Subsidies	relating	to	non-current	assets	are	stated	as	amounts	
received	in	advance	and	credited	to	the	profit	and	loss	
account	over	the	expected	useful	life	of	the	asset	concerned.

Share-based payments
The	share-based	payments	are	settled	in	equity	instruments.	
They	are	valued	at	fair	value	at	the	date	they	were	granted.	
The	fair	value	is	determined	using	an	option	pricing	model	
that	takes	into	account	market-related	vesting	conditions	
attached	to	the	granting	of	the	options.	The	fair	value	is		
written	off	against	the	profit	and	loss	account	over	the	period	
between	the	granting	of	the	options	and	the	time	that	the	
share	options	vest,	adjusted	for	the	expected	number	of	share	
options	to	be	exercised.

Financial income and expenses
Financial	income	and	expenses	comprise	the	interest	received	
from	or	paid	to	third	parties	relating	to	the	year	under	review.	
Interest	is	recognised	according	to	the	effective	interest	
method.	The	interest	income	and	the	interest	expenses	on	
bank	accounts	that	belong	to	one	and	the	same	interest	
combination	are	set	off.	The	interest	balance	of	the	interest	
combination	is	stated	under	interest	income	or	interest	
charges.	
Translation	differences	on	sale	and	purchase	transactions	are	
classified	under	financial	income	and	expenses.	Financial	
expenses	related	to	the	construction	of	tangible	non-current	
assets	have	not	been	recognised	as	part	of	the	asset.

Tax
Tax	is	calculated	on	the	result	before	tax,	taking	into	account	
the	prevailing	tax	rates	and	tax	legislation	in	the	different	
countries.	Tax	is	accounted	for	in	the	profit	and	loss	account,	
unless	it	relates	to	items	directly	recognised	in	equity,	in	
which	case	taxes	are	also	accounted	for	in	equity.	
In	addition	to	the	tax	directly	payable	or	receivable	for	the	
reporting	year,	the	item	also	includes	the	changes	in	the	
deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	and	adjustments	to	tax	
assessments	from	previous	years.	

Minority interest
This	item	comprises	the	share	of	third	parties	in	the	results	
and	equity	of	subsidiaries	according	to	TKH’s	accounting	
principles.

Cash flow statement
The	cash	flow	statement	has	been	drawn	up	using	the	indi-
rect	method.	With	this	method,	the	net	result	is	adjusted	for	
items	in	the	profit	and	loss	account	that	have	no	impact	on	
income	and	expenses	in	the	year	under	review	and	changes	
in	items	in	the	balance	sheet	and	profit	and	loss	account	
whose	income	and	expenses	are	not	considered	to	belong	to	
the	operational	activities.	The	cash	position	in	the	cash	flow	
statement	comprises	cash	and	cash	equivalents.	
The	purchase	price	of	acquisitions	is	included	under	the	cash	
flow	from	investing	activities.
Transactions	which	do	not	involve	a	cash	exchange	are	not	
included	in	the	cash	flow	statement.
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2  Effect of new accounting standards

The	following	amendments	and	interpretations	are	effective	as	
of	1	January	2012:
•	Amendment	on	IAS	12	Deferred	tax:	Recovery	of	

Underlying	Assets
•	Amendment	on	IFRS	1:	Severe	Hyperinflation	and	Removal	

of	Fixed	Dates	for	First-Time	Adopters	
The	adoption	of	these	new	standards,	amendments	to		
standards	and	new	IFRIC	interpretations	do	not	have	a		
material	impact	on	TKH’s	financial	statements.

TKH	did	not	opt	for	early	adoption	of	the	following	new		
standards,	amendments	to	standards,	and	new	IFRIC		
interpretations,	which	are	mandatory	for	annual	periods	
beginning	on	or	after	1	January	2013	or	later	years:
•	IFRS	9	Financial	Instruments	and	subsequent	amendments	

(amendments	to	IFRS	9	and	IFRS	7)

•	IFRS	10	Consolidated	Financial	Statements
•	IFRS	11	Joint	Arrangements
•	IFRS	12	Disclosures	of	Interests	in	Other	Entities
•	IFRS	13	Fair	Value	Measurement
•	IAS	27	Separate	Financial	Statements
•	IAS	28	Investments	in	Associates	and	Joint	Ventures
•	Amendment	on	IFRS	1:	Government	Loans
•	Amendment	on	IFRS	7:	Disclosures	-	Offsetting	Financial	

Assets	and	Financial	Liabilities
•	Amendment	on	IFRS	10,	11	and	12:	Transition	Guidance	
•	Amendment	on	IFRS	10,	12	and	IAS	27:	Investment	Entities	
•	Amendment	
•	Amendment	on	IAS	1:	Presentation	of	Items	of	Other	

Comprehensive	Income
•	Amendment	on	IAS	19	Employee	Benefits
•	Amendment	on	IAS	32:	Offsetting	Financial	Assets	and	

Financial	Liabilities
•	IFRIC	20:	Stripping	Costs	in	the	Production	Phase	of	a	

Surface	Mine
•	Improvements	in	IFRS	2009-2011	(edition	by	the	IASB	in	

May	2012)
TKH	expects	that	the	adoption	of	these	new	standards,	amend-
ments	to	standards	and	new	IFRIC	interpretations	in	future	
periods	will	have	no	material	impact	on	TKH’s	financial	state-
ments,	based	on	its	current	activities,	with	the	exception	of	
IAS	19.	The	impact	of	IAS	19	is	disclosed	under	“new	account-
ing	principles”.
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3  Estimates and judgements

In	preparing	the	consolidated	financial	statements	management	
has	made	estimates	and	judgements.	These	estimates	and	judge-
ments	affect	the	reported	amounts	of	assets	and	liabilities,	reve-
nues	and	expenses	and	disclosed	contingent	assets	and	liabilities	
at	the	date	of	the	financial	statements.	The	actual	outcome	can	
vary	from	these	estimates	and	judgements.
All	assumptions,	expectations	and	forecasts	used	as	a	basis	for	
estimations	in	the	consolidated	financial	statements	are	as	good	
as	possible	a	reflection	of	the	forecast	of	TKH.	Management	is	of	
the	opinion	that	for	the	assumptions,	expectations	and	forecasts	
a	reasonable	basis	exists.	Estimates	are	related	to	known	and	
unknown	risks,	uncertainties	and	other	factors	that	can	be	
impacted	such	that	future	results	and	performances	signifi-
cantly	vary	from	those	forecasted.	

Important	estimates	are:
	 	 	
Price-, credit-, interest- and currency risks
Note	21	contains	information	about	these	risks.	
	 	
Goodwill
Note	1	and	4	include	information	about	the	valuation	of	
goodwill	and	the	impairment	test	on	goodwill.

Intangible non-current asset related to acquisitions
In	the	financial	statements	has	been	reported	an	material	
amount	for	intangible	non-current	assets	obtained	in	an	
acquisition.	The	first	recognition	of	these	assets	at	fair	value	
has	been	determined	on	the	basis	of	valuation	models.	The	
outcomes	are	mainly	dependent	on	the	applied	assumptions	
(percentage	of	growth,	royalty	fees,	useful	lives)	and	future	
expectations.	

Tangible non-current assets, investment property 
and assets held for sale
TKH	possesses	property	for	own	use	and	available	for	sale.		
The	property	is	recorded	at	fair	value	based	on	taxations	of	
independent	valuers.

Pensions
Note	1	and	17	include	assumptions	used	for	the	calculation	of	
the	pension	expenses	and	the	provision	for	pensions.	Changes	
in	the	assumptions,	like	the	discount	rate	and	expected	
return	on	plan	assets,	can	have	a	substantial	influence	on	
these	balances.	An	increase	in	the	discount	rate	with	1%	
would	result	in	a	decrease	of	the	defined	benefit	obligation	
of	about	16%.		

Other provisions
Provisions	are	recognised	in	the	financial	statements	for	
guarantee	liabilities,	claims,	earn-out	contracts,	granted	put	
options	to	minority	shareholders,	assets	of	subsidiaries	and	
associates,	jubilee	bonuses,	impairment	and	onerous	
purchase	contracts.	These	provisions	are	based	on	estimates	
and	available	information.
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Goodwill Development costs
Brandnames, customer relations

and intellectual property

 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
           
Balance at 1 January   144,332 125,627 14,321 9,881 38,676 27,285 6,899 4,977 204,228 167,770

Additions and capitalisation   8,964 3,794   5,149 3,877 14,113 7,671
Acquisitions 72,228 18,338 3,074 4,465 71,910 18,489 904 183 148,116 41,475
Amortisation   -5,019 -3,819 -12,815 -7,098 -3,042 -2,138 -20,876 -13,055
Impairment losses -18  -427    -2,280  -2,725 0 
Adjustment for earn-out liabilities 100 -11       100 -11
Adjustment for put options held by minority shareholders -414 378       -414 378
Exchange differences 60      55  115 0
Balance at 31 December 216,288 144,332 20,913 14,321 97,771 38,676 7,685 6,899 342,657 204,228
         
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses 2,909 2,891 18,410 12,964 37,986 25,171 8,879 5,837 68,184 46,863
Historical cost 219,197 147,223 39,323 27,285 135,757 63,847 16,564 12,736 410,841 251,091

Patents, licenses 
and trademarks Total

4  Intangible non-current assets

The	additions	for	brand	names,	customer	relations	and	intellectual	property	concern	the	fair	
value	which	is	allocated	to	these	intangible	non-current	assets	of	acquired	companies.

Goodwill	has	been	allocated	to	cash-generating	units	being	operational	entities.	On	business-
segment	level,	goodwill	is	allocated	as	follows:

 2012 2011

Telecom Solutions 10.3% - 12.4% 32,108 32,150
Building Solutions 10.3% - 12.3% 143,351 82,956
Industrial Solutions 10.3% - 12.4% 40,829 29,226
  216,288 144,332

The	realisable	value	of	the	cash	generating	units	in	which	goodwill	has	been	reported,	is	the	
higher	of	the	fair	value	less	cost	to	sell	or	the	value	in	use.	The	value	in	use	is	based	on	the	
estimated	discounted	value	of	future	cash	flows.	These	forecasts	are	derived	from	the	internal	

in thousands of euros

business	plans,	which	are	drawn	up	annually	and	have	a	horizon	of	3	up	to	5	years.	These	
business	plans	contain	financial	budgets	and	have	been	prepared	by	local	management	and	
approved	by	the	Executive	Board.	Cash	flows	after	the	financial	budget	period	have	been	
extrapolated,	taken	into	account	a	growth	of	3%.	A	discount	rate	before	taxes	has	been	used	
varying	from	10.3%	to	12.4%.	The	discount	rate	is	based	on	the	WACC	of	TKH	complemented	
with	a	risk	premium	valid	for	the	cash	generating	unit.

Inherent	to	the	applied	calculation	methodology,	a	change	in	the	assumptions	can	lead	to	a	
different	conclusion	regarding	the	impairment.	When	the	actual	discount	rate	would	have	
been	1%	higher	than	which	is	assumed,	then	this	would	result	in	an	impairment	loss	of		
€ 0.1	million.	When	the	future	turnover	would	be	10%	lower	than	assumed,	then	there	would	
be	an	impairment	loss	of	€ 1.7	million.	In	this	sensitivity	analysis	is,	moreover,	no	account	
taken	of	any	cost	savings	measures	to	maintain	the	profitability	on	an	adequate	level.		
The	market	capitalisation	of	TKH	amounted	to	€ 734	million	on	31	December	2012	and	was	
significantly	higher	than	the	value	of	the	net	assets	of	TKH,	which	is	an	additional	indication	
that	there	is	no	impairment.

Discount ratein thousands of euros
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5  Tangible non-current assets

Machinery and 
installations

Balance at 1 January 2011       
Actual book value 94,883 35,984 20,224 2,646 153,737

Changes in 2011     
Purchases 5,064 6,741 9,016 3,582 24,403
Acquisitions 37 229 737  1,003
Disposals -179 -1,474 -463  -2,116
Revaluations 3,539    3,539
Depreciation -3,540 -4,842 -7,153  -15,535
Exchange differences 942 1,570 100 22 2,634
Total changes 5,863 2,224 2,237 3,604 13,928
      
Balance at 31 December 2011      
Historical cost 135,622 182,342 114,519 6,211 438,694
Accumulated depreciation on historical cost -72,506 -144,134 -92,058 39 -308,659
Book value based on historic cost 63,116 38,208 22,461 6,250 130,035
Total unrealised revaluations 37,630    37,630
Actual book value 100,746 38,208 22,461 6,250 167,665
      
Changes in 2012      
Purchases 7,035 12,000 10,134 -2,688 26,481
Acquisitions 4,688 2,841 3,270 416 11,215
Disposals -137 -138 -727  -1,002
Revaluations 5,272    5,272
Depreciation -3,783 -5,585 -8,518  -17,886
Impairments  -390 -9  -399
Exchange differences -152 -129 54 -90 -317
Reclassification of investment property  532    532
Total changes 13,455 8,599 4,204 -2,362 23,896
 
Balance at 31 December 2012
Historical cost 142,657 194,342 124,653 3,523 465,175
Accumulated depreciation on historic cost -71,358 -147,535 -97,988 365 -316,516
Book value based on historic cost 71,299 46,807 26,665 3,888 148,659
Total unrealised revaluation 42,902    42,902
Actual book value 114,201 46,807 26,665 3,888 191,561

Land and
buildings

Operating
assets in
progress

 
Other

equipment Tota l

Building	and	land	are	valued	once	every	3-5	years	by	inde-
pendent	valuers.	The	valuation	was	conducted	in	accordance	
with	internationally	accepted	methods	of	valuation.	The	fair	
values	have	been	determined	based	on	the	following	methods:	

•  Comparative method  
This	method	compares	the	object	with	similar	sales	and/or	
rental	transactions	if	sufficient	transaction	data	is	known.	
The	method	is	based	on	the	assessment	of	the	market,	the	
location	and	the	property	itself

•		Imputed rent capitalisation method	
This	method	determines	the	unofficial	sales	value	using	
the	gross	market	rental	value	of	rentable	floor	area	of	
buildings	and/or	land,	less	property-related	business	
expenses	and	relates	this	to	an	under	current	market	
conditions	deemed	realistic	net	return.	This	return	is	based	
on	the	assessment	of	the	market,	the	location	and	the	
property	itself.	For	the	property	the	yield	ranges	between	

	 8	to	10%	and	the	rental	value	factor	is	between	9	and	12.

•  Replacement method	 	
In	determining	the	replacement	value,	is	taken	into	
account	the	nature	and	purpose	of	buildings	and/or	land,	
the	encountered	technical	and	functional	obsolescence	and	
the	impact	of	changes

When	possible,	the	value	is	based	on	the	average	of	the	three	
valuation	methods	above.	The	comparative	method	is	in	prac-
tice	for	factory	buildings,	depending	on	the	location,	less	
applicable.		

In	the	tangible	non-current	assets	is	included	financial	lease	
for	a	bookvalue	of	€ 1.4	million.	The	accompanying	financial	
debt	included	in	borrowings,	amounts	to	€ 1.2	million.
Buildings	and	land	with	a	book	value	of	€ 0.3	million	have	
been	pledged	to	secure	bank	facilities.
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

in thousands of euros
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Place Country  Ownership and control Activity

   2012 2011
      
Scanton Parking+ B.V. Houten The Netherlands N.A.       49.0% Building Solutions 
Speed Elektronik Vertrieb GmbH Schwelm Germany 25.0% 25.0% Telecom Solutions 
IMI Technology Co. Inc.  Anyang-si South-Korea 8.8% 8.8% Building Solutions 
INC Ltd Taipei Taiwan 33.3% 33.3% Telecom/Building Solutions 
JenDiagnost GmbH Kahla Germany 25.0% 25.0% Building Solutions
Linjator AB Visby Sweden 40.0% 40.0% Telecom Solutions 
NET Italy S.r.l. Brescia Italy 49.0% 49.0% Building Solutions 
Shin-Etsu (Jiangsu) Optical Preform Co. Ltd. Jiangyin PR China 12.5% 12.5% Telecom Solutions 
Star Industry Hongkong PR China 40.0% 40.0% Building Solutions 
 

6  Investment property

7  Financial non-current assets

 2012 2011

Balance at 1 January 3,370 3,363 
Purchases 466  
Reclassification to land and buildings -532  
Change in fair value 194 -33 
Exchange differences -18 40
Balance at 31 December 3,480 3,370

in thousands of euros The	method	of	valuation	is	comparable	to	land	and	buildings	under	tangible	non-current	
assets,	but	only	the	comparative	method	and/or	imputed	rent	capitalisation	method	have	
been	applied.	The	investment	properties	are	valued	once	every	3-5	years	by	independent		
valuers.

Other associates
 Available for sale
 financial assets

   2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
           
Balance at 1 January   5,867 3,223 6,770 8,123   12,637 11,346
Acquisition of an interest   44 3,018     44 3,018
Acquired financial non-current assets       1,055  1,055 0
Share in result of associates, excluding dividend received from available-for-sale 
financial assets   -483 -249     -483 -249
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets     3,145 -1,353   3,145 -1,353
Dividend received   -68 -125     -68 -125
Sales and/or liquidation of other associates   205      205 0
Acquisition of a controlling interest   467      467 0 
Other changes   -7      -7 0
Balance at 31 December   6,025 5,867 9,915 6,770 1,055 0 16,995 12,637

 Other
 financial assets Total

in thousands of euros

The	available-for-sale	financial	assets	relates	to	a	5.06%	interest	in	N.V.	Nederlandsche	Apparatenfabriek	“Nedap”.
The	group	owns	the	following	relevant	other	associates:

Name of other associate
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in thousands of euros

in thousands of euros

As	of	1	July	2012,	the	remaining	shares	of	Scanton	Parking+	B.V.	have	been	acquired.		
From	that	date	the	company	is	consolidated.	
The	overview	on	the	right	shows	the	summarised	financial	information	of	the	other		
associates	on	the	basis	of	the	most	recent	available	information.

in thousands of euros 

Summarised financial information of 
the material associates   80,355 36,383 29,072 277

Net resultTurnoverLiabilitiesAssets

8  Inventories

9  Receivables

 2012 2011

Raw materials                                                                                44,807      34,395
Work-in-progress                                                                             24,350      18,220 
Finished goods 127,501 112,188
 196,658     164,803   

  2012 2011

Trade accounts receivable  130,479 127,937
Allowance for doubtful debts  -5,927 -4,614
  124,552 123,323
Derivative financial instruments 21  428
Other receivables and prepayments  26,610 16,833
  151,162 140,584

Below is shown the aging analyses of trade accounts receivables 
of which the payment term has expired, but which have not been 
impaired. The shown terms are starting from due date.     
  
60 - 90 days  3,589 2,549
90 - 180 days  2,034 2,761
180 - 365 days  864 1,984
Older than 365 days   887
  6,487 8,181

       
    

An	amount	of	€ 498.6	million	is	reported	in	the	profit	and	loss	account	for	costs	of	raw	
materials,	consumables	and	subcontracted	work	(2011:	€ 439.8	million)
A	part	of	inventories	is	valued	at	lower	net	realisable	value.	The	book	value	of	these	written-
down	inventories	is	€ 10	million.	The	total	write-down	on	inventories,	based	on	aging	analyses,	
in	2012	recognised	in	the	Profit	and	Loss	account	is	€ 2.9	million	(2011:	€ 2.0	million).

    2012 2011

Balance at 1 January  4,614 4,157
Additions   1,281 1,848
Releases   -87 -1,153
Acquisitions   950 38
Withdrawal  -840 -294
Exchange differences  9 18
Balance at 31 December  5,927 4,614 
  
Below is shown the aging analyses of the allowance for doubtful 
debts. The terms shown are starting from due date.    
 
60 - 90 days  801 695
90 - 180 days  1,626 800
180 - 365 days  733 439
Older than 365 days  2,767 2,680
  5,927 4,614

The	movement	of	the	allowance	for	doubtful	debts	is	as	follows: The	receivables	consist	of:

in thousands of euros



 100

10  Construction contracts for third parties

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Amounts due from contract customers, stated under receivables      48,380 46,258
Amounts owed to contract customers, stated under current liabilities    -31,940  -35,347
  16,440 10,911

Construction contracts incurred plus recognised profits and losses   220,595 250,730
Less: invoiced amounts                                                     -204,155 -239,819
    16,440 10,911  

   	 						

The	amounts	are	expected	to	be	settled	within	12	months.
At	31	December	2012	advance	payments	and	performance	guarantees	have	been	provided	to	
customers	for	a	total	amount	of	€ 23.3	million	(2011:	€ 23.9	million).	These	guarantees	have	
been	reported	under	contingent	liabilities	(ref.	22).

11  Cash and cash equivalents

12  Assets held for sale

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Cash and bank balances  66,465      28,597   					

The	cash	and	bank	balances	are	free	on	hand.

The	assets	held	for	sale	include	business	premises	in	the	Netherlands.	The	properties	are	for	
sale	because	of	past	relocation	of	activities,	and	therefore	are	no	longer	used	for	operational	
activities.	It	is	expected	that	sales	will	be	settled	within	one	year.

  2012 2011

Balance at 1 January  7,165 7,165
Disposals                                                                                                   
Balance at 31 December   7,165  7,165       

13  Equity 14  Dividend
The	group	equity	is	equal	to	the	shareholders’	equity.	See	the	consolidated	statement	of	
changes	in	equity	for	a	breakdown	of	the	group	equity	and	the	disclosure	notes	to	the	
company	balance	sheet.

For	further	details	is	referred	to	the	company’s	financial	statements.	

  2012 2011

Deferred taxes  16 62,654 39,195
Pensions 17 12,121 12,412
Other long-term provisions  20,923 19,476
Other short-term provisions   5,417 3,542
                 101,115 74,625  

15  Provisions

The	provisions	for	tax	and	pensions	are	generally	long-term.

in thousands of euros

in thousands of euros
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Provision for guarantees
The	provision	for	guarantees	is	related	to	guarantees	issued	contractually	on	products	and	
services	supplied.	The	purpose	of	the	provision	is	to	cover	possible	costs	arising	if	products	and	
services	supplied	do	not	meet	the	agreed	quality	requirements	under	normal	conditions	of	use.	
The	provision	is	based	on	estimates	made	on	the	basis	of	historic	guarantee	data	relating	to	
comparable	products	and	services.	In	general	the	accrued	liabilities	are	expected	to	arise	in	the	
next	one	to	two	years.

The	specification	and	movement	of	the	other	provisions	is	as	follows:

TotalWarranty
Employee

liabilities

Balance at 1 January 2012 2,837  102 18,352  1,173 78 421  55 23,018 
Additions 2,144     43 212     1,879 164 4,442
Acquisition 1,138 2,872 2,821  141  234 22 7,228
Withdrawal -1,276 -75 -1,610  -12   -540   -3,513
Releases  -1,469 -2,176 -789  -28  -13  -22  -4,497
Adjustment on paid goodwill  100 -414       -314 
Exchange differences -19        -5  -24
Balance at 31 December 2012   3,355  823 18,360 1,317 277 1,972  236  26,340 
                                                                         

 Restructuringin thousands of euros Earn-out

Put-options
of minority

shareholders
Onerous

contracts Other

  2012 2011

Term of the other provisions shorter than 1 year  5,417 3,542
Term longer than 5 years                                                                            7,274       6,289

The	long-term	provisions	have	been	discounted.	The	increase	of	the	provision	as	a	result	of	
expiration	of	time	and	adjustment	of	the	discount	rate	is	minor.	The	short-term	provisions	
have	not	been	discounted	since	the	effect	is	not	material.

  

EKB Zuid B.V. 10.0% 1 January 2011
BB-Lightconcepts B.V. 20.0% 1 January 2011
SecurityWorks B.V. 10.0% 1 January 2011
EFB Nordics A/S 10.0% 1 January 2014
USE System Engineering B.V. 25.0% 1 January 2014
Ithaca  25.0% 1 November 2016
Mextal B.V. 10.0% 1 January 2016
Pantaflex B.V.  8.0% 1 January 2017
Flexposure B.V. 30.0% 1 January 2019
KLS Netherlands B.V. 42.5% 27.0% as from 1 January 2015, 1.3% as from 1 January  
  2017, 13.5% as from 1 January 2019 and 0.7% as from  
  1 January 2020
Parking + Protection B.V.    49.0% 25% as from 1 January 2016, 24% as from 1 January  
  2019

Percentage Option exercisable as fromName of subsidiary

Earn-out
For	several	acquisitions,	contractual	arrangements	have	been	made	about	earn-out	payments,	
when	certain	target	are	realised.	The	liability	for	earn	out	payments	has	been	determined	on	
the	basis	of	expected	fair	value	of	the	future	cash	outflows.	The	term	of	the	liability	is	
contracted	and	an	amount	of	€ 0.5	million	will	expire	within	one	year.	The	remaining	
amount	has	a	term	of	3	years.

The	expected	maturity	of	the	liabilities	mentioned	on	the	right	is	equally	to	the	period	as	
from	31	December	2012	till	the	first	possibility	to	exercise.	The	amount	to	be	paid	depends	
on	the	future	results	of	the	mentioned	subsidiaries.	The	year	of	the	cash	outflow	is	dependent	
on	a	decision	to	exercise	by	TKH	or	the	option	owner.

Put options of minority shareholders
TKH	has	option	rights	on	several	minority	shares	held	by	local	management	of	subsidiaries	of	
TKH.	Besides,	TKH	has	a	liability	to	buy	these	shares	when	local	management	decides	to	offer	
these	shares.	A	provision	has	been	recognised	for	this	obligation	based	on	the	expected	
discounted	value	of	the	future	cash	outflows.	It	concerns	the	following	option	rights	and	
liabilities.

in thousands of euros
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Intangable
non-current 

assets

Jubilee and 
pension  

provision

Balance at 1 January 2011 -8,671 -10,655 -6,703 -3,138  2,064 2,377 2,032 139 -22,555 

(Charge) / credit to equity -1,192        361   -831
(Charge) / credit to profit or loss  2,488 -932  -4,636   -50 1,452   -22 -1,700
Acquisitions  -4,735      783   -3,952
Balance at 31 December 2011 -9,863  -12,902 -7,635 -7,774  2,014 4,612 2,393  117 -29,038 
 
(Charge) / credit to equity -1,004        -142   -1,146
(Charge) / credit to profit or loss -267 163 42 -2,115  210 1,360   -21  -628 
Acquisitions  -19,402      610    -18,792 
Balance at 31 December 2012 -11,134 -32,141  -7,593  -9,889  2,224 6,582  2,251  96 -49,604      

Financial
instruments Totalin thousands of euros

The	deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	relate	to	the	following	items.	The	movements	are	also	presented:

Inventories 
and work in 

progress

Difference fiscal-
commercial 
impairment

Unused tax
losses 

and credits Other

16  Deferred tax

Revaluation   
of property

Certain	deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	have	been	offset	in	accordance	with	the	applicable	
principle	in	the	IFRS.	The	deferred	tax	assets	and	liabilities	are	recognised	in	the	balance	
sheet	as	follows:

TKH	has	unused	tax	losses,	which	have	not	been	recognised	because	realisation	is	uncertain.		
These	unused	tax	losses	can	be	compensated	with	future	profits.	Based	on	current	tax	legislation,	
these	unused	and	unrecognised	tax	losses	have	the	following	terms:

  2012 2011

Term infinite  3,741 2,219
Term long than 10 years  350 212
Term between the 5 and 10 years   3,664       1,471
Term shorter than 5 years     987       2,803
       8,742 6,705

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Deferred tax assets stated under non-current assets   13,050 10,157
Deferred tax liabilities stated under provisions 15 -62,654 -39,195
   -49,604  -29,038

Employee liabilities
The	provision	for	employee	liabilities	in	relation	to	defined	jubilee	and	reward	arrangements	
is	long-term.

Onerous contracts
This	concerns	a	rental	contract	with	a	lower	subletting	price.	The	provision	has	a	term	up	to	
2	years.

Restructuring liability
The	restructuring	provision	relates	mainly	to	the	lay-off	of	employees.	The	liability	will	be	
settled	within	1	year.

Other provisions
The	other	provisions	relate	to	claims,	matters	of	dispute,	guarantees	which	are	expected	to		
be	claimed	and	other	contractual	obligations.	These	liabilities	consist	of	amounts	at	which		
a	conviction	by	an	independent	party	will	probably	lead	to	compensation.	The	recognised	
provisions	have	been	based	on	the	best	estimate,	made	on	the	basis	of	present	available	infor-
mation	and	will	mainly	have	a	term	no	longer	than	1	year.	There	is	no	asset	recognized	for	
expected	compensation	fees	in	relation	to	the	reported	provisions.

in thousands of euros
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17  Pensions
Defined contribution plan
In	the	Netherlands	the	majority	of	the	employees	are	covered	by	the	industry	pension	scheme	
of	Metalektro	and	Pensioenfonds	Metaal	&	Techniek.	These	schemes	qualify	as	a	defined	bene-
fit	plan.	However,	the	industry	pension	funds	were	unable	to	supply	the	necessary	informa-
tion.	Among	the	reasons	they	mentioned	the	fact	that	there	is	no	reliable	and	consistent	
basis	for	allocating	the	liabilities,	the	fund’s	investments	and	the	costs	to	the	member	compa-
nies	and	that	the	actuarial	risks	are	limited.	Consequently,	TKH	does	not	know	what	its	share	
is	in	the	surplus	or	deficit	of	the	industry	pension	fund.	For	these	reasons	the	schemes	are	
treated	as	a	defined	contribution	plan.
In	the	fourth	quarter	report	from	Metalektro	and	Metaal	&	Techniek	is	stated	that	their	co-
verage	ratio	at	the	end	of	2012	is	93.9%	and	92.4%	on	the	basis	of	their	accounting	principles.	

These	industry	pension	funds	have	announced	that	pensions	rights	will	be	reduced	on	1	April	
2013	with	respectively	5.1%	and	6.3%.	If	the	coverage	ratio	will	not	recover	sufficiently,	than	
the	pension	rights	could	be	further	decreased	in	the	future.
The	employees	of	the	foreign	subsidiaries	are	members	of	industry	or	state-managed	pension	
plans.	The	group	companies	are	only	required	to	pay	a	certain	percentage	of	the	salary	costs	
to	the	state	managed	pension	plans.	

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

For defined contribution plans a charge is included of:  6,448       5,843   						

Defined benefit plan
The	group	has	defined	benefit	and	top-up	pension	plans	for	primarily	Dutch	employees.	The	
plans	differ	from	one	company	to	another	and	relate	mainly	to	average	salary	schemes.	The	
pension	schemes	are	managed	by	a	pension	insurance	company.	The	actuarial	calculations	are	
made	by	actuaries	of	Towers	Watson.	The	principles	which	are	adopted	in	the	actuarial		
calculations	are	mentioned	on	the	right.

The	discount	rate	is	based	on	the	Rate:Link-method	developed	by	Towers	Watson.		
The	Rate:Link-method	is	determined	based	on	all	available	information	of	AA-bonds.	
The	amounts	recognised	in	the	balance	sheet	with	respect	to	the	defined	benefit	pension	
plans	are	mentioned	on	the	right.

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Present value of the defined benefit obligations  79,752 52,985           
Fair value of the plan assets  -65,706 -56,386
  14,046  -3,401
 
Net actuarial (losses) / gains not recognised in the balance sheet   -1,925 15,813  
Net pension obligations included under provisions  12,121 12,412

The	amounts	recognised	in	the	profit	and	loss	account	with	respect	to	the	defined	benefit	
plans	are	mentioned	on	the	right.

  2012 2011

Pension costs allocated to the year of service  1,266 1,599
Interest costs  2,806 2,875
Expected return on plan assets   -2,382 -2,137
Actuarial gains   -629 -342
Past service costs    17  17
Pension expenses in profit & loss account  1,078 2,012

Principles  2012 2011

Discount rate  3.5% 5.4%
Expected return on plan assets    4.4% 4.4%
Expected rate of salary increases  3.5% 3.5%
Expected rate of increase in social insurance contributions  2.0% 2.0%
Future pension increases   1.5% 1.5%

in thousands of euros
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The	change	in	the	present	value	of	the	defined	benefit	obligations	is	as	follows: The	change	in	the	fair	value	of	the	plan	assets	is	as	follows:

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Balance at 1 January  52,985 52,170
Pension costs allocated to the year of service  1,266  1,599  
Interest costs  2,806  2,875  
Contributions by participants  617  552
Actuarial losses / (gains)   23,318 -2,301
Benefits paid  -1,694  -1,910
Acquisitions   454
Balance at 31 December  79,752 52,985 

  2012 2011

Balance at 1 January   56,386 50,611
Expected return on plan assets  2,382  2,137 
Actuarial gains   6,192 3,278
Contributions by employer  1,638 1,340
Contributions by participants  617 552    
Entitlements paid  -1,509 -1,532
Balance at 31 December  65,706 56,386   

The	amounts	in	the	financial	year	and	previous	years	are	as	follows:

in thousands of euros 2012 2011 2010 2009

Present value of the defined benefit obligation 79,752 52,985 52,170 51,561
Fair value of the plan assets  -65,706 -56,386 -50,611 -43,698
Net obligation 14,046 -3,401 1,559 7,863

Effect of experience adjustments on the defined benefit obligation  23,318 -2,194 -1,873 -3,176
Effect of experience adjustments on the plan assets 6,192 3,282 3,927 1,198

The	plan	assets	are	managed	by	a	pension	insurance	company.	The	fair	value	of	the	plan	
assets	can	be	specified	as	follows:

  2012 2011

Equities  24.4% 20.1%
Bonds  75.4% 79.7%
Cash and short-term deposits   0.2%  0.2%
  100.0% 100.0%

The	expected	return	is	calculated	on	the	basis	of	the	weighted	average	of	the	expected	returns		
of	the	individual	categories	of	the	plan	assets,	taking	into	account	their	shares	in	the	investment	
portfolio.	The	actual	return	on	the	plan	assets	was	€ 8.6	million	(2011:	€ 5.4	million).
TKH	expects	to	pay	a	contribution	of	€ 3.0	million	(including	employee	contributions)	to	the	
defined	benefit	plans	in	2013.

18  Non-current liabilities

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Debts to credit institutions  19 205,000 125,000
Amortised cost for the closing of the credit facility  -2,555 -1,498
  202,445 123,502      

in thousands of euros
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19  Debts to credit institutions

in thousands of euros

  

   2012 2011 

Liabilities reported under non-current liabilities  4 years Euribor + margin 205,000 125,000
Committed credit facilities reported under current liabilities  < 1 year Euribor + margin 50,000
Debts to credit institutions reported under current liabilities < 1 year Euribor + margin 9,564 4,103
Cash and cash equivalents   -66,465 -28,597
Net interest bearing liabilities   198,099 100,506

Interest AmountTerms Amount

No	special	security	was	provided	for	the	financing.

20  Trade and other payables

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Trade creditors  125,870 112,717
Deferred income  2,161 2,667
Other taxes and social insurance contributions   16,120 10,718
Derivative financial instruments 21 9,007 10,064
Other payables and accruals  62,537 52,010
  215,695 188,176

21  Financial instruments
General
The	main	financial	risks	faced	by	TKH	relate	to	the	interest	risks,	currency	risks	and	price	risks.	
TKH’s	financial	policy	is	aimed	at	minimising	the	effects	of	fluctuations	in	currency-exchange	
and	interest	rates	on	its	results	in	the	short	term	and	following	market	rates	in	the	long	term.	
TKH	uses	financial	derivates	to	manage	the	financial	risks	relating	to	the	business	operations.	

 

Net debt compared to EBITDA  < 3.0 1.6
Interest coverage ratio  > 4.0  9.8

Term
Realisation 

31-12-2012

Capital and liquidity risk
TKH	uses	for	solvency	(group	equity	/	total	assets)	a	target	of	at	least	35%.	At	year-end	this	target	
is	more	than	met.	In	April	2012	TKH	has	concluded	with	a	group	of	banks	an	increase	in	the	
committed	credit	facility	of	€ 100	million	to	a	total	of	€ 350	million.	This	concerns	for	€ 300	
million	a	revolving	and	standby	facility,	which	provides	a	high	flexibility	to	draw	downs	and	
repayments.	This	facility	matures	at	the	end	of	December	2017.	In	addition,	a	term	loan	of	
€ 50	million	has	been	agreed	that	will	expire	at	the	end	of	2013.	Furthermore,	there	are	uncom-
mitted	facilities	with	different	banks	with	a	total	amount	of	€ 265	million.	At	31	December	2012	
TKH	has	unused	credit	facilities	in	total	of	€ 255	million	(2011:	€ 340	million).	Herewith	is	taken	
into	account	the	provided	bank	guarantees.	The	maximum	credit	facility	per	subsidiary	is	deter-
mined	centrally.	

In	the	credit	agreements	the	following	financial	ratios	have	been	agreed,	which	are	measured	
on	a	quarterly	basis:	
	 	 	 	

TKH	operates	within	these	ratios.

The	company	does	not	undertake	speculative	positions.	
For	financial	risks	and	the	control	of	these	risks	is	referred	to	the	report	of	the	Executive	Board	
on	pages	53-55.
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Contractual
Cash flows

Financial assets   217,627 217,627  217,627 
Cash and cash equivalents 0.5% 66,465 66,548 66,548   
Long-term liabilities  2.9% -202,445  -231,800  -1,468 -4,403 -225,929   
Current borrowings  1.5% -59,564  -59,787 -59,787                                     
Trade creditors  -125,870   -125,870  -125,870
Other payables exclusive derivate financial instruments   -62,537 -62,537  -62,537
Interest rate swaps (derivates)  -8,720 -9,429  -1,077  -2,344   -6,008
Foreign currency forward contracts (derivates)   -287   -287  -106  -81  -100
                                                                  -175,331  -205,535     33,330    -6,828 -232,037     0

> 3 months
< 1 year > 5 yearsin thousands of euros

Average
interest Bookvalue < 3 months 1-5 years

Interest risk
The	interest	risk	policy	aims	at	minimising	the	interest-rate	risks	associated	with	the	financing	
of	the	company	and	thus	at	the	same	time	optimising	the	net	interest	costs.	Long	term	financing	
has	been	obtained	with	a	floating-rate	and	will	eventually	be	fixed	by	means	of	interest	rate	

Average interest rate

 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Maturity < 1 year 4.41%   50,000   -1,443
Maturity between 1 and 2 years   3.49% 4.39% 25,000 50,000  -1,025   -1,367
Maturity between 2 and 5 years 1.85%  3.49% 70,000 25,000  -6,252 -2,930
Maturity > 5 years  3.06%   50,000    -4,611
   145,000   125,000     -8,720      -8,908      

Nominal Amount Fair value

in thousands of euros

The	following	table	provides	an	overview	of	the	liquidity	risk	in	the	financial	obligations	of	TKH.

The	cash	flows	in	this	statement	are	not	discounted.	The	cash	flows	are	based	on	the	interest	
rates	and	the	exchange	rates	at	the	end	of	the	year.	The	expected	cash	flows	for	interest	rate	

swaps	are	based	on	the	contracted	fixed	interest	rates	compared	to	variable	interest	rate	at	
balance	sheet	date.	

swaps.	The	following	table	provides	an	overview	of	the	for	hedging	purposes	agreed	interest	rate	
swaps.

Cash	flow	hedge	accounting	has	been	applied	to	these	interest	rate	swap.	There	was	no		
material	ineffectiveness	in	relation	to	these	hedges.
The	following	sensitivity	analysis	of	borrowings	and	related	interest	rate	swaps	to	interest-	
rate	movements	assumes	an	immediate	1%	change	in	interest	rates	for	all	currencies	and	
maturities	from	their	level	on	31	December	2012,	with	all	other	variables	held	constant.	

A	raise	of	the	interest	rates	with	1%	would	result	in:

•  Additional	interest	costs	of	about	€ 1.0	million	as	a	result	of	financing	with	a	floating		
interest	rate.

•  An	increase	of	the	fair	value	of	the	financial	instruments	with	about	€ 4.0	million	as	a	
result	of	the	contracted	interest	rate	swap.	This	raise	would	be	recognised	in	the	hedging	
reserves	of	the	equity.
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Euro USD

   2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
           
Receivables   142,485 154,577 15,428 9,248 41,629 23,017 199,542 186,842 
Cash and cash equivalents   49,565 17,288 6,779 2,279 10,121 9,030  66,465 28,597 
Non-current liabilities    -202,445  -123,502      -202,445 -123,502 
Current borrowings   -53,364 -481 -2,949 -3,473 -3,251 -149 -59,564 -4,103 
Trade and other payables   -213,132 -194,528 -6,534 -5,869 -27,969 -23,126  -247,635  -223,523                                                
   -276,891 -146,646 12,724 2,185 20,530 8,772 -243,637  -135,689 

 Other currencies Total

in thousands of euros

On	balance	sheet	date	TKH	has	entered	into	contracts	for	foreign	currency	forward	contracts:	

Average exchange rate Nominal Amount Fair value

 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Cash flow hedges of balance sheet positions
Buy USD with settlement within 3 months  1.34  1,495  70
Sell USD with settlement within 3 months 1.32 1.43 469 1,928 1 -134
Buy JPY with settlement within 3 months 104.60  67,254   -50
Buy CNY with settlement within 3 months 8.06  25,344  -100

Cash flow hedges
Sell USD with settlement within 3 months 1.34 1.41 1,450 7,238 -19 -432
Sell USD with settlement within 3 months and 1 year 1.31 1.40 2,428 10,151 19  -576
Sell USD with settlement within 1 - 2 years  1.37   345  -14
Buy CNY with settlement within 3 months  8.18 8.79 18,618 33,361 -38 288
Buy CNY with settlement within 3 months and 1 year 8.12 8.53 36,819 13,549 -100 70
     -287 -728       

	
Currency risk
It	is	TKH	policy	to	hedge	currency	risks	on	purchases	if	these	risks	cannot	be	charged	to	the	
market.	The	currency	risk	resulting	from	the	conversion	of	TKH’s	net	investment	in	entities	in	
currencies	other	than	Euro,	will	be	covered	by	investment	in	local	currency	financing,	if	possi-
ble.	The	remaining	risk	is	not	hedged.	Sales	transactions	in	foreign	currencies	are	fully	hedged	

in	case	of	material	transactions.	The	main	currency	that	causes	this	exposure	is	the	USD.	
Foreign	currency	forward	contracts	are	applied	to	restrict	the	exposure	of	changes	in	the	
currency	rates.	These	contracts	have	mainly	a	term	to	maturity	of	less	than	one	year.	
The	carrying	amounts	of	monetary	assets	and	liabilities	specified	to	currencies,	are	as	follows:

Time	differences	between	the	settlement	of	the	forward	contracts	and	the	sale	and	purchase	
contracts	are	anticipated	by	the	use	of	foreign	currency	bank	accounts	or	the	roll	over	of	
forward	contracts.	The	translation	risk	on	financial	instruments,	when	the	currency	rate	of	

the	USD	compared	to	the	euro	will	decrease	with	10%	per	31	December	2012,	with	all	other		
variables	held	constant,	would	expected	to	have	no	material	influence	on	the	result	and	
equity.	In	this	calculation	is	taken	into	account	the	foreign	currency	forward	contracts.

in thousands of euros



 108

Price risk
An	important	raw	material	for	TKH	is	copper.	The	price	risk	of	copper	is	limited	by	a	continu-
ously	monitoring	of	sales	prices	against	the	development	of	the	purchase	price	where	price	
changes	are	passed	on	to	customers.	Important	raw	materials	such	as	copper,	steel,	aluminium	
and	PVC	are	purchased	with	forward	delivery	contracts,	to	reduce	the	price	risk	on	the	sale	of	
finished	products,	provided	that:

Fair value of derivate financial instruments
Cash	flow	hedge	accounting	has	been	applied	for	the	derivate	financial	instruments.	There	
was	no	material	ineffectiveness	in	relation	to	these	hedges.	At	the	balance	sheet	date	the	fair	
value	of	the	derivate	financial	instrument	is	as	follows:

Fair value of financial instruments
The	carrying	amount	of	trade	receivables	and	other	receivables	approaches	the	fair	value,	as		
a	possible	uncollectible	amount	is	accounted	for	by	a	fair	value	adjustment.	The	carrying	
amount	of	cash	and	cash	equivalents,	trade	creditors	and	other	payables	approaches	the	fair	
value.	The	fair	value	of	interest	bearing	long-term	debts	approaches	the	amortised	cost,	
because	it	bears	a	floating	interest	and	the	interest	rate	swap	is	recognised	at	fair	value.			
The	fair	value	and	the	book	value	of	derivate	financial	instruments	is	based	on	calculations,	
quoted	market	prices	or	price	quotations	of	financial	institutions.	Active	markets	are	available	
for	the	derivates	used.	The	foreign	currency	forward	contracts	and	interest	rate	swaps	qualify	
as	level	2	instruments.

in thousands of euros

LiabilitiesReceivables

•  a	sales	contract	with	a	fixed	price	has	been	entered	into,

•  delivery	will	not	take	place	within	one	month,	and

•  an	important	quantity	is	required	for	production.
TKH	made	limited	use	of	financial	derivates	to	hedge	price	risks	on	free	inventories.	

Credit risk
The	financial	assets	of	the	group	mainly	consist	of	cash,	trade	receivables	and	other	receiva-
bles.	The	credit	risk	for	cash	and	cash	equivalents	is	run	at	major	international	system	banks.		
The	credit	risks	mainly	relate	to	trade	receivables.	It	concerns	however	a	risk	that	is	spread	
over	a	large	number	of	customers,	that	operate	in	several	countries	and	different	industries.		
At	balance	sheet	date	there	was	no	concentration	of	credit	risk	for	material	amounts.	A	part	of	
the	risk	is	insured	at	credit	insurance	companies.	This	are	mainly	receivables	on	customers	in	
the	subsegment	manufacturing	systems	and	customers	in	France	and	Germany.	In	addition,	

for	large	projects	to	foreign	customers	bank	guarantees,	advanced	payments	(towards	a	bank	
guarantee)	or	confirmed	irrevocable	“Letter	of	Credits”	are	used.	The	maximum	exposure	to	
credit	risk	is	represented	by	the	carrying	amounts	of	financial	assets	that	are	recognized	in	
the	balance	sheet,	including	derivate	financial	instruments	with	a	positive	market	value.
There	are	no	significant	overdue	debtor	payment	terms,	for	which	no	provision	has	been	
recognised.

in thousands of euros   2012 2011

Balance at 1 January    -7,092 -6,029
Gains / (Losses) on cash flow hedges  141 -410 
Transfer to Profit and Loss account  195 -653    
Recognition at costs or book value from an obtained hedged 
asset or liability
Balance at 31 December   -6,756  -7,092 

Movement of the cash flow hedge reserve

  
 2012 2011 2012  2011

Interest rate swaps   8,720  8,908
Foreign currency forward contracts  428 287  1,156
 0 428 9,007  10,064
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22  Contingent liabilities

in thousands of euros 2012 2011

Bank guarantees provided to third parties 25,711 25,296
Purchase obligations arising from orders for tangible non-current assets 834 1,338

Operating lease and rent obligations
TKH has liabilities for the operational lease of cars and the rent of premises. Minimum operating lease and rent payments recognised as an expense during the year 14,199 13,150

At balance sheet date TKH has the following outstanding operating lease and rent obligations:
Expiry date within 1 year 14,209 9,705
Between 2 and 5 years 26,964 22,624
Expiry date after 5 years 3,090 4,000
 44,263 36,329

Frame	work	agreements	have	been	concluded	with	respect	to	the	availability	of	some	important	
raw	materials.	There	are	no	long-term	purchase	obligations.

Claims
TKH	and	its	consolidated	subsidiaries	are	involved	in	a	number	of	legal	proceedings.	According	
to	the	information	currently	available	and	legal	advice	received,	TKH	expects	any	adverse	

23  Turnover

in thousands of euros   2012 2011

Sales of goods and products  760,776 703,640
Turnover from construction contracts for third parties and services  339,402 356,539
Other operating income  2,204 902
Total turnover  1,102,382 1,061,081

24  Information by segment
TKH	Group	is	organised	in	three	operational	segments:	Telecom	Solutions,	Building	Solutions	
and	Industrial	Solutions.	The	Solutions	are	based	on	the	product	/	market	combinations	the	
TKH	companies	operate	in.	In	the	appendix	on	pages	137-139	is	shown	in	which	solutions	the	

effects	from	the	outcome	of	these	legal	proceedings	to	be	adequately	covered	by	other		
provisions	or	insurance.

different	subsidiaries	operate	in.	In	the	annual	report	on	pages	41-49	is	a	detailed	overview	of	
the	activities	by	business-segment.	TKH	reports	its	primary	business-segment	information	on	
the	basis	of	these	solutions.	
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Telecom Solutions Building Solutions Industrial Solutions
Unallocated revenues 

and costs Total

in thousands of euros 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012  2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
           
Turnover
External turnover 167,125 161,730 436,851 382,147 497,627  517,204 779  1,102,382 1,061,081
Inter-segment turnover          0 0   
Total turnover 167,125 161,730 436,851 382,147 497,627  517,204  779   1,102,382 1,061,081       

ROS 8.8% 8.0% 5.3% 5.4% 12.1%  13.5%    7.8%  8.7%                                          

Result                                                                                                                         
EBITA before one-of income and expenses 14,710 12,959 22,944 20,498 59,989  69,589 -11,416 -10,939 86,227  92,107                              
One-off expenses  -402  -7,567 -2,000    -4,214  -12,183 -2,000
Impairment  -170  -2,874   -273   -1  -3,318 0 
Amortisation -1,009 -1,119 -14,417 -7,851 -5,450  -3,900  -185 -20,876  -13,055
Segment operating result 13,129 11,840 -1,914 10,647 54,266  65,689 -15,631 -11,124 49,850  77,052    

Financial income and expenses          -12,059  -7,490
Share of result of associates          -67 82
Change in provision for earn-out and put-options 
minority shareholders           2,965 0
Tax on profit          -9,722 -15,563
Net result          30,967  54,081 

Telecom Solutions Building Solutions Industrial Solutions Elimination and other Total

in thousands of euros 2012 2011 2012 2011  2012  2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
           
Other information
Purchases 1 4,891 10,137 161,708 53,885  33,502  10,530  290  200,391 74,552       
Depreciation and amortisation 1  3,292 3,936 21,927 13,741  12,933  10,407 218 247 38,370 28,331 
(Reversal of) impairment losses recognised in 
the profit and loss account 170  2,874   273   1  3,318 0
Employees 706 670 1,936 1,526  2,067  1,844 27 22 4,736 4,062

Balance sheet
Assets 128,539 120,549 502,084 316,325  369,682  314,430 25,624 21,128 1,025,929 772,432
Assets held for sale         7,165 7,165 7,165  7,165
Other associates 324 253 1,241 1,154  4,460  4,460   6,025 5,867
Consolidated total assets          1,039,119 785,464 

Liabilities of the segment  36,303 37,387 112,267 81,549  147,856  151,650 315,111 157,007 611,537 427,593

Primary business segments 

1 In intangible and tangible non-current assets
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in thousands of euros

TurnoverNon-current assets 1

  
 2012 2011 2012 2011

Geographical segments
Netherlands 195,161 184,901 290,025     289,958   
Europe (other) 259,410 149,996 521,521  515,699      
Asia  71,955 41,187 203,286  180,004   
North America 16,148 3,267 50,816 46,880 
Other regions and eliminations 1,049 1,779 36,734 28,540                                                       
 543,723 381,130 1,102,382 1,061,081  

25  Personnel expenses

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Wages and salaries  176,804 150,805
Social insurance contributions  31,363  24,687   
Pension costs   7,526 7,855 
Temporary labour  18,611 18,840
Other personnel expenses  7,316 7,603
   241,620  209,790 

	 	 	 	 	 	

26  Share-based payments
For	a	disclosure	of	the	share-based	payments	is	referred	to	the	company’s	financial	statements.

27  Depreciation

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Depreciation of tangible non-current assets  17,886 15,535 
Result on disposal of tangible non-current assets  -198 -292
Changes in fair value of investment property  -194  33
    17,494 15,276   

28  Amortisation

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Amortisation of intangible non-current assets  8,061 5,957
Amortisation of intangible non-current assets from acquisitions as 
a result of “Purchase Price Allocations”   12,815 7,098
    20,876 13,055 

29  Impairment

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Impairment of intangible non-current assets  2,725 
Impairment of tangible non-current assets  399 
Onerous contracts  194
   3,318 0 

An	impairment	is	recognised	particularly	for	loss	making	activities	that	no	longer	will	be	
continued	or	will	be	divested.

1 Non-current assets excluding deferred tax asset
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30  Other operating expenses
Other	operating	expenses	include	overhead,	selling,	accommodation	and	manufacturing	
expenses.	The	total	operating	expenses	over	the	financial	year	include	the	following	items:

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Research and development costs, excluding costs paid 
by customers  10,776 9,764
Government subsidies for training costs  -894 -1,424 

31  Financial income and expenses
in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Exchange and translation differences, inclusive the effect of realized 
cash flow hedges   -266  438
Amortised transaction costs  -360 0
Interest income  1,384 1,818
Interest expenses  -12,817 -9,746
  -12,059  -7,490

32  Tax

in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Current tax  9,094 13,863
Deferred tax  628 1,700   
Total tax on profit  9,722 15,563 

The	tax	burden	is	calculated	at	the	prevailing	tax	rates	in	each	country.	The	tax	burden	over	
the	year	can	be	reconciled	with	the	profit	before	tax	as	follows:

in thousands of euros    2012  2011

Profit before tax   40,689  69,644

Tax calculated at the Dutch tax rate         10,172 25.0% 17,411 25.0%

Correction due to tax effect for:
Fiscal participation exemption        17 0.0%  -21 0.0%  
Non deductible expenses        1,562 3.8% 579  0.8% 
Advantages from tax facilities        -4,449 -10.9% -5,140 -7.4% 
Losses on which no deferred tax asset is recognised / recognition of deferred tax asset for unused tax losses from the past or 
profits set off against tax losses in the past         2,624 6.4% 3,291  4.7%                             
Settlement of the returns for income tax for previous years         -657 -1.6% -1,871 -2.7%                             
Differences in tax rates for foreign subsidiaries         453 1.2% 1,314 1.8% 
Effective tax burden        9,722  23.9% 15,563 22.2%
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33  Earnings per share attributable to shareholders
in thousands of euros  2012 2011

Weighted average number of (depositary receipts of) shares (x 1,000)  37,512 37,146
Effect of share options (x 1,000)  111 147
Weighted average number of (depositary receipts of) shares diluted (x 1,000)  37,623 37,293

Net profit (x € ‘000)  30,967 54,081
Less: Minority interests   -2,214       -600
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the company  28,753 53,481

Net profit (x € ‘000)  30,967 54,081
Amortisation of intangible non-current assets from acquisitions   12,815 7,098
Taxes due to amortisation  -3,646 -2,095
Net profit before amortisation  40,136 59,084
Less: Minority interests  -2,214 -600
Net profit before amortisation attributable to the shareholders of the company   37,922 58,484

Net profit before amortisation  40,136 59,084
Change in provision for earn-out and put options minority shareholder  -2,965
Restructuring costs  7,969
Acquisition costs  4,214 2,000
Impairments  3,318 
Impairments in result of associates   200
Tax impact on impairments and restructuring costs  -2,825
Net profit before amortisation and one-off income and expenses  50,047 61,084
Less: Minority interest   -2,214  -600
Net profit before amortisation and one-off income and expenses attributable to the shareholders  
of the company  47,833 60,484

Ordinary earnings per share before amortisation and one-off income and expenses (x €) 1  1.28 1.63
Ordinary earnings per share before amortisation (x €) 1  1.01 1.57
Ordinary earnings per share (x €)   0.77 1.44
Diluted earnings per share (x €)   0.76 1.43

1 Non-IFRS disclosure
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34 Related parties
Trade transactions
During	the	year	no	important	trade	transactions	with	non-consolidated	related	parties	have	
taken	place.	As	far	as	these	transactions	have	occurred,	the	transactions	were	concluded	at	
market	prices,	taking	into	account	discounts	for	volumes	and	the	existing	relationship	
between	the	parties.	For	product	and	concept	development	outside	TKH,	which	can	have	a		
strategic	importance,	subordinated	loans	have	in	some	cases	been	provided	in	exchange	of	
exclusivity.	The	fair	value	of	these	loans	is	at	the	end	of	2012	€ 1.0	million	(2011:	€ 1.0	million).

Remuneration report
This	report	issued	by	the	Remuneration	Committee	details	the	remuneration	policy	and	the	
remuneration	received	by	the	members	of	the	Executive	Board.	The	remuneration	policy	is	
formulated	by	the	Remuneration	Committee	and	approved	by	the	Supervisory	Board.	The	
remuneration	policy	was	adopted	by	the	General	Meeting	held	on	28	April	2005.	Any	future	
significant	policy	changes	will	be	submitted	to	the	General	Meeting.	The	Remuneration	
Committee	has	drawn	up	and	acts	in	accordance	with	regulations	governing	matters	such	as	
compliance	with	the	provisions	of	the	Dutch	Corporate	Governance	code.

Remuneration policy
The	policy	aims	at	providing	a	competitive	compensation	package	to	attract,	motivate	and	
retain	qualified	managers	for	a	publicly	listed	company,	while	considering	TKH’s	size	and	
unique	characteristics.	The	compensation	package	is	measured	periodically	against	market	
trends	using	information	provided	by	external	experts.	The	compensation	package	is	struc-
tured	so	that	both	short-	and	long-term	goals	are	maintained.	The	Remuneration	Committee	
prepares	as	of	2010	according	to	the	determined	targets,	scenario	analysis	in	relation	to	the	
STI	and	LTI	that	should	be	achieved.

Remuneration
The	remuneration	payable	to	the	members	of	the	Executive	Board	comprises	a	basic	salary	
(Total	Regular	Income	=	TRI),	pension,	a	variable	element	comprising	an	annual	
performance	bonus	(STI),	and	a	long-term	bonus	(LTI)	scheme	entailing	a	share	scheme.

Basic salary (Total Regular Income = TRI)
The	remuneration	payable	to	members	of	the	Executive	Board	was	subject	to	an	external		
measurement	against	market	trends	in	2011	and	adjusted	accordingly.	

Performance bonus (Short Term Incentive: STI)
Variable	remuneration	represents	a	major	component	of	the	remuneration	package	for
the	Executive	Board.	The	performance	bonus	is	related	to	targets	and	criteria.	Yearly,	the	
targets	and	criteria,	on	which	the	performance	bonus	is	based,	are	set.	The	amount	of	the	
performance	bonus	is	determined	by	the	extent	to	which	targets	and	criteria	are	met.	The	
maximum	performance	bonus	has	been	set	at	60%	of	basic	salary	(TRI).	The	Remuneration	

Committee	sets	the	performance	bonus	amount	on	the	basis	of	the	targets	and	criteria	that	
have	been	met.	The	realisation	of	50%	of	the	maximum	bonus	is	based	on	EBITA-targets	and	
30%	is	based	on	autonomous	revenue	growth	targets.	The	other	20%	of	the	maximum	bonus	is	
determined	by	the	realisation	of	personal	targets	and	criteria.	Realisation	of	the	targets	results	
in	a	bonus	of	40%	of	basic	salary	(TRI).	The	Supervisory	Board	has	the	discretionary	power	to	
depart	from	the	set	targets	where	exceptional	circumstances	arise.	The	realisation	of	the	
targets	and	criteria	for	2012	resulted	in	82%	of	the	maximum	performance	bonus	for	the	
Executive	Board,	equal	to	49%	of	basic	salary	(TRI).	
The	supervisory	board	has	the	power	to	recover	the	variable	remuneration	granted	that	is	
based	on	false	(financial	data)	from	the	Executive	Board.	Payment	to	the	members	of	the	
Executive	Board	is	made	under	the	condition	of	accuracy	of	the	relevant	(financial)	data.

There	is	no	“change	of	control”	paragraph	in	the	employment	contract	of	the	members	of	the	
Executive	Board.

Share scheme (Long Term Incentive: LTI)
A	share	scheme	which	provides	for	a	long-term	bonus	scheme	has	been	launched	in	connec-
tion	with	long-term	targets.	The	scheme	enables	members	of	the	Executive	Board	to	acquire	
shares	free	of	charge	on	the	basis	of	predetermined	long-term	targets,	in	return	for	which	the	
members	of	the	Executive	Board	are	required	to	purchase	for	own	account	the	same	number	
of	shares	for	the	price	quoted	on	the	stock	exchange	at	that	moment.	The	scheme	lays	down	
that	both	ROCE	and	ROS	increases	and	corporate	growth	attained	in	terms	of	turnover	and	
result,	in	compliance	with	the	long-term	target	set	and	the	interim	milestones	specified,	can	
result	in	share	allotment.	The	share	allotment	also	depends	on	the	performance	of	the	TKH	
share	price	in	comparison	to	the	ASc-index.	The	long-term	targets	for	the	Executive	Board	
relate	to	the	TKH-objectives	set	in	this	annual	report	(page	9).	
The	scheme	sets	a	maximum	allotment	of	32,000	(depositary	receipts	of)	shares	per	Executive	
Board	member	per	annum.	The	shares	in	question	are	to	be	held	as	a	long-term	investment	and	
may	not	be	sold	for	a	period	of	three	years.	The	shares	are	allotted	within	one	month	after	publi-
cation	of	the	annual	figures.	As	from	2004	options	are	no	longer	allocated	to	Executive	Board	
members	and	the	option	scheme	was	replaced	with	the	above-mentioned	share	scheme.	Based	on	
the	realised	targets	for	2011	Mr	J.M.A.	van	der	Lof	has	been	allotted	26.203	(depositary	receipts	of)	
shares	and	Mr	E.D.H.	de	Lange	19.652	shares	in	March	2012.	At	the	same	time	the	Executive	Board	
has	purchased	the	same	number	of	shares	for	the	price	quoted	on	the	stock	exchange	at	that	
moment.	To	Mr	A.	Dehn	has	been	allotted	2,605	(depositary	receipts	of)	shares,	at	the	same	time	
Mr	A.	Dehn	has	purchased	705	(depositary	receipts	of)	shares	for	the	price	quoted	on	the	stock	
exchange	at	that	moment.	For	Mr	A.	Dehn	there	is	an	exemption	for	the	financial	contribution	
for	the	first	three	years	of	his	contract	of	up	to	€ 35,000	net	per	year.	
In	the	table	on	the	following	page	the	allotted	(depositary	receipts	of)	shares	are	converted		
to	the	stock	price	at	the	award	moment	and	the	allotted	shares	are	subsequently	grossed	for	
income	tax	purposes.
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In	the	overview	above	the	allotted	shares	have	been	converted	to	the	value	on	the	basis	of	
share	price	at	the	moment	of	allotment	and	grossed	up	for	the	payroll	tax	liability.

Peer Group
The	Remuneration	Committee	consults	independent	remuneration	advisors	to	match	remu-
neration	data	from	companies	from	the	peer	group	with	remuneration	data	of	TKH.	The	
labour	market	peer	group	consists	of	the	following	companies:	Aalberts,	Accel,	Draka-
Prysmian,	Gamma	Holding,	Group	Schneider	(France),	Imtech,	Leoni	(Germany),	Kendrion,	
Nedap,	Ten	Cate	and	Wavin.

Pension
The	Remuneration	Committee	supervise	that	Executive	Board	members’	pension	is	in	line	with	
generally	accepted	standards	and	ensures	that	it	is	compatible	with	the	pension	schemes	avail-
able	for	similar	posts.	In	addition	the	pension	arrangements	include	the	right	to	benefit	in	the	
case	of	poor	health	or	invalidity	and	a	widow’s	and	orphan’s	pension	in	the	event	of	death	
subject	to	conditions	similar	to	those	applicable	to	participants	in	the	collective	pension	fund.

Personal loans
The	company	grants	no	personal	loans	or	guarantees	to	Executive	Board	members.

TRI Bonus (STI) Share scheme (LTI) 1 Pension Total

in thousands of euros

Remuneration policy of the Supervisory Board                                                                                                            
The	General	Meeting	adopted	the	remuneration	of	the	members	of	the	Supervisory	Board	in	
2011.	The	remuneration	of	a	member	of	the	Supervisory	Board	does	not	depend	on	the	compa-
ny’s	results.	The	remuneration	of	the	chairman	of	the	Supervisory	Board	was	€ 42,500	and	of		
the	members	of	the	Supervisory	Board	€ 32,500.	The	annual	remuneration	for	every	participa-
tion	in	a	Committee	of	the	Supervisory	Board	is	€ 7,000	for	the	chairman	and	€ 5,000	for	other	
members.	The	afore	mentioned	amounts	are	excluding	VAT.	No	options	are	granted	to	the	
members	of	the	Supervisory	Board.

Shareholdings of members of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board
Among	the	members	of	the	Executive	Board,	Mr	J.M.A.	van	der	Lof	owned	190,647	(depositary	
receipts	of)	shares,	Mr	E.D.H.	de	Lange	owned	110,286	(depositary	receipts	of)	shares	and		
Mr	A.	Dehn	owned	3,310	(depositary	receipts	of)	shares	at	the	end	of	2012.	During	the	financial	
year	Mr	J.M.A.	van	der	Lof,	sold	52,406	(depositary	receipts	of)	shares,	Mr	E.D.H.	de	Lange	sold	

1 See notes to the share scheme. The LTI recorded in the financial year relate to the realisation of the targets in the previous year and is the grossed amount 
based on the net-assigned value 

2 Since 1 August 2011

3 Pursuant to art. 32bd of Law LB 1964, 16% end levy shall be payable on the wages on which tax is levied in the calendar year 2012, as far as these 
wages amounts more then € 150,000. This crisis levy is an employers’ payroll burden, that will be paid in the tax declaration of March 2013. The crisis 
tax has been included in the total remuneration.

19,652	(depositary	receipts	of)	shares	at	a	stock	price	of	€ 18.43,	in	accordance	with	the	rules.		
In	addition	Mr	J.M.A.	van	der	Lof,	Mr	E.D.H.	de	Lange	and	Mr	A.	Dehn	purchased	under	the	share	
scheme	respectively	26,203,	19,652	and	705	(depositary	receipts	of)	shares	at	a	stock	price	of		
€ 18.43.	No	member	of	the	Supervisory	Board	owned	depositary	receipts	of	shares	at	the	end		
of	2012.

Appointment and termination of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board
The	Supervisory	Board	appoints	the	Executive	Board,	taking	into	account	article	162	of	Book	2	of	
the	Dutch	Civil	Code,	which	is	applicable	to	the	company.	The	Supervisory	Board	acknowledges	
the	General	Meeting	of	an	intended	appointment	of	a	member	of	the	Executive	Board.		
A	member	of	the	Executive	Board	is	only	dismissed	after	a	hearing	with	the	General	Meeting	
about	the	intended	dismissal.

Remuneration of Executive Board Crisis levy 3 Total including crisis levy

 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
           
Directors:
J.M.A. van der Lof MBA 408 400 200  200 865 1,013 111  109  1,584 1,722  207  1,791 1,722
E.D.H. de Lange MBA 306 300 150  150 514  588  42  41 1,012 1,079  84  1,096 1,079
A.E. Dehn 2 242   96 119  48  76   33 11 470 155  5  475 155
Total remuneration 956 796 469 398 1,455 1,601  186  161 3,066 2,956 296  0  3,362 2,956
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The	General	Meeting	appoints	candidates	for	the	Supervisory	Board	after	nomination	by	the	
Supervisory	Board.	One	third	of	the	members	of	the	Supervisory	Board	is	nominated	by	the	
Supervisory	Board	based	on	a	recommendation	of	the	Central	Works	Council,	unless	the	
Supervisory	Board	has	an	objection	against	the	recommendation	on	grounds	of	the	expectation	
that	the	candidate	is	incompetent	for	the	fulfilment	of	the	tasks	or	that	the	Supervisor	Board	
will	not	have	an	appropriate	composition.	The	Supervisory	Board	has	drawn	up	a	retirement	
schedule	to	stimulate	an	equal	appointment	process.	At	reappointment	a	comparison	with	the	
profile	of	the	Supervisory	Board	is	made.	Members	can	serve	maximum	for	three	terms	of	four	
years	in	the	Supervisory	Board.

in euros

TotalCommittee
membership 

fee

  
   2012  2011

Members of the Supervisory Board                                            
H.J. Hazewinkel, chairman 42,500 5,000 47,500  47,500
M.E. van Lier Lels, vice-chairman 32,500 8,750 41,250  46,500
P. Morley Msc,            32,500 5,000 37,500  37,500
P.P.F.C. Houben  32,500 5,250 37,750  32,500
R. van Iperen 1 32,500  32,500  1,250
Total remuneration 172,500 24,000 196,500  165,250

1 Since 14 December 2011 

Fixed fee

35  Acquisitions

Aasset Security International SAS France  100.0% 1 March 2012  Vision & Security Systems (Building)
Parking + Protection B.V. Netherlands  51.0% 1 April 2012 Building Technologies (Building)
Scanton Parking+ B.V. Netherlands  100.0%  1 July 2012 Building Technologies (Building)
Augusta Technologie AG Germany  61.5%  2 July 2012 Vision & Security Systems (Building) and
                                                                                             Manufacturing Systems (Industrial)
S-Com A/S Denmark  90.0%  1 September 2012 Connectivity Systems (Building)

ActivityNaam subsidiary Country
Legal ownership 

and control Consolidation as from

During	2012	TKH	acquired	the	following	subsidiaries:

The	in	size	largest	acquisitions	are:

Aasset Security International SAS
On	11	March	2012	TKH	acquired	a	100%	interest	in	Aasset	Security	International	SAS	(“Aasset”),	
headquartered	in	Paris,	France,	with	subsidiaries	in	France,	Germany	and	offices	in	England	
an	Italy.	Aasset	realizes	with	88	employees	an	annual	turnover	of	€ 35	million.	Aasset	is	a		
leading	provider	of	security	solutions	and	video	surveillance	systems	and	offers	added	value	in	
the	form	of	the	design	and	development	of	specialised	software	and	equipment.	The	company	
belongs	to	one	of	the	largest	distributors	in	Europe	in	the	field	of	CCTV	products.	In	France	
and	Germany	Aasset	has	a	top-3	position	in	CCTV	products.	This	acquisition	accelerates	the	
growth	strategy	of	TKH	in	the	security	segment.	Aasset	has	a	strong	market	position	in	France	
and	Germany.	Aasset’s	portfolio	of	brands	includes	the	brand	name	GRUNDIG.	TKH	will		
position	this	brand	further	in	Europe.	Aasset	also	has	access	to	the	total	TKH-portfolio	which	
creates	some	interesting	growth	opportunities	for	both	Aasset	and	TKH.	Aasset	activities	are	

grouped	in	the	security	cluster	of	TKH,	which	is	part	of	the	business	segment	Building	
Solutions.	This	acquisition	fits	in	with	the	objectives	of	TKH	to	develop	
the	turnover	of	Vision	and	Security	Systems	to	20%	of	total	turnover.	The	purchase	price	is	
paid	in	cash.

Augusta Technologie AG
On	2	July	2012	TKH	has	acquired	a	controlling	interest	in	Augusta	Technologie	A.G.	(“Augusta”),	
headquartered	in	Munich	(Germany).	The	company	has	531	employees	and	has	offices	in	
Europe,	Asia,	USA	and	Canada.	In	the	financial	year	2012	the	turnover	was	€ 110	million	and	
the	EBITDA	was	€ 21	million.	Augusta	is	an	integrated	technology	company	with	a	focus	on	the	
niche	markets	digital	image	processing	and	optical	sensors.	The	core	segment	vision	technol-
ogy	focuses	on	offering	digital	cameras	and	optical	sensor	systems	for	automation	and	increas-
ing	the	quality,	safety	and	efficiency.	It	develops	and	manufactures	both	standard	products	and	
customer	specific	systems	for	a	broad	range	of	applications	in	a	number	of	sectors,	including	

Remuneration of Supervisory Board
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the	manufacturing	industry,	medical	technology,	multimedia,	traffic	and	security	technology.	
Augusta	distinguishes	itself	by	its	international	presence	and	very	good	customer	service.	
Augusta	fits	perfectly	with	TKH’s	existing	operations	in	the	market	for	vision	and	security	
systems.	With	this	transaction	TKH	creates	a	leading	vision	technology	group	that	focuses	on	
vertical	markets	such	as	intelligent	traffic	solutions,	medical	applications	and	industrial	
inspection.	Augusta’s	other	business	units	offer	high	quality	electronic	solutions	that	enable	
TKH	to	offer	their	customers	tailor-made	electronic	subsystems.	The	geographical	complement	
of	TKH	and	Augusta	offers	better	access	to	major	American	and	Asian	markets,	in	addition	to	
TKH´s	European	presence.	The	international	position	of	TKH	is	greatly	increased.	The	vision	
activities	of	Augusta	will	be	part	of	TKH’s	segment	vision	and	security	systems.	The	other	divi-
sions	are	part	of	the	segment	manufacturing	systems.	The	purchase	price	is	paid	in	cash.	To	
finance	the	acquisition,	the	committed	credit	facilities	have	been	increased	in	April	2012	with	
€ 100	million	to	an	amount	of	€ 350	million.	For	the	calculation	of	the	financial	covenants,	

the	Net	Debt/EBITDA	ratio	and	the	interest	coverage	ratio,	it	has	been	agreed	with	the	group	of	
banks	that	the	balance	sheet	and	profit	and	loss	account	of	Augusta	can	be	fully	consolidated	
and	the	one-time	acquisition	costs	should	not	be	taken	into	account.

In	2012,	the	acquisitions	have	contributed	for	€ 87	million	in	the	revenue	and	for	€ 8.0	million	
in	the	net	profit	of	TKH.	In	this	net	profit	is	a	release	of	€ 2.2	million	reported	relating	to	an	
earn-out	provision.	When	these	acquisitions	had	been	effected	at	1	January,	the	revenue	would	
be	€ 1,164	million	and	net	profit	€ 32.1	million.	In	the	mentioned	net	profit	figures	is	taken	
into	account	the	financing	charges	and	amortisation	of	the	intangible	non-current	assets	
related	to	the	acquisition.

Transactions	in	which	a	majority	share	has	been	acquired	are	accounted	for	according	to	the	
“purchase	method	of	accounting”.	The	combined	net	assets	acquired	is	comprised	as	follows:

Augusta Technologie AG Other acquisitions Total acquisitions

in thousands of euros
            
Intangible non-current assets   23,819 40,796 64,615 -1,044  12,317 11,273 22,775  53,113 75,888  
Tangible non-current assets   8,882   8,882 2,333   2,333 11,215  11,215
Inventories  16,598  16,598  6,907    6,907  23,505   23,505
Receivables 23,023  23,023 9,052   9,052 32,075  32,075
Cash / (borrowings) 51,723   51,723 -2,863   -2,863 48,860   48,860
Pension provisions -454  -454   0   -454   -454
Other provisions -3,856  -3,856  -236  -236 -4,092  -4,092 
Non-current liabilities -7,758  -7,758 -234  -234 -7,992  -7,992
Deferred tax liabilities -4,796 -10,458 -15,254 519 -4,057 -3,538 -4,277 -14,515  -18,792
Current liabilities  -17,998   -17,998  -11,866  -11,866 -29,864   -29,864
Acquired net assets    89,183  30,338 119,521 2,568 8,260 10,828 91,751 38,598 130,349

Less: Minority interest   -56,856   -67   -56,923  
Goodwill paid    51,432   20,796   72,228 
Cost of acquisition   114,097   31,557   145,654
Bank debt / (cash and cash equivalents) acquired    -51,723    2,863   -48,860
Net cash outflow   62,374   34,420    96,794

Less: Provision for earn-out recognised, but not yet paid out      -315   -315
Less: Put options held by minority shareholder, but not yet paid      -2,821   -2,821
Less: Already in possession minority interest      467   467
Payments for acquisition in previous years      1,685   1,685
Payment in cash        62,374   33,436   95,810

Fair valueAdjustmentsBookvalueFair valueAdjustmentsBookvalueFair valueAdjustmentsBookvalue
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The	acquired	carrying	amount	of	Augusta	includes	€ 61.0	million	for	goodwill	that	is	elimi-
nated	in	the	fair	value	adjustment.	On	the	other	hand,	acquired	intangible	assets	such	as	
brandnames,	customer	relations	and	intellectual	property	are	included,	

For	conditional	purchase	prices	relating	to	earn-out	and	put	options	held	by	minority	share-
holders	the	amount	is	assessed	on	the	basis	of	expected	future	results.	These	conditional	
purchase	prices	are	recognised	at	the	expense	of	goodwill	(see	note	15).	The	actual	purchase	
price	in	the	future	will	differ	positively	or	negatively	on	the	basis	of	future	realisation.	On	the	
basis	of	scenario	analysis	the	possible	deviation	is	estimated	at	up	to	€ 1	million	positive	or	
negative.

The	payment	in	cash	for	the	other	acquisitions	covers	for	over	80%	Aasset.	The	other	acquisitions	
are	shown	combined	with	Aasset,	because	of	the	limited	size	of	the	acquired	companies	
compared	to	TKH.

The	fair	value	of	the	receivables	do	not	differ	materially	of	the	contractual	value.	
The	paid	goodwill	is	attributable	to	the	skills	and	talent	of	the	work	force,	expected	synergies	
due	to	cooperation	within	the	TKH	group	and	the	alignment	with	the	strategic	development	
of	TKH.	None	of	the	goodwill	recognised	is	deductible	for	income	tax	purposes.
TKH	has	in	total	recognised	€ 4.2	million	acquisition	costs	in	the	operating	result	for	external	
advice	and	legal	expenses.	These	expenses	are	mainly	related	to	the	acquisition	of	Augusta	
Technologie	AG.

36  Non-cash transactions
There	were	no	material	non-cash	transactions.

37  Events after balance sheet date
No	events	of	fundamental	significance	for	insight	into	the	financial	statements	and	the	prece-
ding	period	occurred	after	balance	sheet	date.

38 Service fees paid to external auditors

 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Audit of the financial statements      352 340 350 345 702  685
Tax consultancy      35 26  26  35  52
Other non audit services       4 7   4 7
                             391 373 350 371  741 744

Other parts of Deloitte Total

in thousands of euros

Deloitte
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Company financial statement 2012
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Company balance sheet At 31 December before profit appropriation

	
	 Notes	 2012 2011 					

Assets 	 	 	 		
Non-current assets    
Intangible non-current assets 2 76,725 74,104 
Tangible non-current assets 3 614 580 
Financial non-current assets 4 496,671 480,106
Total non-current assets  574,010 554,790
    
Current assets     
Receivables from group companies  163,449 16,856 
Other receivables  1,545 126
Total current assets  164,994 16,982
   
Total assets  739,004 571,772

Equity and liabilities	 	 	 	 	
Equity    
Issued capital  9,579 9,488
Share premium reserve  12,121 12,212
Legal reserve  15,166 16,709
Revaluation reserve  32,080 28,411
Investment revaluation reserve  3,655 509
Translation reserve  3,005 6,181
Cash-flow hedge reserve  -6,756 -7,092
Other reserves  269,516 236,327
Undistributed profit  28,753 53,481
Total equity 5 367,119 356,226
    
Non-current liabilities    
Non-current liabilities  202,445 123,412 
Provisions  36,168 32,502
Total non-current liabilities  238,613 155,914
    
Current liabilities    
Borrowings  103,448 562 
Payables to group companies  17,066 50,120 
Other current liabilities 8 12,002 8,906 
Provisions  756 44
Total current liabilities  133,272 59,632
Total equity and liabilities  739,004 571,772

in thousands of euros
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Company profit and loss account
	 	
	
	 	 2012 2011 					
	 	 	
Company result  -13,650 -15,921 

Result of subsidiaries and associates  42,403 69,402
Net result  28,753 53,481

in thousands of euros
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Notes to the company financial statements
1  Accounting principles
For	setting	the	principles	for	the	recognition	and	measurement	of	assets	and	liabilities	and	
determination	of	the	result	for	its	separate	financial	statements,	TKH	makes	use	of	the	option	
provided	in	Article	2:362	sub	8	of	the	Netherlands	Civil	Code.	This	means	that	the	principles	
for	the	recognition	and	measurement	of	assets	and	liabilities	and	determination	of	the	result	
for	the	separate	financial	statements	of	TKH	are	the	same	as	those	for	the	consolidated	finan-

cial	statements.	In	this	context,	investments	in	consolidated	companies	are	measured		
according	to	the	net	asset	value	method.	For	a	description	of	these	accounting	principles.		
reference	is	made	to	the	accounting	principles	with	the	consolidated	financial	statements.
The	share	in	the	result	of	enterprises	in	which	the	company	has	holdings	comprises	the	share	
in	the	result	of	these	participating	interests.	

Goodwill
Brandnames. customers relations 

and intellectual property Total

2  Intangible non-current assets

in thousands of euros     2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
           
Balance at 1 January     46,381 26,308 27,723 12,653 74,104 38,961 

Acquisitions      6,266 19,706  962 18,489 7,228 38,195
Amortisation       -4,476 -3,419 -4,476 -3,419
Adjustment for earn-out liabilities     100 -11   100  -11
Adjustment for put options held by minority shareholders     -231 378   -231 378
Balance at 31 December      52,516 46,381 24,209 27,723 76,725  74,104

Accumulated amortisation and impairment      0  0 13,071 8,595 13,071 8,595
Historical cost      52,516 46,381 37,280 36,318 89,796 82,699

The	additions	for	brand	names,	customer	relations	and	intellectual	property	relates	to	the	fair	value	that	have	been	recognised	to	the	intangible	assets	of	the	acquired	companies.

3  Tangible non-current assets

in thousands of euros

Other equipment
  
   2012 2011

Balance at 1 January   580 496
Changes 
Purchases   301 357
Disposals   -109  -51
Depreciation   -158 -222
Total changes    34  84

Balance at 31 December
Historical cost   1,604 1,508
Accumulated depreciation on historical cost   -990 -928
Actual book value    614  580 
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4  Financial non-current assets

Other
associates

Balance at 1 January 2011     247,970 1,272  8,123 78,243 2,519 338,127

Changes resulting from:  
Acquisition and/or incorporation of new subsidiaries and associates     8,316      8,316
Capital contribution     42,074 3,309  -15,000  30,383
Result     69,402 -266     69,136 
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets       -1,353   -1,353
Dividends received     -28,715     -28,715
Revaluations     2,478     2,478
Change in cash flow hedge reserve     -508    185 -323
Liquidation     156    241 397
Disposals within the group     -96,047      -96,047
Loans granted less repayments        156,272  156,272
Other changes         -44 -44
Exchange differences     1,479     1,479
Balance at 31 December 2011 246,605 4,315 6,770 219,515 2,901 480,106   

Changes resulting from: 
Acquisition and/or incorporation of new subsidiaries and associates     -306 467    161
Capital contribution     11,137     11,137
Result     42,340 -353    41,987
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets       3,145   3,145
Dividends received      -41,246     -41,246
Revaluations     4,463     4,463 
Change in cash flow hedge reserve     194    -47 147
Liquidation     70    -241 -171
Other changes         15 15
Exchange differences     -3,073     -3,073
Balance at 31 December 2012 260,184 4,429 9,915 219,515 2,628 496,671    

Receivables
on group

companies Totalin thousands of euros
Consolidated

subsidiaries

Available-
for-sale

financial assets
Deferred

tax assets

An	overview	of	directly	and	indirectly	held	interests	in	subsidiaries	is	shown	on	pages	137-139.
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5  Equity
For	the	movement	schedule	is	referred	to	the	consolidated	statement	of	changes	in	group	equity	on	page	87.

€ ‘000 € ‘000

    2012  2011

 
The authorised capital consists of:
Ordinary shares        59,984
Cumulative preference financing shares         10,000
Convertible cumulative preference financing shares       10,000
Cumulative preference protective shares       60,000
Each nominal € 0,25    139,984 34,996  34,996

Priority shares       4
Each nominal € 1,00   4 4    4
                                                   35,000  35,000
Of which not issued        25,421  25,512
Issued capital 1     9,579  9,488 

 X 1.000

Authorised share capital 

1 4.000 priority and 38.302.014 (depositary receipts of) shares

In	2012	a	stock	dividend	of	366,757	(depositary	receipts	of)	shares	was	paid	out	of	the	share	
premium	reserve.	Issued	capital	increased	with	the	same	number.	

The	registered	ordinary	shares,	with	the	exception	of	the	registered	shares	in	the	company,	
have	been	transferred	to	the	Foundation	Administration	Office,	which	issues	depositary	receipts	
of	shares	to	the	ultimate	capital	providers.	The	Administration	Office	is	the	party	entitled	to	
the	shares	and	also	exercises	the	voting	right,	unless	it	has	granted	power	of	attorney	to	the	
holders	of	the	depositary	receipts.	The	holders	of	depositary	receipts	are	entitled	to	receive	a	
power	of	attorney	to	cast	a	vote	on	the	shares	corresponding	to	the	depositary	receipts	they	
own.	The	Administration	Office	remains	entitled	to	vote	for	the	shares	for	which	the	holders	
of	depositary	receipts	are	not	present	or	represented	at	the	meeting.	The	aforementioned	
power	of	attorney	may	be	limited,	excluded	or	revoked	by	the	executive	committee	of	the	
Administration	Office	in	various	situations	specified	in	the	law	(see	also	Corporate	Governance	
Code	TKH).	In	that	case	the	Administration	Office	may	(again)	exercise	the	voting	right	for	all	
shares	for	which	depositary	receipts	have	been	issued.	The	relationship	between	the	
Administration	Office	and	the	holders	of	depositary	receipts	of	shares	is	governed	by	the	
administrative	conditions.	The	protection	afforded	by	the	use	of	depositary	receipts	is	based	

on	the	1%	rule.	The	depositary	receipts	may	be	exchanged	for	ordinary	shares	but	not	for	more	
than	1%	of	the	total	issued	capital	in	the	form	of	ordinary	shares.	This	total	includes	shares	
owned	indirectly	as	well	as	directly.	However,	this	does	not	apply	to	the	transfer	of	ordinary	
shares	to	the	company	itself.	Every	transfer	of	preference	financing	shares,	convertible		
preference	financing	shares	and	preference	protective	shares	must	be	approved	by	the	
Executive	Board.	The	Executive	Board	may	only	grant	its	approval	with	the	approval	of	the	
Supervisory	Board.	No	special	rights	are	attached	to	the	priority	shares.

The	company	has	granted	the	Stichting	Continuïteit	TKH	an	option	to	take	preference	protec-
tive	shares	for	up	to	a	maximum	of	50%	of	the	sum	of	the	other	outstanding	shares	at	the	
time	that	the	preference	protective	shares	are	issued	or	100%	of	the	sum	of	the	other	outstand-
ing	shares	at	the	time	that	the	preference	protective	shares	are	issued	if	the	restriction	on	the	
cancellation	option	lapses,	which	will	occur	if	and	when	the	Executive	Board	of	the	company	
so	decides	and	files	a	statement	to	that	effect	with	the	Trade	Register.

Share premium reserve
The	share	premium	reserve	is	fully	exempt	from	Dutch	taxes	on	distribution.
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in thousands of euros 2012 2011

The legal reserve relates to:
Capitalised development costs  13,930 14,321
Share in the equity of a subsidiary in which TKH has obtained the 
economic ownership, but the legal ownership not yet 1,236 2,388
 15,166 16,709

The	legal	reserve	is	not	available	for	distribution	to	the	company’s	shareholders.

Legal reserve

Revaluation reserves
The	revaluation	reserves	are	not	available	for	distribution	to	the	company’s	shareholders.

Hedging and translation reserve
The	hedging	and	translation	reserves	are	statutory	reserves	and	not	available	for	distribution	to	
the	company’s	shareholders.

6  Dividend
At	the	General	Meeting	of	shareholders	the	dividend	for	2011	was	declared	at	€	0.75	per		
(depositary	receipt	of)	ordinary	share.	The	dividend	was	proposed	at	the	option	of	shareholders	
in	cash	or	as	a	stock	dividend.	The	dividend	on	the	priority	shares	was	declared	at	€	0.05	per	
share.	The	total	amount	in	dividends	paid	in	2012	was	€	21,666,741	and	this	amount	was	

charged	to	the	other	reserves.	For	stock	dividend	an	amount	of	€	91,589	was	charged	against	
the	share	premium	reserve.	After	31	December	2012	the	Executive	Board	has	proposed	a	divi-
dend	for	which	is	referred	to	page	128.	The	dividend	proposal	has	not	been	recognised	in	the	
balance	sheet	and	does	not	impact	the	tax	on	profit.

Exercise 
rate in e

Granted 
during 

the year

Elapsed 
during 

the year

Exercised 
during 

the year
Exercise 

period

E.D.H. de Lange MBA 2007 16.33 8,800        -8,800 0 2010-2012
 2008  15.21 4,500         4,500 2011-2013
  2009 7.42  6,000        6,000 2012-2014
  Subtotal  19,300   0 0   0 0   -8,800 10,500

Other employees 2007 16.33  137,320  -800    -136,520 0 2010-2012
 2008 15.21 76,255       -31,620 44,635 2011-2013
  2009 7.42 131,593      -62,300 69,293 2012-2014
 2010  13.79 150,129     -720   149,409 2013-2015
 2011 18.90 187,395     -5,288   182,107 2014-2016
 2012  18.23   210,432   -1,800  208,632 2015-2017
 Subtotal    682,692 210,432 -800  0  -7,808 -230,440 654,076
 Total   701,992 210,432 -800   0 -7,808 -239,240  664,576

7  Share-based payments
Shares option scheme settled in equity instruments
Option	rights	to	(depositary	receipts	of)	ordinary	shares	of	TKH	are	granted	to	the	manage-
ment	of	the	company	and	its	subsidiaries.	The	rights	can	never	be	exercised	until	after	the	
publication	of	the	company’s	annual	results	three	calendar	years	following	the	year	in	which	
the	rights	were	granted.	Partly	to	avoid	abuse	of	inside	knowledge,	the	conditions	for	partici-
pation	have	been	laid	down	in	an	internal	regulation	and	have	been	accepted	in	writing	by	the	

participants.	At	the	end	of	2012	the	company	had	bought	back	644,092	(depositary	receipts	of)	
shares	to	cover	the	option	rights.	These	(depositary	receipt	of)	shares	have	been	purchased	
against	an	average	share	price	of	€	13.32.	The	total	purchase	amount	is	€	8,577,035.	
Overview	of	the	number	of	outstanding	option	rights	(after	split)	of	members	of	the	Executive	
Board	and	other	employees:

Number at
31-12-2012

Withdrawn 
during 

the year

Expired 
during 

the year
Number at 

01-01-2012
Year of 

allocation
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   2012 2011
 
Fair value at the date of allocation (in €)   4.06 6.03
Expected volatility                                                                        35.8% 43.2%
Expected dividend                                                                 3.5% 3.5%
Risk free rate   1.4% 2.0%
Expected period to expiry of the option (in years)   4.0  4.0

For	the	expected	period	to	expiry	of	the	options	was	taken	into	account	the	current	restrictions	
on	their	exercise,	the	chances	that	employees	will	leave	the	company	and	possible	personal	
considerations	of	option	holders.	TKH	has	a	reported	total	charge	of	€	816,486	(2011:	€	675,000)	
for	these	share-based	payments	which	have	been	settled	in	equity	instruments.

in thousands of euros 2012 2011

Taxes and social security premiums 348 -1,913
Other liabilities and accruals 11,654 10,819
 12,002 8,906     

9  Contingent liabilities
On	the	grounds	of	Article	2:403,	sub	1f	of	the	Netherlands	Civil	Code	the	company	has	assumed	
joint	and	several	liability	for	debts	arising	from	the	legal	actions	for	all	Dutch	subsidiaries	of	
which	TKH	owns	directly	or	indirectly	100%	of	the	shares.	The	declarations	to	that	effect	have	
been	deposited	for	inspection	at	the	office	of	the	Trade	Register	in	the	place	where	the	legal	
entity	for	which	the	guarantee	was	given	has	its	registered	office.

The	company	is	formally	a	guarantor	for	a	total	sum	of	€	34.0	million	(2011:	€	44.8	million)	for	
bank	credit	facilities	provided	to	a	number	of	foreign	participating	interests.	This	credit	was	
called	on	for	a	sum	of	€	3.2	million	(2011:	€	7.8	million)	at	the	end	of	2012.
The	company	and	the	majority	of	its	Dutch	wholly	owned	subsidiaries	form	a	fiscal	unity	for	
income	tax.	Consequently,	the	company	is	liable	for	the	income	taxes	of	these	subsidiaries.

Other share-based payments
Based	on	the	share	scheme,	(depositary	receipts	of)	shares	have	been	allotted	to	members	of	
the	executive	Board	free	of	charge.	Mr	J.M.A.	van	der	Lof	was	allotted	26,203	(depositary	
receipts	of)	shares,	Mr	E.D.H.	de	Lange	19,652,	and	Mr	A.	Dehn	2,605		(depositary	receipts	of)	
shares.	At	the	same	time,	the	executive	Board	purchased	the	same	number	of	(depositary	

receipts	of)	shares	at	the	actual	share	price	of	€	18.43,	all	in	accordance	with	the	regulation.		
As	a	result	of	the	share	scheme,	TKH	has	recognised	a	total	charge	of	€	1,454,000	(2011:		
€	1,600,000)	in	the	profit	and	loss	account.

The	fair	value	was	determined	on	the	basis	of	a	binomial	valuation	model	and	the	following	
principles:

No	option	rights	are	granted	to	the	members	of	the	Executive	Board	and	Supervisory	Board.
The	options	granted	to	Mr	E.D.H.	de	Lange	were	granted	for	performance	before	he	was	
appointed	as	member	of	the	Executive	Board.

The	average	share	price	on	the	date	at	which	the	share	options	were	exercised	during	the		
financial	year	was	€	19.17.	During	the	year,	options	were	granted	on	14	March	2012.	The		
estimated	fair	value	of	the	options	granted	in	2012	is	€	854,354.	

8  Current liabilities
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10  Signature of the annual financial statements
Haaksbergen,	5	March	2013

Executive Board 																								 Supervisory Board
J.M.A.	van	der	Lof	MBA,	chairman 				 H.J.	Hazewinkel,	chairman
E.D.H.	de	Lange	MBA																						 M.E.	van	Lier	Lels,	vice-chairman
A.E.	Dehn																																 P.	Morley	Msc.
																																													 P.P.F.C.	Houben
																																												 R.	van	Iperen
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Other information

Since	no	protection	preference	and	financing	preference	shares	
were	outstanding	or	issued,	within	the	meaning	of	Articles	33.1,	
3,	4,	5,	6	paragraph	b	and	c,	8	and	9	below,	only	the	articles	
governing	the	profit	appropriation	in	relation	to	the	
outstanding	shares	are	included	here.

Article 33 of the articles of association reads as 
follows:
2.		 The	company	can	only	make	payments	to	shareholders	and	

other	parties	entitled	to	the	profit	that	are	eligible	for	
payment	if	the	group	equity	is	greater	than	the	amount	of	
the	paid	and	called-up	part	of	the	capital	increased	by	the	
reserves	which	must	be	kept	according	to	law	or	the	articles	
of	association.

6a.		From	the	profit	that	remains	after	application	of	the	
previous	paragraphs,	five	percent	(5%)	of	the	nominal	
amount	shall,	if	possible,	be	paid	out	on	the	priority	shares.	
No	further	payment	shall	be	made	for	the	priority	shares.	If	
possible,	a	dividend	shall	then	be	paid,	equal	to	a	
percentage	of	the	sum	effectively	paid	up	on	the	financing	
preference	shares	of	the	series	in	question	or	the	convertible	
financing	preference	shares	of	the	series	in	question	
respectively	during	the	first	issue	of	the	series	in	question	
on	the	financing	preference	shares	of	every	series	or	the	
convertible	financing	preference	shares	of	every	series	
respectively,	including	any	share	premium	reserve,	which	
percentage	is	related	to	the	average	effective	return	on	
‘general	state	loans	with	a	duration	of	7-8	years’,	calculated	
and	determined	in	the	manner	set	out	in	paragraph	30.6	
paragraph	b.

7.			 If	in	any	financial	year,	the	profit	is	not	sufficient	to	make	
the	payments	as	referred	to	in	paragraph	6	of	this	article,	in	
the	following	financial	years	the	provisions	of	paragraph	6	
and	paragraph	10	shall	not	be	applied	until	the	deficit	is	
cleared.	The	Executive	Board	is	authorised,

	 	 subject	to	approval	by	the	Supervisory	Board,	to	decide	to	
pay	out	a	sum	equal	to	the	deficit	referred	to	in	the	previous	
sentence	from	the	reserves,	with	the	exception	of	the	
reserves	which	have	been	formed	as	share	premium	reserves	
on	the	issue	of	financing	preference	shares	or	convertible	
financing	preference	shares	respectively.	If	the	provisions	of	
this	paragraph	apply,	the	holders	of	the	series	of	financing	
preference	shares	and	convertible	financing	preference	
shares	shall	be	treated	in	the	same	way.

10.		The	Executive	Board	shall	reserve	as	much	of	the	profit	that	
remains	as	it	feels	is	necessary,	subject	to	approval	by	the	
Supervisory	Board.	In	as	far	as	the	profit	is	reserved	without	
application	of	the	previous	sentence	it	is	at	the	disposal	of	
the	general	meeting,	either	wholly	or	partly	for	the	reserves,	
or	wholly	or	partly	to	be	paid	out	to	the	holders	of	ordinary	
shares	in	proportion	to	their	holding	of	ordinary	shares.

11.		Without	prejudice	to	the	provisions	of	Article	7,	paragraph	
1,	the	Executive	Board,	subject	to	approval	by	the	
Supervisory	Board,	shall	propose	to	the	general	meeting,	
eight	years	after	the	date	of	every	issue,	withdrawing	the	
repayment	referred	to	in	Article	7,	paragraph	1	for	every

	 	 series	of	financing	preference	shares	or	every	series	of	
convertible	financing	preference	shares	respectively,	as	long	
as	those	series	are	withdrawn	at	the	same	time.	We	refer	to	
the	website	of	TKH	for	further	determinations	of	our	articles	
of	association

For	other	provisions	of	the	articles	of	association	we	refer	to	
TKH’s	website:	www.tkhgroup.com.	A	resolution	of	the	General	
Meeting	of	Shareholders	to	amend	the	articles	of	association	
can	only	be	adopted	on	the	proposal	of	the	Executive	Board,	
which	proposal	shall	require	the	approval	of	the	Supervisory	
Board	and	with	a	majority	of	at	least	two	thirds	of	the	votes	cast	
in	a	General	Meeting	of	Shareholders	in	which	at	least	half	of	
the	issued	capital	is	represented.

Net	profit	accountable	to	shareholders	€	28,753

In	accordance	with	Article	33	of	the	articles	of	association,	we	
propose	paying	the	holders	of	(depositary	receipts	of)	ordinary	
shares	a	dividend	of	€	0.65	per	(depositary	receipt	of)	ordinary	
share.	The	dividend	will	be	made	available	for	payment	on		
30	May	2012.	The	dividend	for	4,000	priority	shares	has	been		
set	at	€	0.05	per	share	of	€	1.00.

Proposal for profit appropriationRegulation under the articles of association concerning the 
appropriation of profit

in thousands of euros



TKH GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2012

 129

Report on the financial statements
We	have	audited	the	accompanying	financial	statements	2012	
of	TKH	Group	N.V.,	Haaksbergen.	The	financial	statements	
include	the	consolidated	financial	statements	and	the	
company	financial	statements.	The	consolidated	financial	
statements	comprise	the	consolidated	balance	sheet	as	per	
December	31,	2012,	the	consolidated	profit	and	loss	account,	
the	consolidated	statement	of	comprehensive	income,	the	
consolidated	statement	of	changes	in	group	equity	and	the	
consolidated	cash	flow	statement	for	the	year	then	ended,	and	
notes,	comprising	a	summary	of	the	significant	accounting	
policies	and	other	explanatory	information.	The	company	
financial	statements	comprise	the	company	balance	sheet	as	
per	December	31,	2012	the	company	profit	and	loss	account	
for	the	year	then	ended	and	the	notes,	comprising	a	summary	
of	the	accounting	policies	and	other	explanatory	information.

Management’s responsibility
Management	is	responsible	for	the	preparation	and	fair	
presentation	of	these	financial	statements	in	ac¬cordance	
with	International	Financial	Reporting	Standards	as	adopted	
by	the	European	Union	and	with	Part	9	of	Book	2	of	the	Dutch	
Civil	Code,	and	for	the	preparation	of	the	Report	of	the	
Executive	Board	in	accordance	with	Part	9	of	Book	2	of	the	
Dutch	Civil	Code.	Furthermore	management	is	responsible	
for	such	internal	control	as	it	determines	is	necessary	to	
enable	the	preparation	of	the	financial	statements	that	are	
free	from	material	misstatement,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	
error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our	responsibility	is	to	express	an	opinion	on	these	financial	
statements	based	on	our	audit.	We	conducted	our	audit	in	
accordance	with	Dutch	law,	including	the	Dutch	Standards	
on	Auditing.	This	requires	that	we	comply	with	ethical	
requirements	and	plan	and	perform	the	audit	to	obtain	
reasonable	assurance	about	whether	the	financial	statements	
are	free	from	material	misstatement.
An	audit	involves	performing	procedures	to	obtain	audit	
evidence	about	the	amounts	and	disclosures	in	the	financial	
statements.	The	procedures	selected	depend	on	the	auditor’s	
judgment,	including	the	assessment	of	the	risks	of	material	
misstatement	of	the	financial	statements,	whether	due	to	
fraud	or	error.
In	making	those	risk	assessments,	the	auditor	considers	
internal	control	relevant	to	the	entity’s	preparation	and	fair	
presentation	of	the	financial	statements	in	order	to	design	
audit	procedures	that	are	appropriate	in	the	circumstances,	
but	not	for	the	purpose	of	expressing	an	opinion	on	the	
effectiveness	of	the	entity’s	internal	control.	An	audit	also	
includes	evaluating	the	appropriateness	of	accounting	
policies	used	and	the	reasonableness	of	accounting	estimates	
made	by	management,	as	well	as	evaluating	the	overall	
presenta¬tion	of	the	financial	statements.
We	believe	that	the	audit	evidence	we	have	obtained	is	
sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	for	our	audit	
opinion.

Opinion with respect to the consolidated financial 
statements
In	our	opinion,	the	consolidated	financial	statements	give	a	
true	and	fair	view	of	the	financial	position	of	TKH	Group	N.V.		
as	per	December	31,	2012	and	of	its	result	and	its	cashflows	
for	the	year	then	ended	in	accordance	with	International	
Financial	Reporting	Standards	as	adopted	by	the	European	
Union	and	with	Part	9	of	Book	2	of	the	Dutch	Civil	Code.

Opinion with respect to the company financial 
statements
In	our	opinion,	the	company	financial	statements	give	a	true	
and	fair	view	of	the	financial	position	of	TKH	Group	N.V.	as	
per	December	31,	2012	and	of	its	result	for	the	year	then	
ended	in	accordance	with	Part	9	of	Book	2	of	the	Dutch	Civil	
Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Pursuant	to	the	legal	requirement	under	Section	2:393	sub	5	
at	e	and	f	of	the	Dutch	Civil	Code,	we	have	no	deficiencies	to	
report	as	a	result	of	our	examination	whether	the	Report	of	
the	Executive	Board,	to	the	extent	we	can	assess,	has	been	
prepared	in	accordance	with	Part	9	of	Book	2	of	this	Code,	
and	whether	the	information	as	required	under	Section	2:392	
sub	1	at	b-h	has	been	annexed.	Further	we	report	that	the	
Report	of	the	Executive	Board,	to	the	extent	we	can	assess,	is	
consistent	with	the	financial	statements	as	required	by	
Section	2:391	sub	4	of	the	Dutch	Civil	Code.

Enschede,	March	5,	2013
Deloitte	Accountants	B.V.	

A.J.E. Jansman

Independent auditor’s report
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Stichting Administratiekantoor van Aandelen TKH (TKH Trust Office Foundation)

In	accordance	with	the	provisions	of	Article	9	of	the	Trust	
Conditions	governing	the	shares	of	TKH	Group	N.V.,	as	last	
amended	on	14	May	2007,	we	wish	to	report	that:	

•	the	activities	during	the	year	under	review,	2012,	related	to	
the	holding	in	trust	of	shares	for	which	depositary	receipts	
have	been	issued;

•	the	nominal	value	of	the	ordinary	shares	of	TKH	Group	N.V.	
held	in	trust	amounted	to	€ 9,527,481.50	on	31	December	
2012,	in	exchange	for	which	38,109,926	depositary	receipts	
for	shares	with	a	nominal	value	of	€	0.25	each	have	been	
issued.

The	objective	of	the	TKH	Trust	Office	Foundation	(hereafter:		
the	Trust	Office)	is	to	acquire	and	hold	in	trust	ordinary	shares	
in	TKH	Group	N.V.,	a	public	company	which	its	registered	office	
in	Haaksbergen,	in	exchange	for	the	allocation	of	registered	
depositary	receipts	for	shares.	The	Trust	Office	is	required	to	
exercise	the	rights	attached	to	the	shares	in	such	a	way	that	
the	interests	of	the	company	and	its	business	are	safeguarded	
as	effectively	as	possible.	Hollandsch	Administratiekantoor	B.V.	
in	Amsterdam	is	the	administrator	of	the	Trust	Office.

Meetings of the Executive Committee
The	Executive	Committee	of	the	Trust	Office	met	three	times	
during	the	financial	year.	The	chair	of	the	Executive	Committee	
discussed	with	the	company	matters	concerning	the	Trust	
Office.	

At	its	meeting	on	20	March	2012	the	Executive	Committee	
received	a	briefing	from	the	company’s	Executive	Board	on	the	
annual	report	for	2011	and	discussed	the	items	on	the	agenda	
for	the	2012	Annual	General	Meeting	of	Shareholders	(AGM).	
Also	discussed	was	the	request	of	a	depositary	receipt	holder	to	
convene	a	meeting	of	depositary	receipt	holders.	The	Executive	
Committee	noted	that	the	request	was	merely	to	convene	such	
a	meeting	and	did	not	specify	a	topic	for	discussion	or	provide	
an	agenda	with	explanatory	notes.	The	Executive	Committee	

therefore	concluded	that	the	General	Meeting	of	Shareholders	
is	the	appropriate	forum	for	depositary	receipt	holders	to	put	
questions	both	to	the	company	and	to	Executive	Committee	of	
the	Trust	Office.	This	is	conducive	to	transparent	communica-
tion	with	all	the	company’s	stakeholders,	to	whom	the	
Executive	Committee	of	the	Trust	Office	addresses	itself	in	
accordance	with	its	constitution.	Another	matter	discussed	at	
this	meeting	was	the	composition	of	the	Executive	Committee	
of	the	Trust	Office,	since	Mr	Termijtelen	was	due	to	retire	as	
member	of	the	Executive	Committee	owing	to	the	expiry	of	his	
term	of	office	on	30	June	2012.	The	Executive	Committee	
posted	an	appeal	on	its	website	to	depositary	receipt	holders	to	
nominate	candidates	for	appointment.	As	no	names	of	candi-
dates	were	put	forward,	the	Executive	Committee	appointed	Mr	
Harrie	Noy,	former	chairman	of	the	Executive	Board	of	Arcadis	
NV,	as	a	member	of	the	Executive	Committee	of	the	Trust	
Office	as	of	1	July	2012.

The	meeting	also	discussed	the	provisions	of	the	Dutch	
Corporate	Governance	Code	affecting	the	issuing	of	depositary	
receipts	for	shares.	Once	again,	the	conclusion	was	reached	
that	granting	a	voting	proxy	to	depositary	receipt	holders	
regardless	of	the	circumstances	would	be	contrary	to	the	
objects	of	the	Trust	Office	as	described	in	its	constitution.	In	
this	respect,	it	was	determined	that	the	law	-	in	this	case	
Section	118a	of	Book	2	of	the	Netherlands	Civil	Code	–	prevails	
over	the	relevant	provisions	of	the	Code.	In	line	with	this	statu-
tory	provision	a	depositary	receipt	holder	is	granted	a	proxy	to	
vote	in	his	own	right	and	based	on	his	own	discretion	in	a	
meeting	of	shareholders,	but	the	Executive	Committee	will	be	
entitled	to	limit,	preclude	or	revoke	that	proxy	in	the	circum-
stances	described	by	law.	

The	members	of	the	Executive	Committee	met	on	15	May	2012	
to	prepare	for	the	2012	AGM.	The	agenda	items	of	the	AGM	
were	discussed	and	the	voting	behaviour	of	the	Trust	Office	
provisionally	determined,	pending	the	deliberations	in	the	
AGM.	Another	matter	raised	at	the	meeting	was	Mr	

Termijtelen’s	retirement.	The	Executive	Committee	stated	that	
it	was	very	grateful	to	Mr	Termijtelen	for	his	commitment	and	
professional	contribution.	He	had	managed	to	represent	the	
interests	of	the	depositary	receipt	holders	in	a	very	special	way,	
without	losing	sight	of	the	interests	of	the	company	and	its	
businesses.	

At	the	2012	AGM	the	holders	of	depositary	receipts	for	shares	
in	the	capital	of	the	company	were	allowed	to	vote	indepen-
dently	for	the	shares	in	question	and	subject	to	the	relevant	
statutory	provisions.	At	the	meeting,	99.3%	of	the	issued	capital	
was	represented.	62.0%	of	the	holders	of	depositary	receipts	for	
shares	requested	a	proxy	from	the	Trust	Office	to	vote	indepen-
dently	on	the	shares	in	question.	During	the	2012	AGM	the	
Trust	Office	cast	votes	for	the	remaining	37.3%	of	the	issued	
capital	represented	at	the	meeting.	After	considering	all	the	
relevant	factors	the	Trust	Office	voted	at	the	AGM	in	favour	of	
all	of	the	items	on	the	agenda	which	were	put	to	a	vote.

In	its	meeting	of	10	September	2012	the	Executive	Committee	
of	the	Foundation	discussed	the	authorisation	of	the	Executive	
Board	to	issue	preference	shares	as	protection	against	a	hostile	
takeover.	In	this	meeting	the	Executive	Board	explained	the	
published	2012	half-year	figures	as	well	as	the	majority	interest	
acquired	in	Augusta	Technologie	AG	in	Germany.	The	Trust	
Office’s	website	was	also	evaluated.	The	Trust	Office	once	again	
noted	that	the	website	is	informative	and	is	visited	regularly.	
The	schedule	of	retirement	in	2013	was	also	discussed.	

Schedule of retirement	
In	accordance	with	the	schedule	of	retirement	Professor	
M.W.	den	Boogert	is	due	to	retire	in	2013	and	is	eligible	for	
reappointment	for	a	further	term	of	office.	On	its	website	the	
Trust	Office	has	given	the	holders	of	depositary	receipts	for	
shares	the	opportunity	to	put	forward	the	names	of	possible	
candidates	that	fit	the	profile.	In	the	Trust	Office’s	meeting	of	
March	2013	any	suggestions	will	be	discussed	by	the	Executive	
Committee.	
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Remuneration of the Executive Committee of the 
Trust Office
The	remuneration	for	the	independent	members	of	the	
Executive	Committee	was	most	recently	changed	in	2007.		
The	remuneration	of	the	chairman	is	€ 10,000	per	year	and	
that	of	a	member	is	€ 8,000	per	year	(excl.	VAT).	Additional	
remuneration	is	awarded	if	the	Executive	Committee	is	
expected	to	make	an	extra	effort.	The	costs	of	the	Trust	Office	
amounted	to	€	30,384	in	2012	(2011:	€ 29.352).

The	Trust	Office’s	Executive	Committee	currently	has	three	
independent	members:
Mr	F.H.	Schreve,	chairman
Professor	M.W.	den	Boogert
Mr	H.L.J.	Noy
	
The	members	of	the	Executive	Committee	hold	the	following	
positions:	
The	committee’s	chairman,	Mr	F.H.	Schreve	(1942),	is	an		
independent	member.	Mr	Schreve	is	a	former	chairman	of		
the	Executive	Board	of	Koninklijke	Ten	Cate	N.V.,	of	Heidemij/
Arcadis	and	of	Rabobank	International.	He	is	also	chairman	of	
the	Supervisory	Board	of	Fugro	N.V.,	a	listed	company,	where	he	
is	also	a	member	of	the	Executive	Committee	of	the	Stichting	
Fugro	Preferente	Aandelen	and	of	the	Stichting	Continuïteit	
Fugro.	Mr	Schreve	is	also	chairman	of	the	Supervisory	Board		
of	the	Sint	Lucas	Andreas	Hospital	in	Amsterdam,	a	member	of	
the	Supervisory	Board	of	HVC	N.V.	and	chairman	of	the	
Stichting	Preferente	Aandelen	H.E.S.	Beheer	N.V.	

Professor	M.W.	den	Boogert	(1943)	is	an	independent	member	
of	the	Executive	Committee.	Mr	Den	Boogert	is	a	lawyer	in	
Amsterdam,	professor	emeritus	of	securities	law	in	the	
University	of	Groningen,	member	of	the	Advisory	and	
Supervisory	Board	of	the	Netherlands	Arbitration	Institute,	
chairman	of	the	DSI	Arbitration	Committee,	member	of	the	
Supervisory	Board	of	the	Stichting	Communicatiekanaal	
Aandeelhouders,	member	of	the	Company	Law	Committee	of	

the	Ministry	of	Security	and	Justice,	deputy	member	of	the	SER	
Mergers	Committee	and	vice-chairman	of	the	SNS	REAAL	
Management	Foundation.	Mr	Den	Boogert	is	also	member	of	
the	executive	boards	of	Stichting	ING	Aandelen	and	a	number	
of	foundations	with	a	protective	role	at	a	listed	company.	

Mr	H.L.J.	Noy	(1951)	is	an	interdependent	board	member.	Until	
recently	he	was	chairman	of	the	Executive	Board	and	CEO	of	
Arcadis	NV,	a	listed	company.	Mr	Noy	is	a	member	of	the	super-
visory	board	of	Royal	BAM	Groep	NV	and	Fugro	NV,	both	listed	
companies,	and	executive	board	member	of	the	Association	of	
Securities-Issuing	Companies	(VEUO),	executive	board	member	
of	the	ING	Group	Trust	Office	Foundation	and	extraordinary	
member	of	the	Dutch	Safety	Board.

Contact details
The	Trust	Office	has	its	offices	at	the	company’s	address.	
The	Trust	Office	can	also	be	reached	at	its	website	at	
www.stichtingadministratiekantoortkh.com	or	by	e-mail	on	
stak@tkhgroup.com.

Haaksbergen,	12	March	2013
TKH	Trust	Office	Foundation
The Executive Committee

Declaration of independence
The	Executive	Board	of	TKH	Group	NV	and	the	Executive	
Committee	of	the	TKH	Trust	Office	Foundation	hereby	declare	
severally	and	in	their	joint	opinion	that	the	TKH	Trust	Office	
Foundation	is	a	legal	entity	which	is	independent	of	TKH	
Group	NV	within	the	meaning	of	Section	5:71(1)(d)	of	the	
Financial	Supervision	Act.

Haaksbergen,	12	March	2013
TKH	Group	NV
The Executive Board 

Haaksbergen,	12	March	2013
TKH	Trust	Office	Foundation
The Executive Committee
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Stichting Continuïteit TKH (TKH Continuity Foundation)

The	objective	of	the	Stichting	Continuïteit	TKH	(TKH	
Continuity	Foundation),	which	has	its	seat	in	Haaksbergen,	is	
to	represent	the	interests	of	the	company	and	all	the	busi-
nesses	affiliated	with	it	in	such	a	way	that	these	interests	are	
guaranteed	as	well	as	possible	and	to	resist	as	far	as	possible	
influences	which	could	affect	the	independence,	continuity	
or	identity	of	the	company	and	its	businesses	contrary	to	
those	interests,	as	well	as	to	do	anything	related	or	conducive	
to	the	above.

TKH	has	granted	the	Continuity	Foundation,	by	means	of	a	
call	option,	the	right	to	acquire	protective	preference	shares	
in	the	company	up	to	a	maximum	of	50%	of	the	amount	of	
the	other	shares	outstanding	at	the	time	of	placement	of	the	
protective	shares	or	100%	if	the	limitation	of	the	possibility	of	
conversion	ends.	The	protective	preference	shares	will	not	be	
left	outstanding	longer	than	strictly	necessary.	If	shareholders	
of	TKH	obtain	or	are	on	the	point	of	obtaining	a	concentra-
tion	of	control	which	is	regarded	as	undesirable	and	is	not	in	
the	interests	of	TKH	and	its	businesses,	the	Executive	Board	
and	the	Supervisory	Board	of	the	company	may	determine	
their	position	on	this	concentration	of	control,	consider	and	
study	possible	alternatives	and	elaborate	them,	if	required.		
TKH	has	granted	the	Continuity	Foundation	the	right	to	initi-
ate	an	inquiry	procedure	if	it	considers	that	there	are	good	
grounds	for	doubting	the	policy	and	actions	of	TKH	and	
believes	that	by	invoking	this	right	it	is	acting	to	represent	
the	interests	of	the	company	and	its	businesses.	

The	Continuity	Foundation	met	once	in	2012.	At	the	invita-
tion	of	the	Foundation	the	chairman	of	the	TKH	Executive	
Board	also	attended	this	meeting	and	explained	the	general	
course	of	events	within	TKH,	the	financial	reporting	and	the	
relationship	with	shareholders	within	the	TKH	Group.		The	
Continuity	Foundation	considered	its	financial	statements,	its	
schedule	of	retirement,	the	consequences	of	the	compulsory	
registration	date	for	protective	preference	shares	and	the	
procedures	and	processes	in	exercising	the	call	option.	In	this	
meeting	the	Foundation	once	again	noted	that	it	is	desirable	
to	maintain	the	existing	protective	structure.	It	took	into	
account	that	protection	is	provided	both	by	the	fact	that	
depositary	receipts	have	been	issued	for	the	company’s	shares	
and	by	the	call	option	granted	to	the	TKH	Continuity	
Foundation	to	subscribe	for	protective	preference	shares.	

The	members	of	the	Foundation’s	Executive	Committee	are:
Professor	H.M.N.	Schonis,	chairman
Ms	S.	Drion
Mr	P.M.	Runderkamp
Mr	L.P.E.M.	van	den	Boom	

Haaksbergen,	12	March	2013
TKH	Continuity	Foundation	
The Executive Committee 

Declaration of independence
The	Executive	Board	of	TKH	Group	NV	and	the	Executive	
Committee	of	the	TKH	Continuity	Foundation	declare	severally	
and	in	their	joint	opinion	that	the	Continuity	Foundation	is		
a	legal	entity	which	is	independent	of	TKH	Group	NV	within	
the	meaning	of	Section	5:71	(1)	(c)	of	the	Financial	Supervision	
Act.	

Haaksbergen,	12	March	2013
TKH	Group	NV
The Executive Board

Haaksbergen,	12	March	2013
TKH	Continuity	Foundation	
The Executive Committee	
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Overview press releases 2012

12 March 2012 Acquisition Aasset Security -  
important strategic expansion in security systems 
TKH	announced	that	it	has	reached	agreement	on	the	acquisi-
tion	of	100%	of	the	shares	in	Aasset	Security	International	
(Aasset),	headquartered	in	Paris	(France),	with	its	subsidiaries	
Aasset	France	and	Aasset	Germany,	and	branches	in	Italy	and	
UK.	Aasset	is	a	leading	provider	of	security	solutions	and	video	
surveillance	and	offers	added-value	services	such	as	designing	
of	architectures,	development	of	specialized	software	and	
sourcing	of	equipment.	Aasset	has	88	employees	(FTE)	and	an	
annual	turnover	of	€	35	million.	The	activities	of	Aasset	are	
integrated	in	the	sub-segment	security	systems,	which	is	part	of	
TKH’s	Building	Solutions.	

14 March 2012 Annual results 2011: TKH books 
record turnover of more than € 1 billion 
Turnover	rose	by	€	167.6	million	(18.8%)	to	€	1,061.1	million.	
TKH’s	operating	result	before	amortisation	of	intangible	assets	
(EBITA)	rose	by	22.8%	to	€	90.1	million.	Net	profit	before	amor-
tisation	came	in	at	€	59.1	million	in	2011.	Net	profit	rose	to		
€	54.1	million,	an	increase	of	32.3%	from	the	€	40.9	million	
recorded	in	2010.	Ordinary	earnings	per	share	came	in	at		
€	1.44.	

3 April 2012 TKH announces decision to launch public 
takeover offer for all outstanding shares in Augusta
TKH	announces	that	it	has	entered	into	a	transaction	agree-
ment	with	German	listed	Augusta	Technologie	AG	(„Augusta“)	
on	3	April	2012	and	decided	to	make,	through	an	indirectly	
wholly-owned	subsidiary,	a	voluntary	public	takeover	offer	to	
all	shareholders	of	Augusta	to	acquire	all	outstanding	shares	in	
Augusta.	The	consideration	to	be	offered	to	the	shareholders	of	
Augusta	for	their	shares	will	be	EUR	21.00	in	cash	per	share.	
Through	the	acquisition	of	Augusta,	TKH	creates,	one	of	the	
leading	platforms	in	the	strongly	growing	market	of	vision	
technology	and	providing	the	combined	operations	with	the	
scale	and	capabilities	to	become	the	global	leader	in	this	
segment.	

25 April 2012 TKH increases the offer price for take-
over offer for Augusta and secures additional support 
for the offer
Following	its	announcement	to	launch	a	public	takeover	offer	
to	all	shareholders	on	3	April	2012,	TKH	has	decided	to	increase	
the	offer	price	from	EUR	21	to	EUR	23	per	share	of	Augusta.	
TKH	has	obtained	binding	commitments	of	additional	key	
shareholders	to	tender	their	shares	exclusively	into	the	TKH	
offer	and	has	now	secured	more	than	40%	of	the	outstanding	
shares	(excl.	treasury	shares).	

9 May 2012 Trading update Q1 2012: Lower turnover 
and result in first quarter
Turnover	decreased	with	7.1%	to	€	258.9	million.	The	operating	
result	before	amortisation	of	intangible	assets	(EBITA)	decreased	
by	12.2%	to	€	20.2	million.	Net	profit	before	aquisition	amounted	
to	€	12.5	million.	Net	profit	decreased	to	€	11.1	million,	a	drop	
of	26.2%.	As	a	result	of	a	one-off	tax	gain	in	2011	the	decrease	
in	net	profit	was	larger	than	the	decrease	in	EBITA.

11 May 2012 TKH publishes takeover offer for 
Augusta 
TKH	Technologie	Deutschland,	an	indirect	100%	subsidiary	of	
TKH	Group	N.V.	published,	after	approval	by	the	German	
Federal	Financial	Supervisory	Authority	(BaFin),	the	offer	docu-
ment	for	the	voluntary	public	takeover	offer	to	all	shareholders	
of	Augusta.

6 June 2012 TKH amends voluntary public takeover 
offer to shareholders of Augusta 
TKH	today	reduced	the	minimum	acceptance	level	from	75%	to	
50%	plus	one	share	of	all	shares	issued	by	Augusta	at	the	expi-
ration	of	the	acceptance	period,	minus	all	treasury	shares.	
Furthermore,	TKH	waived	the	material	adverse	market	change	
offer	condition	set	forth	in	the	Offer	Document	that,	from	the	
time	of	the	publication	of	the	Offer	Document	until	the	close	
of	the	markets	in	Frankfurt	am	Main	on	the	last	working	day	
prior	to	the	expiration	of	the	acceptance	period,	the	DAX	has	
not	decreased	by	more	than	1,500	points	from	its	level	on	10	
May	2012.
	

27 June 2012 TKH secures 59.6% of all outstanding 
Augusta shares
At	the	expiry	of	the	acceptance	period	on	22	June	2012,	the	
voluntary	public	takeover	offer	by	TKH	was	accepted	for	53.34%	
of	all	outstanding	shares	of	Augusta	(excluding	treasury	
shares).	In	addition,	TKH	acquired	6.18%	of	all	outstanding	
Augusta	shares	outside	the	offer	and	holds	financial	instru-
ments,	which	entitle	it	to	purchase	0.09%	of	all	outstanding	
Augusta	shares.	In	total,	TKH	has	thus	far	secured	59.6%	of	all	
outstanding	Augusta	shares.

22 August 2012 Interim figures 2012: lower profit on 
reduced turnover and retention of capacity for growth 
In	the	first	half	of	2012,	turnover	dropped	by	4.2%	to	€	526.2	
million.	The	operating	result	before	amortisation	of	intangible	
assets	(EBITA)	fell	to	€	33.5	million	in	the	first	half	of	2012,	a	
drop	of	27.8%.	This	drop	was	partly	due	to	lower	capacity	utili-
sation	as	a	result	of	lower	turnover.	In	addition,	more	than	half	
the	decline	was	due	to	the	retention	of	capacity	for	growth,	as	
well	as	acquisition	costs.	Net	profit	before	amortisation	came	in	
at	€	18.3	million.	Net	profit	for	the	first	half	of	the	year	fell	to		
€	15.2	million,	a	drop	of	47.6%.			

8 November 2012 Trading update 3rd quarter 2012
Turnover	in	the	third	quarter	of	2012	rose	by	8.6%	to	€	276.0	
million.	EBITA	decreased	by	4.3%	to	€	19.8	million.
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Alphatronics BV
Watergoorweg 71
3861 MA Nijkerk
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)33 245 99 44
E info@alphatronics.nl
I www.alphatronics.nl

BB-LightConcepts BV
C. Bekker
Fabriekstraat 16-04
7005 AR Doetinchem
the Netherlands 
T  +31 (0)314 39 23 48
E info@bb-lightconcepts.nl
I www.bb-lightconcepts.nl

Capable BV
M.W.C. van Tilburg
Weidehek 109
4824 AT Breda
the Netherlands
T +31 (076) 541 64 56
E info@capable.nl
I www.capable.nl

Capassy BV
J. van de Sande
Guldenweg 109
4879 NL Etten-Leur
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)76 564 48 80
E info@capassy.com
I www.capassy.com

Commend Benelux BV
J. Bressers
De Lind 3
4841 KC Prinsenbeek
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)76 200 01 00
E info@commend.nl
I www.commend.nl

EKB Groep BV
M.N.A. van Leuven MBA
M. de Lange
Wijkermeerweg 31
1948 NT Beverwijk
the Netherlands
T +31(0)251 26 19 20
E info@ekb.nl
I www.ekbgroep.nl

Eldra BV
H.H. Oortwijn, H. Smeyer
Branskamp 7
6014 CB Ittervoort
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)475 56 67 67
E verkoop@eldra.nl
I www.eldra.nl

BV Elspec
D.W.S. Gigengack
Bedrijvenweg 14
1424 PX De Kwakel
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)297 33 03 00
E salessup@elspec.nl
I www.elspec.nl

Flexposure BV
G. Uljee
Koelenhofstraat 39
4004 JR Tiel
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)344 63 40 22
E info@FlexPosure.nl
I www.flexposure.nl

Funea Broadband Services BV
R. Knetsch
Gouden Rijderstraat 1
4903 RD Oosterhout
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)162 47 58 00
E info@funea.com
I www.funea.com

Intronics Groep
M. Swolfs
Koolhovenstraat 1E
3772 MT Barneveld
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)342 40 70 40
E info@intronics.nl
I www.intronics.nl

Also establishment in:
Belgium and Spain

•	 Eminent	Europe	BV 
 M.A.M. Pannebakker
 Middelweg 27
 6191 NC Beek
  the Netherlands
 T +31 (0)46 436 21 57
 E info@eminent-online.com
 I www.eminent-online.com

Isolectra BV
W. Hulst, A. Fial
Rivium Boulevard 101
2909 LK Capelle a/d IJssel
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)10 285 52 85
E info@isolectra .nl
I www.isolectra.nl

Also establishments in:
SpeeQ - Capelle a/d IJssel

Jobarco BV
H.P. van der Meer, M. Ditmar
Verbreepark 15
2731 BR Benthuizen
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)79 331 93 13
E info@jobarco.com
I www.jobarco.com

Keyprocessor BV
G. van den Hoek
Paasheuvelweg 20
1105 BJ Amsterdam Z.O.
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)20 462 07 00
E info@keyprocessor.com
I www.keyprocessor.com

KLS Netherlands
B. Draaijer, G. W. Borghuis
Buitenvaart 1401
7905 SJ  Hoogeveen
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)36 82 00 101 
E info@klsnetherlands.nl
I www.klsnetherlands.nl

Mextal BV
E.P.J. Kruijswijk, F. Stravers
De Tienden 48
5674 TB Nuenen
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)40 290 75 10
E info@mextal.com
I www.mextal.com

Pantaflex BV
A.H.M. Ruigrok
Weg en Bos 86
2661 GX Bergschenhoek
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)10 524 92 49
E info@pantaflex.nl
I www.pantaflex.nl

Parking + Protection BV
H.F.J. van Engelen
De Boedingen 39
4906 BA Oosterhout
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)162 48 01 90
E info@parking-protection.nl
I www.parking-protection.nl

Scanton BV
J. Baartmans
Vleugelboot 20
3991 CL Houten
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)30 21 92 050
E info@scanton.nl
I www.scanton.nl

Siqura BV
T.W.M. Overwijn
Zuidelijk Halfrond 4
2801 DD Gouda
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)182 592 333
E sales.nl@siqura.com
I www.siqura.com

Also establishments in:
France, Germany, Italy,
Spain, UK, Middle-East,
China and Asia (other)

Solinq BV
F. van der Sanden
Schoutlaan 10
6002 EA Weert
the Netherlands
T+31 (0)475 566 767
E info@solinq.com
I www.solinq.com

Techno Specials NV
F. Bobbaerts
Ottergemsesteenweg Zd 731a
9000 Gent. Belgium
T +32 9 325 82 12
E info@technospecial.com
I www.technospecials.com

Texim Europe BV
A. Koens
Elektrostraat 17
7483 PG Haaksbergen
the Netherlands

T +31 (0)53 57 33 333
E info@texim-europe.com
I www.texim-europe.com

Also establishments in:
Belgium and Germany

TKH Logistics BV
F. Teesselink
Elektrostraat 17
7483 PG Haaksbergen
the Netherlands 
T +31 (0)53 85 05 000
E info@tkhlogistics.nl
I www.tkhlogistics.nl

TKH Parking Solutions BV
J. Baartmans
Vleugelboot 20
3991 CL Houten
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)30 21 92 05
E info@tkhparking.com

BV Twentsche Kabelfabriek
J.M.A. van der Lof MBA,
H.H. Oortwijn, W. Bank
Spinnerstraat 15
7481 KJ Haaksbergen
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)53 57 32 255
E info@tkf.nl
I www.tkf.nl

Also establishments in:
Germany, France and Nordics

USE System Engineering BV
J.H.M. van der Kuil
Industriestraat 77
7482 EW Haaksbergen
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)53 574 14 56
E ease@usetechnology.nl
I www.usetechnology.nl

Subsidiaries Benelux
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Aasset Security GmbH
L. Bergschneider
Max-Planck-Straße 15 a-c
40699 Erkrath
Germany
T +49 211 2470160
E info@aasset.de
I  www.aasset-security.com

ASP AG
L. Bergschneider
Lüttringhauser Straße 9
42897 Remscheid
Germany
T +49 2191/374 9883
E  info@asp-ag.eu
I  www.grundig-cctv.com

Augusta Technologie AG
B. Hausmann 
Willy-Brandt-Platz 3
81829 München
Germany
T +49 89 435 71 55 25
E info@augusta-ag.com
I  www.augusta-ag.com

Also establishments in:
Germany, Austria, Canada

Allied Vision Technologies 
GmbH
F. Grube
Taschenweg 2a
07646 Stadtroda
Germany
T +49 364286770
I www.alliedvisiontec.com

Also establishments in:
USA, Canada, Singapore, 
China

HE System Electronic GmbH 
A. Barnert, A. Radtke
Reitweg 1
90587 Veitsbronn
Germany
T +49 911 975 810
E info@he-system.com
I www.he-system.com

EFB Elektronik GmbH
H. Schreitter. V. Meyer
Striegauerstraße 1
33719 Bielefeld
Germany
T +49 521 40 41 80
E info@efb-elektronik.de
I www.efb-elektronik.de

Also establishments in:
VMC, Denmark
EFB Istanbul, Turkey
Advanced Network
Services, Hong Kong

Ernst & Engbring GmbH 
L. Klick
Industriestraße 9
45739 Oer-Erkenschwick
Germany
T +49 2368 69 010
E info@eue-kabel.de
I  www.eue-kabel.de

•	EEB	Kabeltechnik	GmbH
   Holunderweg 2
   03149 Forst
   Germany
   T +49 3562 692 41 80
   E info@eeb-kabel.de
   I www.eeb-kabel.de

NET GmbH
J.P. Heinrichs
Lerchenberg 7
86923 Finning
Germany
T +49 8806 923 40
E info@net-gmbh.com
I www.net-gmbh.com

Also establishments in:
Italië. USA. Japan

Schneider Intercom GmbH
D. Witte
Zentrale Düsseldorf
Heinrich Hertz Strasse 40
40699 Erkrath-Unterfeldhaus
Germany
T +49 211 88 28 50
E info@schneider-intercom.de
I www.schneider-intercom.de

TKD Kabel GmbH
W. Engst, J. Neumann
An der Kleinbahn 16
41334 Nettetal
Germany
T +49 2157 897 90
E nettetal@tkd-kabel.de
I www.tkd-kabel.de

•	Standort	Iserlohn
   Zollhausstrasse 6
   58640 Iserlohn
   Germany
   T + 49 2371 43 50
   E iserlohn@tkd-kabel.de

•	Standort	Pliezhausen
  Karl-Benz-Strasse 20
   72124 Pliezhausen
   Germany
   T +49 7127 81 04 01
  E pliezhausen@tkd-kabel.de

Also establishments in:
Kaweflex Wire and Cable inc. 
USA, HPM Cables Sarl - France, 
TKD Polska, TKD China, TKD 
Italy

TKF GmbH
A. Baitz
Rheinstrasse 17
14513 Teltow
Germany
T +49 3328 33 66 03 20
E info-de@tkf.eu
I www.ace-fibreoptic.com

TKH Deutschland GmbH
L. Klick, N. Heinemann
An der Kleinbahn 16
41334 Nettetal
Germany
T +49 2157 89 77 80

Schrade Kabel und
Elektrotechnik GmbH
M. Niemczyk
Carl-Benz Strasse 1
89604 Allmendingen
Germany
T +49 7391 70 740
E info@schrade-kabel.de
I www.schrade-kabel.de

VMI-AZ Extrusion
G. Roncken
Bahnhofstraße 6
93486 Runding
Germany
T +49 9971 761 390
E sales@vmi-group.com
I  www.vmi-group.com

Germany
VDG Security BV
T. Grijpink
Radonstraat 10-14
2718 TA Zoetermeer
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)79 36 38 111
E info@vdg-security.com
I www.vdg-security.com

VMI Holland BV
H.J. Voortman, 
G.C.G. Roncken, A. Dalstra
Gelriaweg 16
8161 RK Epe
the Netherlands
T +31 (0)578 67 91 11
E sales@vmi-group.com
I www.vmi-group.com

Also establishments in:
Germany, Russia, USA, Brazil, 
China and Malaysia
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T +43 316 30700
E info@dewetron.com
I  www.dewetron.com

Also establishments in:
Germany, China and USA

C&C	Partners	Sp.z.o.o.
M. Niemczyk, A. Hejdysz, 
R. Wojciechowski
ul. 17 Stycznia 119-121
64-100 Leszno
Poland
T +48 65 525 55 55
E info@ccpartners.pl
I www.ccpartners.pl

Also establishments in:
C&C Technology - Leszno 
(Poland)

TKH Kabeltechniek 
M. Niemczyk, R. Wojciechowski
ul. 17 Stycznia 121
64-100 Leszno
Poland
T +48 65 528 5201
E info@tkhkabeltechniek.pl
I www.tkhkabeltechniek.pl

TKH Nordic
F. Grivans
Annebergsvägen 3
64541 Strängnäs
Sweden
T +46 159 35 00 10
E info@vmc.se
I www.vmc.se

VMI South America
Condominio Industrial 
R. Araujo
Sergio Gregori
Rodovia Presidente
Dutra. KM 316. Sentido RJ
CEP 27580-000
Itatiaia RJ. Brazil
T +55 24 210 89 425
E raraujo@vmi-group.com
I  www.vmi-group.com

LMI Technologies Inc.
T. Arden
1673 Cliveden Avenue. Delta
British Columbia V3M 6V5
Canada
T +1 6046 361 011
I www.lmi3D.com

Also establishments in :
the Netherlands, Ireland, USA

TKH Building Solutions
Shanghai Ltd.
V. Sung
1104-1105. 11th floor
No. 509 Wuning Road
Putuo District
Shanghai 200063
China

Twentsche (Nanjing) Fibre
Optics Ltd (TFO)
Xia Li
No.2 Xinke 4 Road
New & High Technology
Industry Development Zone
Pukou Nanjing 210061
China
T +86 25 5884 48 88
E marketing@tfo.com.cn
I  www.tfo.com.cn

VMI Ltd.
Mrs. C. Sun
Internal 41 No 50
Beijing Zhong Road ETDZ
Yantai. Shandong. 264000
China
T +86 535 630 16 11
E vmiy@vmi.com.cn
I  www.vmi.com.cn  

VMI Yantai Ltd.
Xu Kangyuan
No.886 Yongfu Yuan road
Fushan High & New Tech 
Industrial Park
Yantai. Shandong 265500
China
T +86 535 630 16 11
E vmiy@vmi.com.cn
I  www.vmi.com.cn

Zhangjiagang Twentsche
Cable Co. Ltd.
V. Sung
Jiangsu Yangtze Intern. 
Mettalurgical
Industrial Park ChuangYe Road
Jinfeng Zhangjiagang 215625
Jiangsu Province - China
T +86 512 5857 11 88
E sales.list@cablemaker.net
I www. cablemaker.net

TKH Asia
J. Baartmans
60 Alexandra Terrace
#02-10 The Comtech
Lobby B
118502 Singapore

Isolectra Far East
A. Varma
60 Alexandra Terrace
#02-10 The Comtech Lobby B
118502 Singapore
T +65 6272 23 71
E enquiry@isolectra.com.sg

Isolectra Malaysia Sdn Bhd
Z. Abidin Bin Abas
18. Jalan Astaka U8/83
Seksyen U8 Bukit Jelutong
40150 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Eshan
Malaysia
T +60 3 7846 99 88
E ism@isolectra.com.my
I  www.isolectra.com.my

VMI Americas Inc.
A. Kroeze
4670 Allen Road
Stow. Ohio 44224 - USA
T +1 330 929 68 00
E sales@vmi-usa.com
I  www.vmi-group.com

Asia and North and South America
TKH France
P. Vincent
3 Rue Jeanne Garnerin
91320 Wissous
France
T +33 169 79 14 41

Aasset Security 
International
Y. Assous, R. Scetbon, F. Alioui
153 rue Michel Carré
95100 Argenteuil
France
T +33 130 76 30 30
E info@aasset-security.com
I www.aasset-security.com

Also establishments in:
France, Germany, Italy and UK

TKH Security Solutions 
France
F. Haubert
153 rue Michel Carré
95100 Argenteuil
France
T +33 1 64 54 15 90
E sales.fr@tkhsecurity.com
I www.tkhsecurity.com

CAE Groupe 
P. Vincent, O. Boileau
3 Rue Jeanne Garnerin
91320 Wissous
France
T +33 169 79 14 41
E contact@cae-groupe.fr
I www.cae-groupe.fr

ID Cables
S. Leroux
3 Rue Jeanne Garnerin
91320 Wissous
France

T +33 169 79 14 04
E contact@id-cables.fr
I www.id-cables.fr

Multimedia Connect
O. Parizot
3 Rue Jeanne Garnerin
91320 Wissous
France
T +33 1 69 79 39 80
E contact@multimedia-connect.fr
I www.multimedia-connect.com

MAN 
P. Henaut
3 Rue Jeanne Garnerin
91320 Wissous
France
T +33 1 69 79 14 41

Ithaca
P. Chapon, C. Lopez
170 Route de l’Oasis
20110 Casablanca
Morocco
T +212 22 98 66 66

Also establishments in:
CMF, Taiwan

KC Industrie Srl
G. Amadei
Via Dante Alighieri 33
29010 Villanova sull’Arda
Italy
T + 39 523 83 78 99
E info@kcindustrie.it
I www.kcindustrie.it

Dewetron GmbH
O. Dohrau
Parkring 4
8074 Graz-Grambach
Austria

Europe other
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Participating interests

Ownership 1
Telecom 

Solutions
Industrial 
Solutions

Alphatronics B.V. Nijkerk  Netherlands 100.0% 	 •	
BB Lightconcepts B.V. 2 Doetinchem  Netherlands 80.0%  •
B.V. Twentsche Kabelfabriek Haaksbergen  Netherlands 100.0% • • •
bv Elspec De Kwakel  Netherlands 100.0%  • •
Capable B.V. Breda  Netherlands 100.0%   •
Capassy B.V. Etten-Leur  Netherlands 100.0%   •
Commend Benelux B.V. Prinsenbeek  Netherlands 75.0%  •
Cross Hardware B.V. Barneveld  Netherlands 100.0%  •
EKB Groep B.V. Beverwijk  Netherlands 100.0%   •
EKB Zuid B.V. 2 Someren  Netherlands 90.0%   •
Electro-Draad B.V. Ittervoort  Netherlands 100.0%  • •
Eminent Europe B.V. Beek  Netherlands 100.0% •	 •	 •
Flexposure B.V. 2 Tiel  Netherlands 70.0%  •
Funea Broadband Services B.V. Oosterhout  Netherlands 100.0% •
Intronics Barneveld B.V. Barneveld  Netherlands 100.0% •	 •	 •
Isolectra B.V. Capelle a/d IJssel  Netherlands 100.0%  •
Jobarco B.V. Benthuizen  Netherlands 100.0%   •
Keyprocessor B.V. Amsterdam  Netherlands 100.0%  •
KLS Netherlands B.V. 2 Hoogeveen  Netherlands 57.5%   •
LMI Technologies B.V. Heerlen  Netherlands 61.5%  •
Mextal B.V. 2 Nuenen  Netherlands 90.0%  •
Pantaflex B.V. 2 Bergschenhoek  Netherlands 92.0%   •
Parking + Protection B.V. 2 Oosterhout  Netherlands 51.0%  •
Scanton Parking+ B.V. Houten  Netherlands 100.0%  •
SecurityWorks B.V. 2 Nijkerk  Netherlands 90.0%  •
Siqura B.V. Gouda  Netherlands 100.0%  •
Solinq B.V. Weert  Netherlands 100.0%  •
Speeq B.V. Capelle a/d IJssel  Netherlands 100.0%   •	
Texim Europe B.V. Haaksbergen  Netherlands 100.0% •	 	 •
TKH Care Solutions B.V. Haaksbergen  Netherlands 100.0%  •
TKH Logistics B.V. Haaksbergen  Netherlands 100.0% •	 •	 •
TKH Parking Solutions B.V. Haaksbergen  Netherlands 100.0%  •
USE System Engineering B.V. 2 Haaksbergen  Netherlands 75.0%  •
VDG Security B.V. Zoetermeer  Netherlands 100.0%  •
VMI Holland B.V. Epe  Netherlands 100.0%   •

Dewetron Elektronische Messgeräte GmbH Graz  Austria 61.5%   •
EFB Elektronik Austria GmbH Wenen  Austria 100.0% •	 •	 •	

Building
SolutionsCountryPlaceName
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Ownership 1

Telecom 
Solutions

Industrial 
Solutions

Building
SolutionsCountryPlaceName

Inec N.V. Sint-Antonius Zoersel  Belgium 100.0% •	 •	 •
Techno Specials N.V. Gent  Belgium 100.0% •	 •	 •
Texim Europe BVBA Brussel  Belgium 100.0% •	 	 •
S-Com A/S Glostrup  Denmark 100.0%  •	 •
VMC A/S Ballerup  Denmark 100.0% •	 •
Aasset France SAS Argenteuil  France 100.0%  •
Multi Media Connect SA Ville la Grand  France 100.0%  •
CAE Data SAS Wissous  France 100.0% •	 •	 •
ECCTV Argenteuil  France 100.0%  •
ID Cables SAS Wissous  France 100.0%  •	 •	 •
HPM Cables Sarl Chaon  France 90.0% •	 •	 •
TKF SAS Wissous  France 100.0% •
TKH Securite France SA Wissous  France 100.0%  • 
Aasset Germany GmbH Erkrath  Germany 100.0%  •
Allied Vision Technologies GmbH Stadtroda  Germany 61.5%  •
ASP AG Erkrath  Germany 100.0%  •
Augusta Technologie AG München  Germany 61.5%  •	 •
Dewetron Elektronische Messgeräte GmbH Wernau  Germany 61.5%   •
EEB Kabeltechnik GmbH Forst  Germany 100.0%   •
EFB Elektronik GmbH Bielefeld  Germany 100.0% •	 •		 •
Ernst & Engbring GmbH Oer-Erkenschwick  Germany 100.0%   •
HE System Electronic GmbH & Co. KG Veitsbronn  Germany 61.5%   •
IV-Tec GmbH Freiburg  Germany 100.0%  •
New Electronic Technology GmbH Finning  Germany 100.0%  •
Schneider Intercom GmbH Erkrath  Germany 95.0%  •
Schrade Kabel- und Elektrotechnik GmbH Allmendingen  Germany 100.0%   •
Schreinermacher Kabelconfektionen GmbH Kaarst-Büttgen  Germany 100.0% •	 •
Texim Europe GmbH  Quickborn  Germany 100.0% •	 	 •
TKD Kabel GmbH Nettetal  Germany 100.0%   •
TKF GmbH Teltow  Germany 100.0% •
VMI-AZ Extrusion Runding  Germany 100.0%   •
Aasset Italia Conegliano  Italy 100.0%  • 
KC Industrie Sarl Villanova sull’ Arda  Italy 94.5%   •
TKD Italia S.r.l. Ozzano Dell Emilia  Italy 70.0%   •
C&C Partners Telecom Sp. z o.o Leszno  Poland 100.0% •	 •
C&C Technology Sp. z o.o Leszno  Poland 100.0%  •
TKD Polska Sp. z o.o. Warschau  Poland 100.0%   •
TKH Kabeltechniek Polska Sp. z o.o. Leszno  Poland 100.0%   •
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Ownership 1
Telecom 

Solutions
Industrial 
Solutions

Building
SolutionsCountryPlaceName

Intronics Espana SA Malaga  Spain 100.0% •	 •	 •
Siqura S.L. Madrid  Spain 100.0%  •
EFB Elektronik Ltd Istanbul  Turky 100.0% •	 •
Aasset UK Ltd. Milton Keynes  UK 100.0%  •
TKH Security Solutions Ltd. Rotherham  UK 100.0%  •
VMC Elteknik AB Strängnäs  Sweden 100.0% •	 •

Multi Media Connect (Aust) Pty ltd Tuggerah  Australia 85.0%  •
VMI South America Ltda. Sao Paulo  Brazil 100.0%   •
Allied Vision Technologies Inc. Burnaby  Canada 61.5%  •
LMI Technologies Inc. Vancouver  Canada 61.5%  •
Dewetron China Ltd. 3 Hongkong  China 85.0%   •
TKH Building Solutions Shanghai Co. Ltd. Shanghai  China 100.0%  •
Twentsche (Nanjing) Fibre Optics Co. Ltd. Nanjing  China 100.0% •
VMI (Yantai) Machinery Co. Ltd. Yantai  China 100.0%   •
VMI Ltd. Yantai  China 100.0%   •
Zhangjiagang Twentsche Cable Co. Ltd. Zhangjiagang  China 100.0%  •
Isolectra Communications Technology Sdn Bhd Shah Alam  Malaysia 100.0% •	 •
Ithaca 2 Casablanca  Morocco 75.5%  •
NET Japan Co. Ltd. Yokohama  Japan 90.0%  •
Multi Media Connect (N.Z.) Pty ltd Paraparaumu  New Zealand 85.0%  •
CMF Taiwan Taiwan  Taiwan 60.0%  •
Allied Vision Technologies Pte. Ltd. Boston  Singapore 61.5%  •
Isolectra Far East Pte Ltd. Singapore  Singapore 100.0% •	 •
Allied Vision Technologies Inc. Boston  USA 61.5%  •
Dewetron America Inc. 3 Wakefield  USA 80.0%   •
Kaweflex Wire and Cable Inc. Cincinnati  USA 100.0%   •
LMI Technologies Inc. Detroit  USA 61.5%  •
NET USA Inc. Highland  USA 90.0%  •
TKH Security Solutions USA Inc. Germantown  USA 100.0%  •
VMI Americas Inc. Stow  USA 100.0%   • 
  

1 Economic ownership is equal to the legal ownership, unless mentioned differently.
2 Economic ownership is 100%.
3 Indirect interest held through Augusta Technologie AG. 
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Ten year overview
IFRS Dutch GAAP

in millions of euros 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008  2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
           
Consolidated profit and loss account

Total turnover  1,102 1,061 894 726 997  838 685 548 460 384 
 
Costs of raw materials, consumables and subcontracted work  652 649 545 430 628  528 421 320 265 214 
Personnel expenses  234 210 174 158 186  158 136 120 104 90
Depreciation  17 15 14 16 17  12 10 12 13 14 
Other operating expenses  113 95 88 81 90  74 64 56 45 42
Total operating expenses  1,016 969 821 685 921 772 631 508 427 360 
 
EBITA before one-off income and expenses 86 92 73 41 76 66 54 40 33 24  
One-off income and expenses -12 -2 0 -12 0 0 0 0 0 0 
EBITA 74 90 73 29 76 66 54 40 33  24  
Impairment 3 0 0 4 -3 0 0 0 0 0 
Amortisation 21 13 11 9 6 3 0 0 0 0
Operating result 50 77 62 16 73 63 54 40 33 24 
 
Financial income and expenses  -12 -7 -7 -11 -8 -5 -4 -3 -3 -4 
Change in value of provisions for earn-out and put options           
minority shareholders 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Result minority before taxes 41 70 55 5 65 58 50 37 30 20 
 
Taxes  10 16 14 2 15 12 15 3 10 8 
Net result  31 54 41 3 50 46 35 34 20 12 
 
Minority interest  2 1 1 0 0 1 0 -1 0 0
Attributable to shareholders 29 53 40 3 50 45 35 33 20 12 
 
         
Highlights 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008  2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 
 
EBITA as % of the total turnover (ROS) 1 7.8 8.7 8.2 5.6 7.6  7.9 7.8 7.2 7.2 6.2 
Return as % of the shareholders’ equity (ROE) 1 11.7 16.5 13.9 6.4 16.3  15.5 16.0 13.9 12.3 8.0 
EBITA in % of the average capital invested (ROCE)  16.0 21.5 20.0 9.8 16.5  15.3 17.1 14.3 13.4 10.4 
Net profit as % of the total turnover 1 4.5 5.6 5.0 2.5 5.0  4.9 5.2 4.8 4.3 3.1 
 

1 Before one-off income and expenses. In 2012 this relates to restructuring and acquisition costs of € 12.2 million, impairments of € 3.3 million, release of  
the provisions for earn-out and put-options of € 3.0 million as well as tax credit on these amounts of € 2.8 million. In 2011 the acquisition costs were  
€ 2.0 million.  In 2009 this relates to an impairment of € 3.7 million before taxes and restructuring costs of 12.2 million. In 2008 this concerns the partial  
release of the impairment of € 3.6 million (before taxes) and the exceptional tax gain of € 2.5 million.     
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IFRS Dutch GAAP

in millions of euros 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008  2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
           
Consolidated balance sheet            
         
Intangible non-current assets  343 204 168 167 169  149 45 24 24 3
Tangible non-current assets  195 171 157 151 165  146 124 125 123 119
Financial non-current asset  30 23 19 10 9  8 7 18 16 0
Total non-current assets  568 398 344 328 343 303 176 167 163 122
          
Inventories  197 165 137 115 140  145 120 104 85 71
Receivables 201 187 165 146 225  202 156 119 92 80
Cash and cash equivalents 66 29 23 44 10  10 10 6 7 8
Total current assets  464 381 325 305 375 357 286 229 184 159
          
Assets held for sale 7 7 7 9 3  1 3 0 0 0
Total assets  1,039 786 676 642 721 661 465 396 347 281
          
Shareholders’ equity  367 356 317 281 292  264 221 187 160 156
Minority interest  60 2 2 1 1  1 2 0 0 0
Group equity  427 358 319 282 293 265 223 187 160 156
          
Provisions  101 75 54 64 60  68 37 46 41 19
Long-term liabilities  202 124 55 72 126  86 26 26 26 27
Credit institutions  60 4 32 41 71  88 53 29 37 19
Other current liabilities 249 225 217 183 171  154 126 108 83 60
Total liabilities 1,039 786 677 642 721 661 465 396 347 281 

Investments tangible non-current assets 25 22 21 11 32 29 18 12 11 11
Depreciations on tangible non-current assets 17 15 14 17 17  13 12 12 13 14
Cash flow from operating activities  75 47 55 152 53  38 19 30 17 42
          

Other Information
in euros (unless stated otherwise) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008  2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
         
Solvency (in%) 41 46 47 44 41  40 48 47 46 56
          
Per ordinary share of € 0.25 1

Number of shares outstanding and held by third parties at year 
end (x 1,000 ) 37,658 37,284 36,885 36,293 35,290  34,638 33,715 32,732 32,364 32,276
Net result per ordinary share 0.77 1.44 1.10 0.07 1.43  1.30 1.06 0.80 0.61 0.37
Net result before one-off income and expenses and amortisation 
per share  1.28 1.63 1.21 0.49 1.34  1.34 1.06 0.80 0.61 0.37
Dividend per share 0.65 0.75 0.61 0.50 0.66  0.66 0.53 0.41 0.31 0.25
Highest share price during year under review  20.86 23.80 19.61 13.95 17.41  23.41 16.48 10.36 7.85 4.86
Lowest share price during year under review  15.41 13.24 12.52 6.35 7.04  13.62 9.28 7.43 4.28 1.27
Share price at year-end  19.50 16.95 19.61 13.95 8.00  14.96 16.03 9.30 7.50 4.48

1 Calculations are based upon the number of shares held by third parties.
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Glossary

Bandwidth
the transmission capacity of a media, 
expressed in the number of bits per 
second. The maximum transmission 
capacity is 1 Gigabit per second for 
copper and 600 Gigabit per second 
for optical fibre. 

Broadband connection
a collective name for a connection 
with a high transport capacity. 
Technically, such a connection can  
be made with a coax modem, an 
ADSL modem or with the aid of a 
Fiber-to-the-Home connection. The 
latter solution currently offers the  
fastest (Internet) connection, with a 
transport-capacity of at least 10 
megabits per second symmetric it is 
many times faster than connections 
with  ADSL and coax modems.

Building Solutions
solutions in the field of efficient electro-
technology ranging from applications 
within buildings through to technical 
systems that – combined with soft-
ware – provide efficiency solutions for 
the care, parking and security sectors. 

Cable accessories
products with a direct relation to cable 
and the installation of cable. For 
example attachment materials coding 
and marking systems and tools.

Data communication
communication of digital information 
between computers.

Data mining
the targeted search for (statistical) rela-
tionships in data sets with the aim to 
establish profiles for scientific or com-
mercial use. Such a data set can be 
formed by events in a practical situati-
on registering (purchasing behaviour, 
symptoms in patients, etc.) or by the 
results of previous scientific studies 
comparing and interpreting it.

Disruptive
disturb / disrupt. A market approach 
to the introduction of products and 
services, done in a way that the 
market is not expecting.

Domotics: 
also known as home automation, is 
the integration of technology and ser-
vices, for a better quality of live. 
Domotics is not just to integrate tech-
nology and operating in the home, but 
also the service from outside the 
house.

Electro technical engineering /  
electronics
is engaged in active and nonlinear 
components (transistors, electron 
tubes and other semiconductors). In 
electrical networks, active components 
resistors, capacitors, coils are merged 
into switches

Extramural care
a form of intensive home care for 
people with nursing indicator but not 
included in an institution. The goal is 
to offer care to independently living 

elderly with nursing care, so moving to 
an intramural environment can be 
delayed or prevented.

Fibre-To-The-Home
the last piece of the network to the 
user is fitted with optical fibre cable.

ICT (information and 
Communication Technology)
rapidly progressing integration is 
occurring between information techno-
logy, that is to say computers, and 
data and  telecommunication.

Indoor telecom
telecommunication facilities in the 
home. 

Industrial Solutions
consist of advanced solutions for pro-
duction automation, car and truck tyre 
building systems and industrial appli-
cations in the area of specialty cable 
and cable accessories.

IP-TV
TV over internet. Technology to trans-
port compressed streaming of video 
via internet. This technology is intro-
duced in the Triple Play strategy of 
network operators. 

Installation cable
cable for installations for power supply 
with a tension of maximum 1,000 Volts.

Intramural care
healthcare for an uninterrupted stay of 
more than 24 hours which is offered in 
a healthcare institution such as a hos-

pital, nursing home or institution for 
the mentally handicapped.

LEAN
a method to prevent all wastes from 
the production process, which looks at 
the value added in production pro-
cess. The customer demand is there-
by leading within the production pro-
cess.

Mechatronics
an engineering discipline comprising 
the combination of engineering disci-
plines: electro technical engineering, 
mechanical engineering, measurement 
and control technology and control 
technology.

Operational Excellence
the pursuit of excellence results in 
operational processes. This is done 
through a high efficiency and optimum 
quality of the processes, via a low fai-
lure rate and waste percentage, reduc-
tion of production costs, full control 
over the process flows, an innovative 
and flexible organization as well as to 
meet customer needs.

Operation systems
systems for sending, regulating and 
controlling industrial processes, of 
which the system’s intelligence con-
sists of PLCs (Programmable Logical 
Computers) or CNCs (Computerised 
Numerical Controls).

Optical fibre cable 
cable with one or more coated conduc-

tors of very pure glass for the transfer 
of signals on a carrier wave of light; 
applied in data and telecommunication.

Optical fibre production: 
optical fibre is produced in a 25-meter 
high drawing tower in conditioned 
ultra-clean conditions.

Outdoor telecom
telecommunication facilities outside 
the home.

Passive and active components 
in data and telecommunication a diffe-
rence is made between components 
which do and do not need power.

Preform
is a tube of glass and can be compa-
red with a large model of an optical 
fibre. The preform is much shorter and 
thicker than the optical fibre, but 
otherwise an exact copy. The optical 
fibre is created by pulling out the pre-
form. This is done by inserting the end 
of the preform in a furnace to be 
heated to above 2000°C. At the 
bottom of the preform a glass drop 
appears. This is picked up and formed 
into an optical fibre by pulling the fibre 
till it has the desired diameter. 

Specialty cable
cable for specific applications or 
custom made for the customer. These 
cables are often highly flexible, 
resistant to chemicals or combine dif-
ferent kinds of optical fibres with 
copper conductors.
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System concepts
TKH increasingly specializes in the 
integration of individual components 
into total systems. Such systems offer 
the client a lot of added value and 
operational safety.

Technology
the systematic way of applying new, 
scientific or other organized know-
ledge for practical purposes.

Telecommunication infra-
structure the entity of cables, plugs, 
cabinets, etc. that is required to  
connect telephone, Internet, mobile 
phone exchanges.

Telecommunication network 
network for the transport of voice and 
digital information between computers. 

Telecom Solutions
consists of solutions ranging from 
a basic infrastructure tohome networ-
king applications, both for outdoor 
telecom and indoor telecom (ICT) 
markets.

Total solution
by acting as a one-stop-shopping 
supplier for projects, the subsidiaries 
of TKH deliver a complete packet of 
products, including advice, project 
management, -installation, training 
and maintenance.

Transmission capacity 
the number of information units which 
can be sent through a conductor or 
fibre. 

Tyre building systems 
systems for the manufacturing of car 
and truck tyres. 

Vertical market
A market in which products and servi-
ces are be offered that are specific to 
an industry, trade, profession or other 
group of customers with specific 
needs. It differs from a horizontal 
market in which suppliers offer a wide 
range of goods and services to a 
large group of customer with a wide 
range of needs.

Vision Technology
the digital processing of visual infor-
mation, so that useful information or 
images are arising for interpretation 
by humans and / or machines.

WIFI (wireless Fidelity)
standard for wireless data com-
munication with a relatively large 
bandwidth and range. Is applied in 
the office and at home. 

4G
is the fourth generation of mobile  
telecommunications standards. It  
is the next standard after the 3G 
standard. The speed of 4G is 100 
Mbit / second. There is - particularly 
because of high demands on the 
speed - currently only one standard 
by the ITU who meets the require-
ments to be called 4G: LTE 
Advanced.
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